
           
 

 

            

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 
NORTH CENTRAL LONDON SECTOR 
JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 Contact: Robert Mack 

Friday 25 March 2011 10:00 a.m.  Direct line: 020 8489 2921  
Hendon Town Hall, The Burroughs, Hendon 
NW4 4BG 

 E-mail: rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk 

   
 
Councillors: Maureen Braun and Alison Cornelius (L.B.Barnet), Peter Brayshaw and 
John Bryant (L.B.Camden), Christine Hamilton and Mike Rye (L.B.Enfield), Gideon 
Bull and Dave Winskill (L.B.Haringey), Kate Groucutt and Martin Klute 
(L.B.Islington),  
 
 
Support Officers: Sue Cripps, Katie McDonald, Robert Mack, Pete Moore and 
Jeremy Williams 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (PAGES 1 - 2)  
 
 Members of the Committee are invited to identify any personal or prejudicial interests 

relevant to items on the agenda.  A definition of personal and prejudicial interests is 
attached. 
 
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 3 - 10)  
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting of 21 January 2011 (attached). 

 
5. NHS NORTH CENTRAL LONDON (NCL) - TRANSITION AND GOVERNANCE  

(PAGES 11 - 44)  
 



 

2 

 To report on the governance and organisational structure of NHS North Central 
London. 
 

6. VASCULAR SURGERY  (PAGES 45 - 84)  
 
 To update the JHOSC on the development of a specialist vascular centre for the 

sector.  
 
 

7. NORTH CENTRAL LONDON SECTOR COMMISSIONING STRATEGY AND 
QUALITY, INNOVATION, PRODUCTIVITY AND PREVENTION (QIPP) PLAN  
(PAGES 85 - 134)  

 
 To receive an update on the development of the North Central London Sector 

Commissioning Strategy and Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention 
(QIPP) Plan.   
 
 

8. FINANCE    
 
 To consider an overview of the financial position of PCTs within the sector. (TO 

FOLLOW)  
 

9. BARNET, ENFIELD AND HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY    
 
 To receive a verbal update on the latest position in respect of the Barnet, Enfield and 

Haringey Clinical Strategy 
 

10. JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (JHOSC) FOR NORTH 
CENTRAL LONDON SECTOR - SUPPORT AND ADMINISTRATIVE ISSUES  
(PAGES 135 - 136)  

 
 To consider support and administrative arrangements for the JHOSC. 

 
11. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING    
 
 Friday 27 May at 10:00 a.m. at Camden Town Hall. 

 
12. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

DEC/JB/JK/1 

YES 

NO 

NO 

YES 

NO 

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART - QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF 
 
 

What matters are being 
discussed at the meeting? 

Do any relate to my interests whether 
already registered or not? 

Is a particular matter close to me? 
 
Does it affect: 
Ø me or my partner; 
Ø my relatives or their partners; 
Ø my friends or close associates; 
Ø either me, my family or close associates: 

• job and business; 

• employers, firms you or they are a partner of and companies 
you or they are a Director of 

• or them to any position; 

• corporate bodies in which you or they have a shareholding of 
more than £25,000 (nominal value); 

Ø my entries in the register of interests 
 
more than it would affect the majority of people in the ward affected by the 
decision, or in the authority’s area or constituency? 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

You can participate 
in the meeting and 
vote 

Does the matter affect your financial interests or 
relate to a licensing, planning or other regulatory 
matter; and 
Would a member of the public (knowing the 
relevant facts) reasonably think that your 
personal interest was so significant that it would 
prejudice your judgement of public interest? 

P
re

ju
d

ic
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

NO 

YES 

YES 

You may have a 

personal interest 

Note: If in any doubt about a potential interest, members are asked to seek advice from 
Democratic Services in advance of the meeting. 

 

Do the public have speaking rights at the meeting?  
 

You should declare the interest and 
withdraw from the meeting by leaving 
the room.  You cannot speak or vote 
on the matter and must not seek to 
improperly influence the decision. 

You should declare the interest but can remain 
in the meeting to speak.  Once you have 
finished speaking (or the meeting decides you 
have finished - if earlier) you must withdraw from 
the meeting by leaving the room.   

YES 

You may have a 

prejudicial interest 

Declare your personal interest in the matter.  You can 
remain in meeting, speak and vote unless the interest is 
also prejudicial; or 
If your interest arises solely from your membership of, 
or position of control or management on any other 
public body or body to which you were nominated by 
the authority e.g. Governing Body, ALMO, you only 
need declare your personal interest if and when you 
speak on the matter, again providing it is not prejudicial. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

NORTH CENTRAL LONDON SECTOR JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee held on 21 
January 2011 at Haringey Civic Centre, High Road, Wood Green N22 8LE 
 

Present: Councillors: Alison Cornelius (Barnet), Peter Brayshaw and John 
Bryant (Camden), Christine Hamilton (Enfield), Gideon Bull and Dave Winskill 
(Haringey), Kate Groucutt and Martin Klute (Islington) 
 
Officers: Hannah Hutter (Camden), Melissa James (Barnet), Pete Moore 
(Islington), Rob Mack and Carolyn Banks (Haringey)  
 
 

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

Cllr John Bryant (Vice Chair) welcomed everyone to the meeting and gave 
apologies for lateness in respect of Cllr Gideon Bull (Chair). 
 

2. URGENT BUSINESS 

 

There was none.  It was noted that an updated slide on proposed QUIP 
savings would be circulated shortly.   
 

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

 

The following declarations were made: 
 
Councillors Bryant and Winskill declared a personal interest in respect of item 
8 – Low Priority Treatments. 
Councillor Brayshaw - elected patient Governor of GULCH 
Councillor Groucutt – Governor at GULCH 
Councillor Cornelius – Chaplaincy at Barnet hospital (not Chase Farm as 
stated in the minutes of the meeting held on 19 November) 
Councillor Bull – Employee at Moorfields Eye hospital 
 

4. MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2010 were noted. 
 
Regarding the challenges in using up to date population data, Members were 
advised that, although the figures across the boroughs had been checked, no 
further work had been carried out. It was noted that there was an opportunity 
with changes to GP consortia to ensure that the data was accurate. 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 3



It was agreed that in addition to Health and Well Being Boards, individual 
borough’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees should receive updates on the 
GP Consortia. 
 
It was agreed that Committee papers be circulated by hard copy as well as 
electronically and at least 7 – 10 days before the meeting. 

 

5. VASCULAR SURGERY 

 

Nick Losseff, Consultant Neurologist and Clinical Director, NHS North Central 
London gave an update on work being undertaken in the NHS in North 
Central London in response to the recently published Cardiovascular Strategy 
for London. This strategy proposed that there should be five specialist 
vascular centres in London.  

 
Currently there were three specialist providers of arterial vascular surgery.  
These were based at Barnet Hospital, the Royal Free Hospital and University 
College Hospital. However, it was felt that none of these centres delivered the 
volume of work needed to develop a critical mass of patients or clinical 
expertise  considered necessary to further improve patient outcomes. The 
benefits to patients of specialist centres were perceived to be significant and it 
was envisaged that they would mirror what had already been achieved in 
other specialities such as stroke and coronary heart disease. There was 
evidence that surgeons and institutions that maintained high volumes of 
vascular surgery achieved mortality rates 2-4% lower than surgeons that 
perform low volumes each year. 

 
Efforts were being made to find a co-operative solution that was acceptable to 
the three service providers in the first instance, thus removing the need for an 
independent designation process to be run.  A group of North Central London 
vascular surgeons had meet to discuss provision and an offer had been made 
to them by NHS NCL to host further talks. Also all Primary Care Trusts had 
been sent a letter and summary document and other stakeholders would be 
engaged in the process.  
 
It was considered that it would be useful to have a set of criteria and guidance 
as to what the critical mass should be in determining where the centre of 
excellence should be located, similar to that which had been presented for the 
changes made to the delivery of stroke services. It was felt that a set of 
objective measures would assist with determining where and how the central 
unit of excellence would be created and how the specialist and non specialist 
work would be divided between institutions. 

 

The principal argument against the proposals was the locality issue and the 
expectation that residents would want to go to their local hospital. It was 
noted that the number of patient affected was relatively low, at around 150 

Page 4



patients annually. Also there was an argument from surgeons that their 
current mortality figures were low. However, it was acknowledged that there 
were efficiency savings to be made by the proposals and many other parts of 
the country had already gone down this route. Indeed the NCL was 
considered to be behind the rest of the country and Europe in this area. The 
QIPP showed that vascular surgery was only around 25% of the vascular 
services, therefore leaving 75%of work still to be carried out at local hospitals.  
Members requested that further details on the number of cases and mortality 
rates dealt with by each of the three hospitals be provided. In response to 
members concerns that the performance of local hospitals may be affected by 
taking more complex procedures away from them, it was noted that it was 
likely to be the same surgeons carrying out procedures at the specialist 
centre. 

 

It was noted that, although there was no response from the Royal Free within 
the papers sent to members, both the Royal Free and UCLH were keen to 
proceed with the proposals. There was some discussion about the hospitals 
being in competition with each other and a perception that only the teaching 
hospitals in Central London would be selected for the more complex surgery. 
However, the meeting was informed that the Royal free and UCLH were not 
going to be competing against each other. It was noted that, because of the 
high co-dependencies for high level surgery, it was likely that the specialist 
vascular services would be provided at a teaching hospital. 
 
It was hoped to implement the changes during 2011/12. The NCL Cardiac 
and Stroke Network had agreed to work with officers on the changes to create 
a world class service. 

 

 RESOLVED: 

 

1. That the report and appendices be noted. 
2. That objective criteria be developed to determine the location of the 

proposed specialist centre and that the specification for the centre 
emulates best practice in the rest of the UK and Europe.   

3. That Members be provided with further details on the number of cases 
including mortality rates for Barnet, Royal Free and UCLH. 

4. That Cllr Cornelius be requested to provide officers with details of the 
precise information that she had requested in respect of blue light figures 
for the Barnet area. 

5. That a further progress report be presented to the Committee in due 
course. 

 

6. QUALITY, INNOVATION, PRODUCTIVITY AND PREVENTION – 

COMMISSIONING PLANS FOR 2011/12 

 

Page 5



An update on the planning process in respect of NHS North Central London 
Quality, innovation, productivity and prevention (QIPP) programme was given 
by Sylvia Kennedy, Director of Clinical Strategy.  

 
Details of the issues and challenges relating to the seven priority areas of 
long term conditions, maternity, paediatrics, cancer, cardiovascular, mental 
health and unscheduled care were outlined. 
 
Due to budget deficits within Barnet, Enfield and Haringey PCT’s, the net 
position at the end of the current financial year for NCL was anticipated to be 
a deficit of £59m. If no savings were made over the next four years, it was 
predicted that the level would increase to an unacceptable deficit of £780m. 
There were a number of reasons for the deficit including the high population 
growth and the increase in the number of older people, particular in the 
northern part of the sector. Also there had been changes to calculation 
methods, market forces factor and technical changes in pricing.  Additionally it 
was known that acute services in the area were operating at below the 
national average, whereas if they were in the top quartile around £30m would 
be saved per year and if they were the best in the country this figure would 
increase to around £100m. Additionally the primary care facilities were not 
well developed, especially in the north of the region.  Plans had therefore 
been produced to address this debt and improve quality of care.  Six broad 
categories of savings had been identified:- primary care, prescribing, acute, 
mental health/continuing care  community/other and corporate. There would 
be associated work plans for finance, transition, workforce and contracting. A 
final plan was to be submitted to NHS London on 28 February 2011.  

 

There were 12 priority worksteams within the QIPP Plan and 4 enabling 
workstreams. Each workstream had a number of individual initiatives sitting 
within it. It was agreed that future meetings receive progress reports on the 
work streams and targets.  It was noted that the finalised QIPP Plan would be 
available in the next two months. It was suggested that there should be a 
seminar arranged to explain in detail the 12 priority workstreams and to 
ensure that there was an understanding of the major issues facing the NCL.A 
stakeholders event had been planned for 3 March, details of which would be 
shortly circulated to Members. It was agreed that there needed to be 
discussions with the emerging GP consortium at an early stage. 

 

RESOLVED: 

 

1. That a further report on work in progress be presented to the next 
meeting. 

2. That the next meeting receive in depth reports on medicines management, 
care closer to home and unscheduled care. 

3. That consideration be given to arranging a seminar to examine the twelve 
priority worksteams in more detail. 

Page 6



4. That details of the NCL stakeholder event had been planned for 3 March, 
be circulated to Members of the JHOSC  

 
 

7. UPDATE ON THE MENTAL HEALTH WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Further to the previous meeting updating members on the work taking place 
in the mental health field at a sector level, members were informed of a 
separate Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust Transformation 
programme which had been established and consisted of 9 individual projects 
grouped into two broad areas of developing community services and 
specialist services. 

 

The same broad strategic direction of development for mental health services 
had been agreed across the Borough’s of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey. This 
was to be based on the recovery model, greater development of community 
services and reducing reliance on in patient care, providing the most clinically 
and cost effective value for money services and working in partnership to 
develop and implement an ongoing change programme. A summary of the 
strategies and the mental health programme was noted. Members were 
advised that there had been a significant amount of engagement with mental 
health boards, carers and users and it was hoped that in future service users 
would be more involved. It was noted that in Enfield community services had 
merged with mental health services and that this had bought huge benefits.  

 

Also there was currently a local consultation being undertaken by the 
Camden and Islington NHS Foundation Trust in conjunction with their 
commissioners NHS Camden and NHS Islington .into the proposal to close 
inpatient beds and reduce the number of sites. The three affected local 
authorities were also represented on the transformation group. Furthermore 
the need to get GP involvement was recognised. 
 
With regard to the child and adolescent eating disorder service it was noted 
that the services for under 18s was provided at the Royal Free hospital 
whereas the  adults  service was provided at St Ann’s hospital, it was felt that 
this did not enhance continuity of care. However It was noted that there was a 
review of the existing care pathway and a new one was to be developed. 
 

       RESOLVED: 

 

1. That the report be noted. 
2. That information on the Whittington Integrated Care Organisation be 

circulated to Members of the JHOSC. 
 
 

8. LOW PRIORITY TREATMENTS  

Page 7



Members were informed of the updated Low Priority Treatments extended 
policy which included additional procedures recommended by Commissioning 
Support for London (CSL) and incorporated changes made in the light of 
secondary care clinical feedback. It was considered that extending the list of 
low priority treatments would ensure that the limited budget would be utilised 
to ensure the maximum advantage of the maximum number of people and 
was anticipated to deliver financial benefits of £2,535,480 from 2011/12. It 
was noted that following discussions with GP’s and secondary care providers 
some additional procedures had been added. Details of public consultations 
were noted, together with the rationale behind the decisions. The policy had 
been drawn up in the context of the principles framework used by three of the 
NCL PCT’s and the new NHS Constitution. It was noted that requests for 
funding treatments could be made to the IFR Panel by GP’s on an individual 
and exceptional basis.   

 

Although there was an expectation that GP’s might be able to provide 
alternative solutions,  there was some concern expressed over the duration of 
the policy and whether the systems would be cost effective in that greater 
numbers would reach the critical level and be eligible for treatment.  
 
Additionally although there was evidence that some non effective treatments 
were still being carried out, hospitals were moving towards no longer carrying 
them out as part of the programme for reasonable clinical behaviour. 
 
The meeting agreed that there was a need to monitor numbers going through 
the system and costs and requested to be updated on the effectiveness of 
reducing the number of procedures on the list and the comparative impact of 
the extended policy across the sector.  
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That a further report outlining progress, including information on the 
effectiveness of reducing the number of procedures included on the list and 
the comparative impact across the sector, be submitted to the JHOSC in due 
course. 

 

9. NCL UPDATE 

 

Financial Update 2010/11 
 

A financial deficit of £60m was projected to be carried forward into the next 
financial year. Representations had been made to the Challenge Trust Board 
for assistance, the outcome of which would be known by the end of January 
2011. It was noted that the deficits would not be passed onto GP consortia. 

 

PCT Budgets 

Page 8



 

For this current year the Challenge Trust Board mechanism was likely to help 
PCT’s deliver a balanced budget  but it was not likely to be continue into 
2011/12.It was noted that GP’s were likely to get together in respect of some 
functions such as around acute contracts. Nationwide, PCT’s were making 
reductions and a single management structure had been created. A paper 
setting out full financial details was due to go to the NCL Board on 20 January 
2011 seeking agreement to these changes.  

 

GP Commissioning development 
 
It was noted that all 5 GP consortia in NCL would be applying for Pathfinder 
status by March 2011 and would be coterminous with boroughs. Acute 
commissioning would remain at the NCL level for the time being. 

 

BEH Clinical Strategy 
 

NHS London was currently assessing the review of the Strategy against the 
four reconfiguration criteria set out in the revised operating framework for 
2010/11. It was noted that Enfield had raised opposition to the strategy as 
they considered that the four tests had not been met. Consequently meetings 
had been set up with the 3 local MP’s and Enfield were seeking agreement to 
referring the strategy back to the Secretary of State. 

 

10. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS 

 
 There was none 

 

11. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 

 

Agreed as follows:- 
 
25 March – Barnet 
27 May – Camden 
 
 
GIDEON BULL 
Chair 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Page 1of 6   

 

 
THE NHS IN NORTH CENTRAL LONDON 

 

BOROUGHS: BARNET, CAMDEN, 
ENFIELD, HARINGEY, ISLINGTON  
WARDS: ALL 
 

 

REPORT TITLE:   
NHS North Central London Transition and Governance Arrangements 
 

 

REPORT OF:   
Helen Pettersen 
Chief Executive, NHS Islington and  
Senior Responsible Officer for Transition, NHS North Central London 
  

 

FOR SUBMISSION TO:   

North Central London Joint Health Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

DATE: 25 March 2011 

 

 

 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

 
Members have requested information about the transition and new governance arrangements for 
the single management structure for the NHS North Central London (NCL) Cluster.  
 
This paper describes the NCL governance arrangements which will operate with a single 
management team and cluster board from 1 April 2011 in accordance with Department of Health 
(DH) guidance.  
 
Several papers regarding the new arrangements were presented at extraordinary Board meetings 
held in each of the NCL PCTs on 28 February 2011. These are available on each PCT’s website 
(see http://www.islington.nhs.uk/board-papers.htm). The key papers relating to governance and 
the staff appointment process have been provided for Members’ information as Appendices to 
this report. They include: 
 
• Composition of NCL Boards (Appendix 1) 
• Partnership Agreement for Joint Working of five statutory boards (Appendix 2) 
• Draft Governance Framework (including sources of assurance) (Appendix 3) 
• (Extract of) Report of the staff consultation process (Appendix 4) 

- Consultation chronology: summary of consultation activities and documentation 
November to March 2011 (Appendix 4.1)  

- NCL structure chart (Appendix 4.2)  
- Numbers of posts affected (Appendix 4.3). Members will note this shows a reduction in 
Director level posts from 42 down to 15 posts, if they are recruited to.  

- Appointments Process to the Single Management Team for PCTs in North Central 
London, as implemented from 17 December 2010  (Appendix 4.4) 

 
Staff in the five PCTs in NCL are currently undergoing a HR process to support the transition and 
the 54% management cost reduction required of London PCTs. Most staff are on redundancy 
notice while they await the outcome of the appointments process to confirm whether they secure 
a post in the NCL team.  

 

Agenda Item 5Page 11



 

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Page 2 of 6 

A local presence will remain in each Borough, under the leadership of a Borough Director. These 
borough teams will remain until commissioning responsibility is handed over the GPs in 2013. 
They will cover: GP development and local commissioning; joint commissioning (with the local 
authority); local finance; safeguarding adults and children; medicines management; continuing 
care; and GP information technology. 

Whilst it isn’t the role of the Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise an NHS 
staff consultation, we are sharing this information with you to provide as full as context as 
possible.  

Martin Machray will present this paper and respond to any Members’ questions on 25 March, on 
behalf of Helen Pettersen. 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  
Martin Machray 
Associate Director, Communications and Engagement 
NHS Islington 
martin.machray@islingtonpct.nhs.uk  
     

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Committee is asked to note this report and the appendices. 
 

 

SIGNED:  

 
Helen Pettersen 
Chief Executive, NHS Islington and Lead for Transition  
NHS North Central London 
 

DATE:  17 March 2011 

 

 

Page 12



 

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Page 3 of 6 

 

NHS NORTH CENTRAL LONDON TRANSITION  

AND GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

1. INTRODUCTION 

This paper describes the NHS North Central London (NCL) governance arrangements which 
will operate with a single management team and cluster board from 1 April 2011 in 
accordance with Department of Health (DH) guidance.  

2. BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT 

In November 2010 the Boards of the Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) in North Central London - 
Enfield, Haringey, Barnet, Islington and Camden PCTs gave approval in principle for the 
following: 

1) The establishment of a single executive team covering all five PCTs to manage the 
commissioning of services, strategic transformation and organisational change on behalf of 
the five PCTs; 

2) The designation of a single accountable officer for the five PCTs, with effect from 1 April 
2011; 

3) The revised governance arrangements for operating with a single management team; and  

4) The delegation of responsibility for the agreement of the detailed structures and 
implementation plan to Chief Executive Officers. 

3. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PCT CLUSTER IMPLEMENTATION GUIDANCE 

DH PCT cluster implementation guidance was issued on 31 January 2011. This sets out the 
conclusion that it will not be possible to retain effective management capacity in all PCTs until 
their abolition in 2013, presenting unacceptable risks to quality and financial management. In 
response, current PCTs will be retained as statutory organisations, in order not to add further 
to disruption from reorganisation, but there will be consolidation of management capacity, with 
single executive teams each managing a cluster of PCTs. These new clusters are not 
statutory bodies, nor are they permanent features of the landscape, but they are necessary to 
sustain PCT capability and enable the creation of the new system.  

4. NHS NCL’S PROPOSED CLUSTER GOVERNANCE CONFIGURATION 

NHS NCL has reviewed its proposed governance framework to ensure that it is compatible 
with the DH guidance.  

The underpinning principle is that the five statutory Boards will meet simultaneously and will 
transact business together, supporting each other through the breadth of joint discussion, 
building on the shared expertise across NHS Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey, and 
Islington, while maintaining the statutory responsibilities of each board as a legal entity, and 
the integrated single executive management arrangements will support all of the Boards. 

The five PCT Boards were asked to take resolutions on 28 February 2011 which confirm 
agreement to work to this governance framework as 5 PCT Boards working together and 
conducting business in joint meetings as a single cluster board. NHS NCL’s proposed cluster 

Page 13



 

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Page 4 of 6 

board configuration is consistent with the DH and Appointments Commission’s cluster model 
3.  

Appendix 1 demonstrates how NHS NCL proposes its cluster board arrangements will meet 
statutory requirements for board membership. 

5. NHS NCL’S PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

Central to NHS NCL’s new governance arrangements is a Partnership Agreement between 
the five NCL PCTs. The five PCT boards have already approved a draft Partnership 
Agreement, which describes: 

- how the five statutory Boards of NHS Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey, and Islington 
will work together from 1 April 2011;  

- how non-executive and executive directors will work across all five PCTs, and how 
they will relate to each individual PCT; and 

- an overview of proposals for Board sub-committees.  

The Partnership Agreement is intended to facilitate a new way of working and may be 
amended by the five boards as necessary.  There will need to be sufficient flexibility to enable: 

- the combined NHS North Central London Board to discharge its responsibilities in a 
manageable way without overly restrictive specification. 

- GP consortia to develop their own governance arrangements and for incremental 
delegation to GP Consortia to happen over time.  

The Partnership Agreement refers also to engagement with Local Authorities, LINks and GPs. 

Further work will be carried out to prepare core governance documentation and detailed 
operating arrangements (including standing orders, schemes of delegation and operation and 
standing financial instructions) for adoption by the cluster board in April 2011 to enable the 
NHS North Central London Board and single management team to operate effectively from 1 
April 2011. North Central London will continue to work with NHS London and other sectors to 
ensure that it follows guidance and benefits from exchanging good practice. 

6. UPDATES TO PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

The existing NCL Board and PCT Boards discussed a draft Partnership Agreement at PCT 
Board meetings in January – early February 2011. Building upon those discussions and 
further to legal advice from Capsticks relating to PCT regulations, the following amendments 
have been made: 

- Section 2.3 describing NED makeup of boards has been redrafted for clarity. 

- It is provided now that in the normal course of events the sector Director of Public 
Health (DPH) will attend the cluster board. In the absence of the sector DPH, one of 
the borough DPHs will deputise. In the event of specific business that relates to a 
particular borough and requires local expertise and advice, the borough DPHs will 
attend for that item; and 

- It is provided now that each PCT Board has to have nurse member who is a member 
of the Professional Executive Committee (PEC). Advice from Capsticks is that PCT 
regulations prohibit the nurse member from sitting on more than one PEC. In the 
normal course of events the nurse member of the sector executive management team 
will attend the cluster board. In the absence of the sector nurse, one of the borough 
PEC nurses will deputise. In the event of specific business that relates to a particular 

Page 14



 

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Page 5 of 6 

borough and requires local expertise and advice, the borough PEC nurse member will 
attend for that item. 

- Section 3.5 dealing with GP consortia has been revised to reflect emerging NHS 
London Guidance on consortia development. 

When the draft Partnership Agreement was circulated, it was noted that the arrangements for 
Audit Committee(s) was subject to further discussion with External Auditors. Those 
discussions have now taken place. The External Auditors raise no objection to the proposal 
that there should be a single Audit Chair holding that office in all 5 PCTs, and consider that a 
single joint audit committee or a structure of 5 audit committees with overlapping membership 
could work in practice. They felt that, for the sake of continuity, it would be desirable for the 
existing 5 PCT Audit Chairs to be asked to participate on a consultancy basis in the process 
for auditing and approving the 2010/11 accounts if they have not been appointed to the new 
boards.  

The External Auditors suggested that legal advice should be obtained, for assurance. Advice 
has been obtained from Capsticks. At the time of writing this paper the final advice note is not 
available, and it will be circulated separately. 

For clarity, the Partnership Agreement has been amended to distinguish between board 
committees which are required by regulations and those which are discretionary and may be 
agreed by the new cluster board when it starts up. 

7. IMPLEMENTING NHS NCL’S PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

It is proposed that NHS NCL Board meets for the first time as a Cluster Board on 7 April 2011. 
It will transact necessary business including adopting a corporate governance operating 
arrangements at that meeting.  

There has been ongoing discussion about capacity at local borough level and the possibility of 
local NED associates. The Partnership Agreement provides for each PCT board to appoint up 
to 2 Associate NEDs. The NCL Governance Group recommends that decisions about 
associate NEDs should be made by the  new PCT  Boards and Cluster Board  at its first 
meeting on 7 April 2011. 

8. SOURCES OF ASSURANCE 

We have used internal audit days from RSM Tenon to create a map of task and assurance 
processes against PCT statutory functions. It also includes a list of NHS toolkits, submissions 
and regulation that have to be completed for mapping on to functional areas. The mapping 
exercise is designed to clarify where responsibilities will fall. The sufficiency of resources to 
meet the identified responsibility, will  remain with the NCL CEO as Accountable Officer and 
the relevant NCL Directors when they are appointed, having regard to decisions about 
priorities made by the Cluster Board. 

The mapping exercise will help us meet the requirements set by the NCL Risk and Assurance 
Committee that by 31 March we can provide assurance that governance structures from 1 
April are resilient and appropriate; that organisational design is appropriate; and that business 
as usual activities and processes will operate effectively (i.e. business continuity). Appointees 
to Director roles will be asked to sign off on the responsibilities that fall to their directorates. 
The Governance Task Group has recommended that the NCL audit committee incorporate a 
review of the implementation of the mapping exercise within its 2011/12 work programme to 
ensure that the single management team has taken effective ownership of all PCT 
responsibilities, and that nothing has been overlooked.  

Page 15



 

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Page 6 of 6 

In addition to the mapping exercise, Capsticks will be undertaking an assurance process on 
behalf of NHS London. The work will be carried out by Colin Lynch and David Gibson, who 
have not been involved with the development of any of the individual sector proposals. They 
will be ensuring that each sector’s framework satisfies the requirements of the Operating 
Framework; the PCT Cluster Implementation Guidance; and the relevant legislation. NHS 
London provided Capsticks with a checklist of the main tests which apply. We are in the 
process of preparing our proposals for submission shortly. 

9. PCT BOARD RESOLUTIONS 

PCT Boards met on Monday, 28 February and resolved to: 

- terminate the Joint Committee of PCTs (JCPCT) and existing Establishment Agreement on 
31 March 2011 as it is acknowledged that the JCPCT is now defunct; and  

- adopt the NHS NCL Partnership Agreement to run from 1 April 2011.  

10.  NEXT STEPS 

Implementation of the Partnership Agreement will be a matter for the new NHS North Central 
London Cluster Board to resolve. Views from existing PCT Boards will feed into this process. 

An integrated continuity plan for PCT Boards will soon be prepared. PCT Board secretaries 
have been asked to supply details of work programmes, commitments and decisions 
outstanding. 

In consultation with the Delivery Board, a model agenda will be drawn up for PCT March 
Board meetings so that close-down work is carried out consistently. 

 
Helen Pettersen 

Chief Executive, NHS Islington and  
Senior Responsible Officer for Transition, NHS North Central London 

  

 

Page 16



 

1 
 

  
Appendix 1 

 
 
 
COMPOSITION OF NCL BOARDS          

Statutory PCT Boards Joint Board Joint Board

Chair Chair Chair

Vice Chair 

LOCAL NED 1

Vice Chair NED

Barnet

Vice Chair NED

Camden

Vice Chair NED

Enfield

Vice Chair NED

Haringey

Vice Chair NED

Islington
Vice Chair x 5

Audit Chair Audit Chair
Audit Chair

LOCAL NED 2   NED B NED C NED E NED H NED I

NED x 5NED 3  (Shared) NED C NED E NED H NED I NED B

NED 4 (Shared) NED VC E NED VC H NED VC I NED VC B NED VC C

6 12

CEO Chief Executive CEO

DOF Director of Finance DOF

DPH (See Note) Director of Public Health DPH (See Note)

Nurse (See Note) Nurse Nurse (See Note)

PEC Chair PEC Chair B PEC Chair C PEC Chair E PEC Chair  H PEC Chair I PEC Chairs x5 

5 9

11 PCT 1 PCT 2 PCT 3 PCT 4 PCT 5 21

Up to 2 Associate NED 

(s) 

5 x GP Consortia Representatives 5

5 x Local Authority Representatives 5

5 x LiNK Representatives 5

North Central London Boards - February 2011

 
 
NOTES  
 
DPH   - The DPH on each PCT Board will be the current local DPH. At joint Board meetings, the Cluster 
designated DPH will normally be the only DPH present.  In her absence one of the other DPH’s will deputise. 
In the event there is specific business relating to one PCT the local DPH will attend for that business. 
 
Nurse – (Under PEC Membership Regulations, each PEC must have a nurse member, and each PCT Board 
must include 2 members nominated by the PEC, one of whom must be a nurse). The Nurse on each PCT 
Board will be the Nurse nominated by the PEC. At joint Board meetings, the Cluster Director of Quality 
(Nurse) will normally be the only nurse present. In the absence of that person, one of the other PCT Board 
Nurse members will deputise. In the event there is specific business relating to one PCT the local Board 
Nurse member will attend for that business. 
 
Sharing of NEDs – the distribution of NEDs shown above is for illustration only. Allocation of NEDS to Boards 
will be made at the time of appointment of NEDS 

Page 17



 

2 
 

 
Appendix 2 

 
NHS NORTH CENTRAL LONDON 

PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT FOR JOINT WORKING OF FIVE STATUTORY PCT BOARDS 
 

1. BACKGROUND 
 
This Partnership Agreement sets out the working arrangements for the five statutory 
Boards of NHS Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey, and Islington in north central London 
working together. 
Since July 2009 the five statutory Boards for NHS Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey, and 
Islington have been working together sharing acute commissioning and strategic planning 
functions governed by the Joint Committee of PCTs. Collective working was enhanced in 
June 2010 with a revised establishment agreement and the setting up of a Sector Board.  
In response to the challenge of reducing management costs by 54% in NCL and in light of 
the White Paper: Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS, the five PCTs of NHS Barnet, 
Camden, Enfield, Haringey, and Islington are coming together to share executive and non-
executive capacity and governance.  
This Partnership Agreement is designed to describe the way the five statutory Boards will 
work together. It provides a framework, and allows for more details to be added or reflected 
in other supporting documents such as the scheme of delegation.  It sets out how the Non 
Executive and Executive Directors will work across all 5 PCTs and how they will relate to 
each individual PCT. 
 

2. PRINCIPLES 
 
The shared governance and integrated working arrangements are designed to maximise 
capacity and capability, simplify tiers of management and enable flexible pace of 
development of the emerging GP consortia. The principles are as follows: 
 

2.1 Design Principles  
 

i. The collective governance arrangements are based on each of the five PCTs 
continuing as statutory bodies until the legislation enacting the white paper, Equity 
and Excellence: Liberating the NHS is in place.   The new shared governance 
agreement reflects the requirement set out in the Operating Framework to establish 
clusters so as to offer capacity to emerging GP consortia and reduce running costs. 

 
ii. The shared governance will be achieved by the five statutory PCT Boards coming 

together to transact business and effectively to meet as Joint Boards. This will be 
the normal mode of operation. Each statutory Board may where essential meet 
separately to conduct local business. Through the Joint Boards, each Board 
continues to retain the right to delegate functions and establish formal sub-
committees or joint committees for particular purposes as appropriate. 

 
iii. Each PCT receives a financial allocation for its population and must meet the costs 

of NHS health care for that population. Where costs are shared, the shares will be 
attributed pro rata under an allocation formula agreed by the Boards (such as ration 
of weighted capitation).  As at present PCTs can agree to risk sharing and risk 
pooling arrangements (as they do for example for specialised commissioning)  

 
iv. Budgets, targets and performance management as required will apply individually to 

each PCT to ensure clear and transparent accountability for services and a clear 
audit trail. 

 

Page 18



 

3 
 

v. Standing Orders, Standing Financial Instructions and the Scheme of Delegation and 
reserved matters will be adopted by all five PCTs. 

 
vi. Principal objectives for NHS Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey, and Islington will 

be agreed and approved by the Joint Boards, and will form the basis of a joint Board 
Assurance Framework. 

 
2.2 Arrangements in Common: Joint Boards 
 

i. One Chair who is the Chair for each of the five PCTs. 
 
ii. One Audit Chair who is Chair of Audit for each of the five PCTs. 
 
iii. A total of 10 Non Executive Directors (NEDs) whose responsibilities will be 

corporate as well as PCT specific, which can be achieved via The Primary Care 
Trusts (Membership, Procedure and Administration Arrangements) Amendment 
Regulations 2010. NEDs will need to be clear when making decisions which role 
they are fulfilling.  

 
iv. One Accountable Officer/Chief Executive who is the Accountable Officer/Chief 

Executive for each of the five PCTs. 
 
v. One Finance Director who is the statutory Finance Director for each of the five 

PCTs. 
 
vi. One Director of Public Health.  
 
vii. Five PEC Chairs  
 
viii. One Nurse Member 

 
2.3 Arrangements distinct to each PCT Board 
 

i. A Vice Chair will be appointed for each of the PCTs providing leadership for local 
business including partnerships, projects and local transition and effective interface 
with the Joint Boards. Each Vice-Chair will be appointed to his/her Board from the 
existing complement of Chair and NEDs for that PCT. Remuneration of the Vice 
Chair will be as determined by NHS London and the Appointments Commission. 

 
ii. Each PCT Board will have a Chair (common to all five), and five NEDs (the 

minimum provided for in statutory regulations).  One of those five will be the Audit 
Chair (an appointment common to all PCTs). The other four NEDs will be made up 
of two NEDs  appointed to the board from the existing complement of Chair and 
NEDs for that PCT and two NEDs appointed from amongst the NED Members (and 
Vice-Chairs) of other PCTs in NCL (all appointed in accordance with those same 
principles).   In total there will a Chair and 11  NEDs across all the PCTs in NCL ( 
one audit chair, 5 vice chairs and 5 other NEDs).   

 
iii. Each PCT Board will have 5 Executive Members, consisting of the Cluster CEO and 

DoF, the local DPH and two Members nominated by each PCTs Professional 
Executive Committee, one being the Chairperson and including a GP and a Nurse 
member.  

 
iv. With agreement of the Joint Boards, each PCT Board may also appoint up to two of 

Associate (Consultant) NEDs who will have specific responsibilities in respect of 
aspects of the PCT Board’s work at borough level (or corporately in committees). 

 

Page 19



 

4 
 

 
 
3. MEETINGS OF THE FIVE STATUTORY BOARDS (JOINT BOARDS) 
 
3.1 The combined  membership will maintain  a majority of NEDs including the chair. 
 
3.2 Board Executive members (voting) 

3.2.1 Shared members: 
i. Chief Executive/Accountable Officer 
ii. Director of Finance 
iii.  One Nurse Member. 
iv. One Director of Public Health 
 

3.2.2 Local members:  
 

i. One PEC Chair per PCT 
 

3.2.3 Total Executive members are four shared and five local (Total 9).  
3.2.4 The Local DPH and Nurse Member for a PCT will attend if there is business specific 

to that PCT.  
 

3.3 Non Executive Director members (voting) 
3.3.1 Total voting NED members are 12.  Associate NEDs will not be voting members and 

will not attend meetings of the Joint Boards unless invited. 
 

i. Chair 
ii. Audit Chair 
iii. Five Vice Chairs 
iv. Five Non Executive Directors 

 
3.4 Observers (non-voting)  
 

3.4.1 The Joint Boards will invite attendance from the following as observers with 
speaking rights (subject always to the discretion of the Chair): 
 

i. GP consortia representatives, one per PCT 
ii. Local authority representatives, one per PCT 
iii. LINK representatives, one per PCT. 

 
3.5 Flexibility for developing GP consortia 
 

PCTs are required by statute to have PECs, and they have to nominate two Board 
members including a GP and a nurse.  These are the sole requirements.  This provides 
considerable flexibility as consortia develop to meet the statutory requirements from the 
proposed Consortia governance models.  
  

i. During the development period for  GP Consortia (GPC)  governance arrangements 
will operate in accordance with NHS London guidance for consortia Development. 
Shadow GPC with delegated commissioning responsibilities and budgets will 
operate as committees of the relevant PCT as  they will not be a formally 
established entity until April 2013. As the development of GPCs  and Health and 
Wellbeing Boards  gathers pace NEDs and Executive working arrangements will 
need to be reviewed. The role of the Joint Boards in relation to the GPCs when they 
are established will be performance management until these responsibilities transfer 
to the National Commissioning Board.  

 
 

Page 20



 

5 
 

 
 

3.6 Board meetings  
 

• The five PCT Boards will meet simultaneously and will support each other through 
the breadth of joint discussion, building on the shared expertise across NHS Barnet, 
Camden, Enfield, Haringey, and Islington and the single integrated executive 
management arrangements which support the Boards.  
 

• Arrangements for the meetings of the Joint Boards will be set out in Standing 
Orders, and the Board meetings will be conducted with due compliance. 

 

• Meetings of the Joint Boards will take place in public on alternate months; in the 
intervening month the boards will meet in seminar sessions. Standing Orders will 
provide for the calling of Extraordinary Meetings. The public meetings will be held as 
far as possible on a rotational basis in each borough. 

 

• Each PCT Board must be quorate (as defined in Standing Orders) at the meeting of 
the Joint Boards.  

 

• Each PCT will appoint a Vice Chair whose role is to provide a leadership with local 
partners and a link to the Joint Boards. One of the Vice Chairs will be identified to 
deputise for the Chair of the Joint Boards.  .  

 

• An annual cycle of business will be prepared which will be agreed by the Joint 
Boards which will ensure that agenda items are planned to meet the business of all 
five PCT Boards, whilst responding where appropriate to the specific needs of each 
PCT. 

 

• Agenda items and associated reports will where appropriate refer to the specifics of 
each PCT e.g. with regard to budgets, performance, capital schemes and health 
needs.  

 

• Agendas for the Joint Boards meeting will be agreed by the Chief Executive and 
Chair with input from all Board members in accordance with the recent guidance on 
board governance – ‘Healthy NHS Boards: Principles of Good Governance’: 
February 2010, National Leadership Council.  

 

• In accordance with Standing Orders, members of the public and representatives of 
the press will be asked to withdraw at the end of the public session of Joint Boards 
meeting to enable confidential matters to be discussed. 

 

• Confidential issues will be dealt with under a separate agenda and minuted as 
confidential. 

 

• It will be a convention enshrined in Standing Orders that in discussion of matters 
pertaining to a specific PCT Board, members of the other Boards will acknowledge 
that whilst they may feel able to contribute to the discussion, the primary discussion 
and decision making on the matter will rest with the relevant PCT Board members. 

 

• Where a matter requires a vote, only statutory voting Board members of each Board 
will vote.  

 

• Where a matter requiring a vote pertains to all five PCTs, voting will be by PCT. If at 
least four of the PCT Boards vote in favour of a proposal it will be adopted equally 
by all five PCTs. 

Page 21



 

6 
 

 

• Where a matter requiring a vote pertains specifically to one PCT only the voting 
members of that PCT will vote. 

 
3.7 Seminar sessions 

 
Seminar sessions in private will be planned in the corporate calendar to enable deeper 
discussion on individual subjects/issues, and within which Board development will be 
undertaken. Agenda planning will be flexible to facilitate programming of topics raised by 
NEDs. 
 

3.8 Joint Committees 
 
The Joint Boards will establish committees which will be integrated across the five PCTs 
which are required by regulation and which are: 
 

i. Joint Audit Committee 
ii. Joint Pay and Remuneration Committee 

 
The Joint Boards may establish other committees, to be agreed by the cluster board when 
it starts up. It is envisaged that at the outset there will be the following committees each to 
be chaired by a NED or in the case of Quality and Safety a clinician (with NED 
membership).  Others may be identified.   
 

iii. Financial Stability Committee 
iv. Joint Strategy and Commissioning Committee 
v. Joint Quality & Safety Committee. 

 
4. OTHER COLLECTIVE AND LOCAL ARRANGEMENTS  

 
a. Shared business and working arrangements 

 
The five PCTs will continue to build on collective working arrangements for strategic 
planning and clinical leadership, reviewing these as appropriate as GP consortia develop. 
All PCT Boards retain the right to establish Joint Committees with other PCTs as 
appropriate to conduct business in common e.g. consultation on major service changes 
across London. 
 

b. Individual PCT Board meetings 
 

4.2.1 Each PCT Board retains the right to meet individually to conduct specific local 
business in exceptional circumstances 

4.2.2 Committees may be set up in each PCT to take forward the business of the Joint 
Boards, including with specific delegated responsibility.  The arrangements will need 
to be flexible during the transition period and reflect the development of GP 
consortia and Health &Wellbeing Boards. 

 
  4.3 Local clinical commissioning 

Each PCT will build on its clinical commissioning arrangements to support the development 
of the emerging GP consortia, in collaboration with the local authority and LINks. A PEC 
Chair will be required to fulfil the statutory role in each PCT until such time as this is no 
longer a statutory requirement, and/or it is superseded by legislation relating to the formal 
establishment of GP Consortia. 
 

4.4 Local leadership and relationship management 
The local PCT Vice-Chair, the local NED (NEDs), the PEC Chair and any Associate NEDs 
in each PCT will play a key role in: 

Page 22



 

7 
 

i. Supporting and guiding the Borough Director and local PCT staff team and 
overseeing local projects and programmes within the programme set by the Joint 
Boards. 
 

ii. Developing and supporting productive partnerships between the emerging GP 
Consortia, the local Authority, LINks and 3rd Sector. 

 
iii. Sharing an understanding of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), existing 

partnership arrangements, local commissioning issues and local performance. 
 

5. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
This Partnership Agreement is voluntarily entered into and will be observed and adhered to 
by all five PCTs, but it is not an enforceable legal agreement. It follows that there is the 
potential for unresolved disputes on points of interpretation or application of this 
Agreement. If the Chair and Vice Chairs cannot between them agree to resolve a dispute 
between the five PCTs and broker agreement with their Boards, then they or the Chief 
Executive will refer the matter to the SHA for mediation or arbitration. Arbitration will be a 
last resort – the Chair and Vice Chairs will take all reasonable steps to resolve any dispute, 
including any discussion needed to seek compromise with Board members (executive and 
non-executive). 
 

6. REVIEW OF THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT  
 

 The effectiveness of the working arrangements under this Agreement will be reviewed 
every six months and more frequently if necessary, in the light of changing circumstances 
and when one or more GP Consortia reach the Intermediate Stage. 

 
7. SIGNATURES 

 
Signed for and on behalf of NHS Barnet; NHS Camden; NHS Enfield; NHS Haringey; and 
NHS Islington by the five PCT Chairs: 
 

NHS Barnet 
Name 
 
Signature 
 
Date 

NHS Camden 
Name 
 
Signature 
 
Date 

  
NHS Enfield 
Name 
 
Signature 
 
Date 

NHS Haringey 
Name 
 
Signature 
 
Date 

NHS Islington 
Name 
 
Signature 
 
Date 

 

 

Page 23



 

8 
 

 
Appendix 3 

 

 
 

Draft Governance Framework  
(including Sources of Assurance) 

 
This framework draws substantially on work developed in South West London. It has been 
amended to reflect the local circumstances and agreements in North Central London. We 

acknowledge South West London’s contribution to our work. 
 

The governance framework will form the basis upon which the new NHS North Central London 
Board will operate from 1 April 2011. It is acknowledged that there will need to be sufficient 
flexibility within this to enable: 

- the combined NHS North Central London Board to discharge its responsibilities in a 
manageable way without overly restrictive specification. 

- GP consortia to develop their own governance arrangements and for incremental 
delegation to GP Consortia to happen over time.  

The proposed arrangements are set out in a draft Partnership Agreement between the five NCL 
PCTs.  This sets out: 

• how the five statutory Boards of NHS Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey, and Islington 
will work together from 1 April 2011;  

• how non-executive and executive directors will work across all five PCTs, and how they 
will relate to each individual PCT; and 

• an overview of proposals for Board sub-committees.  
 

The Partnership Agreement sets out a framework for joint working in North Central London.  
Further work will be carried out on the operating arrangements including standing orders, 
schemes of delegation and operation and standing financial instructions to enable the NHS 
North Central London Board and single management team to operate effectively from 1 April 
2011. North Central London will continue to work with NHS London and other sectors to ensure 
that it follows guidance and benefits from exchanging good practice. 

 

Page 24



 

9 
 

 

DRAFT GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK  
(including SOURCES OF ASSURANCE) 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

The North Central London (NCL) Board was established in 2009 to support collective working 
across the five PCTs in NCL to strengthen commissioning arrangements. The staffing structures to 
support these arrangements were put in place from autumn 2009. Since the establishment of the 
NCL Board there have been two particular changes to the context in which we work. The first is the 
tightening public sector finances. The Operating Framework for the NHS in England 2010/11 
highlighted the need to significantly reduce management costs across PCTs.  In London the 
requirement is a 54% reduction in management costs. The second significant change to the 
context is the proposals set out in the July White Paper “Equity and Excellence – Liberating the 
NHS” which signals a fundamental change to the structure of the NHS, including the introduction of 
GP commissioning consortia. 
 
The management cost reduction is a key driver to enable investment in the maintenance and 
development of services, as well as providing funding to support the new commissioning 
arrangements. NHS London, which has overall responsibility for the transition from current to the 
new NHS structures, made it clear that it expects to use the existing sectors as the transitional 
vehicle in London. NHS London will also monitor the management cost reduction target for the 
sector as a whole rather than by individual PCT. To enable this, PCT Boards agreed to establish a 
single management team for NCL to enable key functions to be carried out with significantly 
reduced management resource and to reduce duplication. 
 
The NCL Board concluded that the reduction required in management costs meant that the current 
operational model is not viable, and that we need to do more things once and fewer functions five 
or six times across the patch. The Board also decided that it would be appropriate to reorganise 
management functions with a view to the future organisational form of the NHS whilst maintaining 
a focus on the delivery of key functions in the short term. The reorganisation of management 
functions has also considered the views of key stakeholders, particularly GPs and Local 
Authorities. 
 
2.  NCL’S PRIORITIES FOR THE TRANSITIONAL PERIOD 
 
During this period of substantial change, NHS NCL has agreed that to retain focus on the key 
priorities for health in North Central London, which are: 

 

− Improving health outcomes for the population of North Central London; 

− Financial recovery through effective service commissioning; 

− Service change and transformation, with a focus on primary care; 

− Assuring the quality and safety of services provided to patients in our communities; and 

− Managing the transition to new commissioning arrangements for the NHS in NCL including GP 
Commissioning Consortia and the local authority role in Public Health. 
 
The structure and governance for the new management arrangements must support the delivery of 
these key objectives across all of five PCTs in NCL. 
 
 
2. PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT 
 
2.1   The primary purpose of this draft Governance Framework document is to describe in more 

detail the revised governance arrangements reached thus enabling those arrangements to 
be embedded effectively and to aid better understanding of them. It includes a Partnership 
Agreement for the five statutory Boards, emerging thinking on Board sub-committee 
structures, details of accountability arrangements as well as Executive Director roles and 

Page 25



 

10 
 

responsibilities.  A corporate calendar and annual cycle of business for the statutory Boards 
will be developed in due course once the Board sub-committee structure has been agreed. 

 
2.2   The document describes the Governance arrangements (which are the system for controlling 

and directing the organisation to meet its objectives).  It also sets out the assurance 
arrangements (both internal and external) upon which the organisation relies to ensure that 
its governance arrangements are working effectively.  Details of these are provided in 
Section 10.   
 

2.3  This document will need to be read alongside NCL’s Risk Management Strategy when 
published and its corporate risk register. Five PCT registers together with the sector risk 
register will be consolidated into a single risk register by 1 April 2011. This register draws 
together the high level risks to which the organisation are exposed together with details of 
the controls for managing them. This single Risk Register will be subject to regular review 
by the Joint Boards as statutory Boards meeting jointly as well as the proposed single NCL 
Audit Committee.   

 
2.5 These governance and assurance arrangements will be reviewed after six months following 

agreement to their implementation in April 2011, then annually (or more frequently if 
required) to ensure that they reflect the needs of the organisation and current NHS 
guidance and best practice.  It is noted that The NHS National Leadership Council is 
leading a project to renew Governing the NHS: A Guide for NHS Boards, originally 
published by the Appointments Commission and the Department of Health in 2003 and 
upon which the governance framework within this document is based.  The revised 
guidance was published in February 2010 (The Healthy Board; Principles for Good 
Governance) and will be incorporated in future reviews of this document 

 
2.6 The NCL Organisational Development and Transitional Programme has developed 

alongside NCL’s proposed new governance framework. The new organisational structure 
creates the accountability and ownership to take governance forward. As team members 
come into new posts they will lead on relevant areas. Working with Internal Audit, NCL has 
used an assurance mapping process to ensure that it is clear where duties and 
responsibilities fall. 

 
3.  TERMINOLOGY USED IN THIS DOCUMENT 
 
3.1 Governance 
 

A basic definition of (corporate) governance is: 
“the system by which an organisation is directed and controlled, at its most senior 
levels, in order to achieve its objectives and meet the necessary standards of 
accountability, probity and openness”. 

 
Governance is concerned with the systems, controls, accountabilities and decision-making 
at the highest level of the organisation. It is about the way the organisation leads and 
manages through its values (in the public sector of accountability, probity and openness) 
and its systems (such as governance structures and risk management). 

 
3.2 Governance Framework 
 

The governance framework describes the structure and systems that are in place to “direct 
and control” the organisation. For NHS NCL these are the Committee structures, 
management arrangements, Standing Orders, Standing Financial Instructions, Scheme of 
Delegation and risk management strategy. These arrangements also provide the 
“assurance” that the organisation relies on to know that its governance arrangements are 
effective. 

 

Page 26



 

11 
 

For the purpose of this document we are confining the definition of governance framework 
to our Committee structures and high level management arrangements, reflecting strategic 
and operational accountabilities. 

 
3.3 Assurance 
 

Assurance is the positive evidence that the controls are managing a given risk and it is 
likely that the objective will be achieved.  There are a wide variety of sources of assurance 
available to the Joint Boards, both internal and external and these are described at Section 
10. 

 
The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) is a key document that sets out the organisation’s 
principal objectives and the risks to achieving them, along with the controls in place and 
assurances available on their operation. It forms a key part of the annual statutory 
requirement for completion of the Statement on Internal Control, which provides 
confirmation that the governance and assurance arrangements for the organisation are 
operating as they should be. 

 
3.4 Risk Management 
 

Risk Management is a key element of the governance framework and its components are 
described as follows; 

 
Risk is the chance that something will happen that will have an impact on the achievement 
of NHS NCL objectives. It is measured in terms of likelihood (frequency or probability of the 
risk occurring) and severity (impact or magnitude of the effect of the risk occurring).  
Risk Assessment is the process for identifying, analysing, evaluating, controlling, 
monitoring and communicating risk. 
Risk Management is the culture, processes and structures that are directed towards the 
effective management of potential opportunities and adverse effects.  

3.5 Glossary of Terms 
 

A detailed glossary of terms relating to Corporate Governance is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
4.  STRATEGIC AND OPERATIONAL ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
4.1 The Role of the statutory Boards (as set out in the NHS Reform and Health Care 

Professions Act 2002)  
 

The board has collective responsibility for 

• Adding value to, and promoting the success of the organisation. 

• Providing leadership to the organisation within a framework of prudent and effective 
controls 

• Setting strategic direction, ensuring management capacity and capability, and 
monitoring and managing performance. 

• Safeguarding values and ensuring the organisation’s obligations to its key 
stakeholders are met. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

12 
 

Non Executive Directors on the Board share responsibility with other directors for the 
success of the organisation and the role of the Board set out above.  However they have a 
special role to play within the Board team providing an independent view which is removed 
from the day-to-day running of the organisation.  In line with the duties of non-executives in 
the private sector set out by Higgs1, they have the following duties: 
 

• Constructively challenging and contributing to the development of strategy. 

• Scrutinising the performance of management in meeting goals and 
standards, and monitoring the reporting of performance and service quality. 

• Satisfying themselves that financial information is accurate and that financial 
controls and system of risk management are robust and defensible. 

• Determining appropriate levels of remuneration of executive directors, and 
prime role in appointment, and where necessary removal, of senior 
management and in succession planning 

• Ensuring the board acts in the best interests of the public and other 
stakeholders and is fully accountable for the services provided and the 
public funds used. 

 
The Joint Boards will continue to fulfil this responsibility. They will maintain their statutory 
responsibility conducting their business in concert as Boards meeting jointly. 
 

4.2  The Role of the PCT Chair 
 

The Chair is responsible for 

• Leadership of the board, ensuring its effectiveness on all aspects of its role and 
setting its agenda. 

• Ensuring the provision of accurate, timely and clear information to directors. 

• Arranging the regular evaluation of the performance of the board, its committees 
and individual directors. 

• Facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive directors and ensuring 
constructive relations between executive and non-executive directors. 

 
Although appointed by the NHS Appointments Commission on behalf of the local 
community, the Non Executive Directors report to the NHS NCL Chair, who is the Chair of 
the five PCTs. The Chair has a duty to meet with and support the NEDs to ensure that they 
are able to perform their role effectively. 

 
4.3 Chief Executive as Accountable Officer 
 
 The NHS NCL Chief Executive is accountable to each of the statutory Boards for meeting 

their objectives and, as Accountable Officer, to the Chief Executive of the NHS for the 
performance of the organisation, via the Strategic Health Authority. It is  recognised that 
this is likely to transfer to the National Commissioning Board subject to legislation. As 
Accountable Officer for each of the statutory Boards the Chief Executive has responsibility 
for ensuring that the organisation meets all its statutory and legal requirements and 
adheres to guidance issued by the Department of Health in respect of governance. This 
responsibility encompasses the elements of financial control, organisational control, clinical 
and information governance, health and safety and risk management. The Chief Executive 
is required to sign off the Statement on Internal Control for each PCT Board annually in 
keeping with these responsibilities. 

 
 
 

                                                      
1 1 Review of the Role and Effectiveness of Non-Executive Directors. D Higgs (2003) 

Page 28



 

13 
 

Whilst this overall responsibility is maintained, responsibilities for some aspects of 
governance have been delegated to statutory Board executive directors as follows, 
including:  
 
Clinical Governance Medical Director for the five PCTs who will 

work with the Professional Executive 
Committee Chairs for each PCT 
 

Corporate Governance & Strategic 
Risk Management 
 

Director of Finance 
 

Financial Governance Director of Finance  
(appointed as Accounting Officer for each of 
the 5 PCTs) 
 

Information Governance Director of Finance  
 

 
The Director of Infection Prevention and Control (DIPC) role will be undertaken by the 
Medical Director or Directors of Public Health through expert advice from the nursing and 
infection control to the Board.  
 
The responsibilities of the Chief Executive, in addition to the significant leadership and 
managerial elements of the role are to ensure that the Boards are empowered to govern 
the Trusts and that the objectives they set are accomplished through effective and properly 
controlled executive action. 
 
The Chief Executive’s roles and responsibilities cover: 
 

• Leadership - helping to create the vision for the board and the organisation to 
modernise and improve services, with the skill to communicate this vision to others 
and the ability to empower them to deliver the PCTs’ agendas. 

 

• Delivery planning - by ensuring that the Board has sufficient information to agree the 
Strategic and Quality, Innovation, Prevention and Productivity Plan (QIPP) and/or 
service level agreements (SLAs) that meet the NHS Operating Framework and 
other priorities and that are based on realistic estimates of physical, workforce, 
financial capacity and patient and public involvement. 

 

• Performance management - by ensuring that the Boards’ plans and objectives are 
implemented and that progress towards implementation is regularly reported to the 
Boards using accurate systems of measurement and data management, such 
information being  regular and timely. By agreeing the objectives of the senior 
executive team and reviewing their performance. 

 

• Governance - by ensuring that the systems on which the Boards rely to govern the 
organisation are effective. This will enable the Chief Executive to sign the annual 
Statement on Internal Control on behalf of the respective Boards, to state that the 
systems of governance, including financial governance and risk management, are 
properly controlled. 

 
4.4 Role of the Professional Executive Committee Chair  

 
The Professional Executive Committee (PEC) Chairs are required by statue.  They are 
responsible for clinical leadership within each PCT.  Arrangements will need to be agreed in 
each PCT as GP Commissioning Consortia emerge to make sure that the statutory 
requirements for PECs are met as these new governance structures develop.   

Page 29



 

14 
 

 
5.  BOARD GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
5.1 The statutory Boards’ governance arrangements are set out in the NHS NCL Partnership 

Agreement (Appendix 2) which has been put to all PCT Boards to agree in late February 
2011.  These describe clear principles for integrated working, the ways in which the 
statutory Boards will work together and, in the unlikely event, a mechanism for resolving 
disputes between the PCTs.  

 
5.2 This Governance Framework will be supplemented with a scheme of corporate governance 

which includes Standing Orders, a Scheme of Delegation and Schedule of Matters 
Reserved to the Board, and Standing Financial Instructions. The matters reserved to the 
Board comprise: 

• Regulations and controls 

• Appointments and dismissals 

• Strategy, Annual Operational Plan and Budgets 

• Audit 

• Annual Reports and Accounts  

• Monitoring 
 
5.3 Key features of the revised governance arrangements that will be in place from 1 April 

2011 include: 
 

• The five statutory Boards will meet simultaneously and will support each other 
through the breadth of joint discussion, building on the shared expertise across NHS 
Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey, and Islington and the single integrated 
executive management arrangements which support the Boards.  
 

• Board meetings will be conducted with due compliance with Standing Orders. 

• Each Board must be quorate at the meeting of the Joint Boards.  

• Each PCT will appoint a Vice Chair whose role in addition to being a member of the 
Joint Boards is to provide local leadership.  

• An annual cycle of business which will ensure that agenda items are planned to 
meet the business of all five PCT Boards, whilst responding where appropriate to 
the specific needs of each PCT.  

• Agenda items and associated reports will, where appropriate, refer to the specifics 
of each PCT eg with regard to budgets, capital schemes and health needs.  

• In accordance with Standing Orders, members of the public and representatives of 
the press will be asked to withdraw at the end of part one of the Joint Boards 
meeting to enable confidential matters to be discussed.   

• Confidential issues will be dealt with under a separate agenda and minuted as 
confidential. 

• It will be a convention enshrined in Standing Orders that in discussion of matters 
pertaining to a specific PCT Board, members of the other Boards will acknowledge 
that whilst they may support discussion, primary discussion and decision making on 
the matter will rest with the relevant PCT Board members. 

• Where a matter requires a vote, only statutory Board members of each Board will 
vote. 

Page 30



 

15 
 

• Where a matter requires a vote which pertains specifically to one PCT only the 
Voting members of that PCT will vote. 

5.4      Non Executive Director appointments 

The framework proposes 12 voting Non Executive Director posts: a Chair; Audit Chair; five 
Vice Chairs; five Non Executive Directors. This means that each PCT has two local Non 
Executive Directors and two pooled Non Executive Directors. The Vice Chairs would be in 
the pool of Non Executive Director posts, meaning that each Non Executive Director will be 
on two PCT Boards. This proposal is designed to create capacity and resilience for PCT 
Boards. 
 
There is ongoing discussion about the capacity at borough level and the possibility of local 
associates. 
 

6 CORE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE STRUCTURE 

 
6.1 In order to deliver the Principal Objectives and the strategic priorities within the NHS NCL 

Strategic Plan and Quality, Innovation, Prevention and Productivity (QIPP) Plan, the Boards 
will establish relevant sub-Committees, the remits of which are still under discussion. 

 
6.2 Each Committee is authorised by the statutory Boards of the PCTs to pursue any activity 

within their Terms of Reference and within the Scheme of Reservation and Delegation. 
They are required to comply with: 

 

• the PCTs’ Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions 

• the PCTs’ Conflict Of Interest Policy 

• the section of the PCTs’ Scheme of Delegation which refers to the committee. 
 
 
6 BOARD COMMITTEES 
  
The statutory Boards will establish a single Joint Audit Committee and a Joint Remuneration and 
Terms of Services Committee which will be integrated across the five PCTs. All other Board sub-
committees are being determined. Should functions be delegated to pathfinder GP consortia until 
2013 PCT Board sub-committees will be established and will adopt the NHS London model terms 
of reference and scheme of delegation. 
 
7.1 Single Audit Committee (that is meeting of each PCTs’ Audit Committees jointly) 

In line with the requirements of the NHS Audit Committee Handbook and NHS Codes of 
Conduct and Accountability, the five statutory Boards propose to establish a Joint Audit 
Committee. The Committees will provide each of the five Boards with an independent and 
objective review of their financial systems, financial information and compliance with laws, 
guidance, and regulations governing the NHS. The Committees’ cycle of business will 
include a review of an integrated Boards Assurance Framework and corporate risk 
register.  The Committees are non-executive committees of the Joint Boards and have no 
executive powers, other than those specifically delegated. Accounts will continue to be 
produced for each of the five PCTs. Terms of reference for the single Audit Committee are 
under discussion and will be in place by 1 April 2011. 

Reporting arrangements: The formal minutes of Joint Audit Committee meetings shall be 
recorded and submitted to the Joint Boards. The Audit Chair shall draw to the attention of 
the Joint Boards any issues that require disclosure, or require executive action. 

The Audit Committee will report to the Joint Boards annually on its work in support of the 
Statements on Internal Control, specifically commenting on the fitness for purpose of the 
governance and assurance arrangements, the extent to which it considers the application 

Page 31



 

16 
 

of risk management as a discipline to be embedded within the organisation, and the 
appropriateness of the self-assessment against the Care Quality Commission standards. 
The single Audit Committee will ensure each PCT completes their annual accounts.  

7.2 Joint Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee 
 

The Committee is established to advise on and make recommendations to the Statutory 
Boards in respect of the remuneration and terms of service for the Chief Executive, 
Directors and other officer members paid through the Very Senior Manager Pay 
Framework.  The Committee will also take decisions on appointment, remuneration and 
terms of service for the Clinical Executive Committee in line with Department of Health 
guidance.  
 
Reporting arrangements: The membership of the Committee for each of its meetings 
should be recorded and recommendations should be formally reviewed by the Joint Chair 
of the PCTs, Non Executive Directors and the Chief Executive.  
 
The Committee will report in writing to the Joint Boards the basis for its recommendations. 
The Joint Boards will use that report as the basis for their decisions but remain accountable 
for taking decisions on the remunerations, allowances and terms of service of other officer 
members.  Minutes of the Statutory Boards’ meetings shall record such decisions.   

 
7.3 Local Committees  

 
Each statutory Board may in exceptional circumstances meet individually to conduct 
specific local business. 

 
7.4 Governance Support to Statutory Boards and Board Committees  

Support is provided to the statutory Boards to conduct their business and to the Board 
Committees through governance resources falling under the Director of Transition and 
Corporate Affairs, as well as functional lead directors’ team for the committees. The support 
role is to ensure that all meetings operate effectively with regard to their Terms of 
Reference and their reporting arrangements.    
 
An annual cycle of business for the Statutory Boards will be prepared which will be 
refreshed annually.  
A Board development programme will be developed annually to support Directors in 
fulfilling their roles and responsibilities, and will be evaluated at Board seminars. 
 

8. PARTNERSHIP WORKING 
 
The local PCT Vice-Chair, the local Non-Executive Director, the PEC Chair or GP Consortia 
leads and any Associate Non-Executive Directors (if confirmed) will play a key role in: 

- supporting and guiding the Borough Director and local PCT staff team and overseeing local 
programmes and projects within remit set by joint boards/CEO; and 

- developing and supporting productive partnerships between the emerging GP Consortia, 
the Local Authority, LINks and the third sector, sharing an understanding of the Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs), partnership arrangements, local commissioning 
issues and local performance. 

The statutory Boards retain the right to establish Joint Committees with other PCTs as 
appropriate to conduct business in common e.g. consultation on major service changes 
across NCL or London. 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 

17 
 

8.1  Local partnerships 
 

A range of partnerships are in place in each borough to support communities to thrive, 
deliver improved outcomes for local people, achieve improvements in respect of ‘place’, 
make best use of resources and secure integrated services that better meet health and 
social care needs. The White Paper Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS increases 
the role of Local Authorities in respect of democratic accountability, strategic planning, 
holding the ring and health and well-being. Public Health led by the Directors of Public 
Health will play an increasingly important role in supporting both parties to achieve joint 
solutions and better health and well being outcomes as well as efficiencies in the planning 
and commissioning of health and social care services. The JSNAs, led by Directors of 
Public Health, will provide a solid foundation for this work. Each PCT will continue to play 
an active part in local planning and partnership arrangements with governance 
arrangements led by the respective Local Authorities. 

 
8.2  Development of pathfinder GP Consortia 
 
By April 2013 consortia will be established as freestanding NHS bodies with responsibility for 
commissioning a wide range of services. PCTs will be accountable for commissioning up to April 
2013. NHS NCL will be: 

- working within the single London-wide process for assessing pathfinder proposals; 

- agreeing with pathfinders a timetable setting out when they will be assuming delegated 
responsibilities; and 

- adopting London-wide model terms of reference and a scheme of delegation for a PCT 
Board committee to support delegation of responsibilities to pathfinders. 

8.3 Links with Pan London commissioning arrangements 
  

London Specialised Commissioning Group (LSCG) is hosted by NHS Croydon and is 
governed by the NHS NCL Governance Framework. The NHS NCL Chief Executive is 
accountable for the commissioning of these specialised services with NCL management 
responsibility lying with the Director of Contracts. 
The current operating arrangements will be maintained with leadership from a Board whose 
non-executive directors are drawn from each of the London sectors including NCL.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

18 
 

9.  OPERATIONAL DELIVERY - MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS 
 
9.1 In line with the Transitional arrangements approved by the PCT Boards in November 2010 

for consultation the proposed senior structure is set out below. 
 

 
 

9.2 Directors have specific responsibility for the identification and management of risks as 
follows; 
 

• co-ordinating operational risk in their specific area  

• ensuring that all services for which they have responsibility are assessed 
appropriately for risks and mitigating action taken  

• complying with the requirement for completion of their Directorate risk register(s)  

• ensuring that risk treatment plans are produced for all extreme and high risks  

• advising the Audit Committee where funding is not available to manage extreme or 
high risks  

• monitoring progress against action plans  

• ensuring that their staff are aware of their risk management responsibilities  

• establishing and maintaining a team brief forum where risk management is a regular 
item  

• incorporating risk management in the business planning process  

• ensuring that policies and procedures agreed by the statutory Boards are 
implemented. 

 
 

10.  ASSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
10.1 To complement and support the Governance arrangements, the Joint Boards will also 

receive assurance, both internally and externally, with the objectives of; 
 

• providing the means of assurance as required by the Governance Framework 

• using the Assurance processes as a means of ensuring that the Governance 
framework is complete and current 

 

Page 34



 

19 
 

The various sources of internal and external assurance available to the Boards are set out in 
Appendix i. 
 
10.2 As part of the overall assurance arrangements and in order to meet the requirement to 

complete an annual Statement on Internal Control, the Board is required to have in place a 
Board Assurance Framework (BAF). The BAF is a document that sets out the risks for each 
organisational objective, along with the controls in place and assurances available on their 
operation.  

 
10.3 The purpose of the BAF is to provide the statutory Boards with “reasonable” assurance that 

systems are in place to identify and control risks that may prevent the organisation from 
achieving its principal organisational objectives. The term “reasonable” assurance is used 
in recognition of the fact that it is unlikely ever to be possible to provide absolute assurance 
that all risks have been identified and effectively controlled. Nevertheless, the BAF aims to 
provide the board with assurance that risks have been identified and are being 
appropriately controlled, and that there is timely and reliable assurance in place to evidence 
this. Importantly, there are a number of questions that this process sets out to answer as 
follows; 

 

• How can the board be confident that its objectives can be achieved, what 
assurances exist? 

• What are the risks that may prevent the achievement of strategic and corporate 
objectives? 

• What actions are in place to manage those risks? 

• How does the board know that these are effective? 
  

In assessing risks, NHS NCL will ensure through its risk management strategy that this is 
done on a realistic basis and that any potential risks to achievement of its objectives and 
reasonably foreseeable. Full details of processes for gaining assurance through the BAF 
will be set out in the NCL risk management strategy. 

 
11. MONITORING AND REPORTING 
 
The Joint Boards will draw assurance from the following arrangements for ensuring that both the 
risk register and assurance framework are proactively monitored so that the processes are 
embedded within the organisation and link to key business, planning and investment decisions: 
 

• Directorate Risk Registers -  monitored at directorate level Directorate level and 
reviewed at the Operational Risk Committee 

• Corporate Risk Register - monitored at Audit Committee.   

• Assurance Framework - monitored at corporate level by lead Directors; for fitness of 
assurances/controls at Audit Committee; reviewed by statutory Boards.  

 
12. CONCLUSION 

 
12.1 The governance strategy and assurance framework are supported by the implementation of 

the key strategies, policies and plans. The Joint Boards need to remain confident that the 
systems, policies and people they have in place are operating in a way that is effective, are 
managing the delivery of objectives and targets and are focused on good governance 
practices. 

 
12.2 In order to achieve this confidence, the PCT statutory Boards will 
 

• review the governance arrangements after six months, and then annually to ensure 
they remain fit  for purpose 

Page 35



 

20 
 

• review and revise the organisational objectives identified with the assurance 
framework on an annual basis 

• review the internal and independent assurances on which the assurance framework 
relies and make adequate arrangements to address any gaps 

• require corporate documents and policies to be regularly reviewed, monitored and 
audited in accordance with the process identified within each document. 

• implement and maintain an adequate performance review framework 

• receive information/annual reports in accordance with the Boards’ annual 
programme, and as delegated to Committees 

• consider the internal auditor’s opinion statement to improve the robustness of the 
assurance framework 

• consider the outcomes of other independent assurance to improve the robustness 
of the assurance framework 

• receive annual and other reports from core governance committees 

• receive reports and communication from directors, managers and staff 

• undertake evaluation of the performance of the statutory Boards as a minimum bi-
annually. 

 
12.3 Effective governance and assurance arrangements are critical in ensuring the confidence of 

the boards, staff, patients, the public and partner organisations and for the effective delivery 
and execution of its functions.  Developing a culture of openness and transparency is 
integral to assuring all of the effectiveness of these arrangements, together with an 
environment that fosters and develops personal and organisational growth as a key to 
success. 

 
 

Page 36



 

21 
 

 

Appendix i 
 

“Corporate Governance” in the NHS – A Glossary of Terms 
 

“The ideas, principles and mechanisms constituting governance in the NHS derive from an 
amalgam drawn from corporate governance, public governance and a variety of other sources. The 
resulting miscellany presents directors, managers and senior clinicians with a considerable sense-
making challenge”. 
 
 (Richard Solti & John Storey, Clinical and non clinical director’s sense making of the new 
governance arrangements in the NHS. Open University Business School, May 2008). 
  
1.  Corporate Governance 
 

A basic definition of (corporate) governance is: 
 
“the system by which an organisation is directed and controlled, at its most senior 
levels, in order to achieve its objectives and meet the necessary standards of 
accountability, probity and openness.” 
 
In effect, it is concerned with systems, processes, controls, accountabilities and 
decision-making at the heart of and at the highest levels of an organisation. It is about the 
way the organisation leads and manages through its values (in the public sector usually 
accountability, probity, openness) and its systems (such as governance structures and risk 
management). 

 
2.  Governance Framework 

This describes the arrangements and systems that are in place to “direct and control” the 
organisation. For NHS NCL these are our Committee structures, management 
arrangements, Standing Orders, and risk management strategy and systems. These 
arrangements also provide the “assurance” that the organisation relies on to know that its 
governance arrangements are effective. 

 
3.  Assurance 
 
3.1  Assurance is the positive evidence that controls are managing a given risk and it is likely 

that the underlying objective will be achieved. As the Audit Commission report “Taking it On 
Trust” suggests an informal way of looking at it was given by the chief executive of a 
Foundation Trust who said “assurance is about me being able to sleep at night” or put 
another way, “how do I know what is being done in my name?”. 

 
3.2  For a Board there are many sources of assurance (sometimes referred to as the 

Assurance Framework), some of which are as follows; 

Page 37



 

22 
 

 

Sources of Assurance 

Internal sources of assurance External sources of assurance 

• Internal audit 

• Performance monitoring reports 

• KPIs 

• Sub – committee reports 

• Compliance audit reports 

• Clinical audit 

• Local counter fraud work 

• Staff satisfaction surveys 

• Staff appraisals 

• Training records 

• Training evaluation reports 

• Results of internal investigations 

• SUI reports 

• Complaints records 

• Infection control reports 

• Standards for Better Health self 
assessment 

• Patient advice and liaison reports 

• Human resource reports 

• Internal benchmarking 

• Board Assurance Framework 

• Strategic Plan/Annual Operating Plan 
objectives (delivery of national 
objectives) 

• Risk Management Strategy 

• Executive Director Board reports 

• Executive Director reports to 
Committees and periodic attendance 
for review of risks/assurance 

• External audit 

• Audit Commission 

• NHS Litigation Authority 

• Clinical Negligence Scheme for 
Trusts 

• Care Quality Commission 

• Strategic health authority 
reports/reviews 

• Royal College visits 

• Deanery visits 

• External benchmarking 

• Patient environment action team 
reports 

• Accreditation schemes 

• National and regional audits 

• Peer reviews 

• Feedback from service users 

• External advisers 

• Local networks 

• Investors in people 

• World class commissioning 
assessment 

 
 (Primary Source: “Taking it on Trust”, Audit Commission, 2009) 

 
3.3  The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) is a key document that sets out the trust’s 

strategic objectives and the risks to achieving them, along with the controls in place and 
assurances available on their operation. It forms a key part of the annual statutory 
requirement for completion of the Statement on Internal Control (SIC) which the Chief 
Executive and Board sign off. The SIC represents confirmation that the governance and 
assurance arrangements for the organisation are operating as they should be.  

 
4.  Risk Management 
 
4.1  Risk management is a key element of the governance framework and its components are 

described as follows; 
 

Risk is the chance that something will happen that will have an impact on the achievement 
of the organisation’s objectives. It is measured in terms of likelihood (frequency or 
probability of the risk occurring) and severity (impact or magnitude of the effect of the risk 
occurring). 

 
Risk Management is the culture, processes and structures that are directed towards the 
effective management of potential opportunities and adverse effects. 

  

Page 38



 

23 
 

Risk Assessment is the process for identifying, analysing, evaluating, controlling, 
monitoring and communicating risk. 

 
5.  Risk Registers 
 
5.1  A Risk Register is  
 

“A log of risks of all kinds that threaten an organisation’s success in achieving its 
declared aims and objectives. It is a dynamic living document, which is populated 
through the organisation’s risk assessment and evaluation process. This enables 
risk to be quantified and ranked. It provides a structure for collating information 
about risks that helps both in the analysis of risks and in decisions about whether or 
how these risks should be treated.” (Risk Register Working Group 2002, NHS Controls 
Assurance). 

 
5.2  NHS NCL has a structured approach in place for completion of its risk registers, as follows; 
 

• The Directorate Risk Register contains a local record of all potential risks 
identified within the Directorate. 

• The Corporate Risk Register contains those extreme and high risks that have 
been identified in the Directorate risk registers to the achievement of organisational 
objectives. 

• The Top Risks report sets out the most significant risks to the organisation 
identified from the Corporate Risk Register. The risks are mapped to the Board 
Assurance Framework. 

 
6.  Other Important Terms 
 
6.1  Integrated Governance has become the overall term to describe the various forms of 

governance such as corporate, clinical and financial, and is described as follows; 
 

“Systems, processes and behaviours by which organisations lead, direct and control 
their function in order to achieve organisational objectives, safety and quality of 
service….” (Integrated Governance Handbook, 2006). 

 
6.2  Clinical Governance is described as; 
 

“The means by which organisations ensure the provision of quality clinical care by 
making individuals accountable for setting, maintaining and monitoring performance 
standards.” (Clinical Governance; a quality duty for health organisations 1998, Liam 
Donaldson) 

 
February 2011 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



App 4.0 NCL staff consultation report (extract)  Page 1 of 4 

Appendix 4.0  

 
 
Implementation of a Single Management Team for the PCTs in North 
Central London 
 
 
Report of the staff consultation process  
(This is an extract. Full report available online at http://www.islington.nhs.uk/board-papers.htm) 

 
1. Background and national context 

 
This report outlines the final proposals for establishing a single management team for the 
commissioning PCTs in North Central London (NHS Barnet, NHS Camden, NHS Enfield, NHS 
Haringey and NHS Islington). This follows a 90 day consultation with commissioning staff from 
the five PCTs and the current NCL Sector team. 
 
Change is necessary to meet the national requirement to make significant management cost 
savings by 2012/13. Across North Central London (NCL) we have to make approximately 54% 
management cost savings by 2011/12, which equates to around £28 million.  
 
In order to meet these savings, the five PCTs in NCL proposed to create a single transitional 
organisation across all five NCL PCTs, led by a single management team. There would also be 
a local presence retained in each of the five boroughs. These arrangements would come into 
effect from 1 April 2011.  
 
This proposal was primarily designed to meet the management cost savings target. However, 
the single management team arrangement will also allow our PCTs the flexibility to transition to 
the future commissioning arrangements set out in the Government’s July 2010 White Paper 
(Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS). It is anticipated that PCTs will be abolished by 
April 2013 when commissioning responsibility will hand over to GP consortia, the National 
Commissioning Board or local authorities.  
 
Arrangements for public health services are changing too, as set out in the Public Health White 
Paper released in December 2010. The single management team proposal recognises that 
future public health structures will be determined by further national guidance and discussion 
with local authorities.  
 
The five PCT Boards agreed in November 2010 that an integrated single management team 
structure was the best solution for the transition period from 1 April 2011 – 31 March 2013 and 
to achieve the management cost savings target. 
 
This approach has been reinforced by David Nicholson, NHS Chief Executive. In a letter to all 
NHS chief executives across the country (December 2010), he proposed the establishment of 
PCT clusters, with a single management team, to: 
 

• Deliver PCT statutory functions until April 2013 

• Support emerging GP commissioning consortia 

• Develop commissioning support providers to support consortia post April 2013. 
 

Page 41



App 4.0 NCL staff consultation report (extract)  Page 2 of 4 

This report outlines the consultation process conducted, the key issues arising from the 
consultation, the main comments received from staff and responses to them, and the final 
proposals for the single management structure.  
 

2. Consultation  
 
Formal consultation on draft proposals for a single management team was undertaken between 
22 November 2010 – 21 February 2011 (90 days), following the principles set out in the London 
Change Management Policy. This policy is NHS London’s change management policy which 
was adopted by all PCTs in NCL for use during this change process and made available to staff 
on intranets.  
 
Consultation took place with staff and their representatives from the five commissioning PCTs in 
NCL, as well as staff working in the current NCL Sector team who are also affected by these 
changes. Other key stakeholders were engaged during the 90 day consultation period, including 
PCT non-executive directors, local authorities and GPs. 
 

2.1 Consultation principles 
 
The principles that have underpinned this consultation were set out in the consultation 
document and have been followed to ensure meaningful consultation with staff. These are: 
 

• Provision of information for meaningful consultation 

• Openness and transparency 

• Informing all affected staff 

• Treating staff as individuals 

• Right of representation 

• Taking steps to reduce number of compulsory redundancies 

• Support through the process and to obtain future employment 
 

2.2 Structure design workshops and consultation documents 
 
Formal consultation was based on a consultation document which contained the proposed 
structures for a single management team comprising a central team and five teams based in 
each of the NCL boroughs. 
 
The draft structures were put together prior to consultation in a series of design workshops held 
with PCT and Sector directors, chief executives and senior staff. Staff were invited to comment 
on the draft structures throughout the consultation period. 
 
Throughout the consultation, new versions of the consultation document were released to staff 
to reflect refined information or changes to the structures made in light of comments received.  
Appendix 4.1 shows the chronology of consultation activities and release of information to staff 
during consultation, including revisions to the original consultation document.  
 

2.3 The consultation process (staff) 
 
Consultation took place between individuals and their employing PCT. This meant that PCT HR 
and communications leads took responsibility for managing their consultation process locally. 
However, there were a number of centrally produced resources for all staff and central guidance 
for PCTs on managing the consultation. This included ensuring that all staff in the five PCTs and 
current Sector team received new information at the same time and had similar opportunities to 
comment and express their views throughout the consultation period.   
 

Page 42



App 4.0 NCL staff consultation report (extract)  Page 3 of 4 

During the consultation period, across the cluster: 

• 23 staff briefing sessions took place with chief executives and HR leads;  

• 14 all staff consultation update emails were sent out; 

• 138 questions were answered through the central online intranet portal; 

• 18 partnership or local joint staffside meetings took place. 
 

2.4 The consultation process (staffside) 
 
Staffside have played a key role in this consultation and their input has shaped many aspects of 
the consultation process and supporting documentation. Before formal consultation began, 
managers and staffside formed a partnership group. This group comprised key managers and 
staffside representatives who worked together during the change process. This group met 
regularly during consultation.    
 

2.5 The wider consultation process  
 
PCT non-executive directors (NEDs) were engaged during the consultation period. A NEDs 
transition group, with representation from each PCT, worked closely with the transition project 
team to offer support, input and challenge throughout consultation. Meetings took place 
fortnightly during the consultation period and their input fed into several areas of the 
consultation process including voluntary redundancy processes, proposed structures, the 
appointments process and staff communication activities.  
 

3. Other key decisions and changes throughout the consultation process 
 

3.1 Office location 
 
NHS NCL staff will move to offices at Stephenson House, 75 Hampstead Road, NW1 2PL.  
Local Borough teams and local Public Health teams will continue to be based in their local 
boroughs for the foreseeable future. The process of agreeing any change to the local borough 
presence locations can be shared with local Overview & Scrutiny Committees.  
 

3.2 Number of posts affected 
 

Appendix 4.3 shows a revised number of affected posts (764 wtes), together with an estimated 
number of compulsory redundancies that are expected as a result of these changes. Our best 
estimate of the number of compulsory redundancies is within the range of 80 to 120 wtes. We 
are unable to be more precise until the appointments process has been concluded because 
redeployment of staff at-risk into the posts available for recruitment cannot be predicted.  
 
It should be noted that the final estimated number of compulsory redundancies is much lower 
than originally estimated. The lower estimate arises from the reduction in staffing numbers as a 
result of steps taken to avoid compulsory redundancy: 

• Restricted recruitment has been in place across all NCL PCTs for the last 12 months. 

• PCTs have been reducing interim and agency usage. 

• Natural turnover of staff. 

• Following agreement with staffside and in line with the London Voluntary Redundancy 
Policy, voluntary redundancy has been offered twice to staff affected by this change 
during the consultation period. 

 
4. Final proposed structures 

 
The final proposed structure for the single senior management team is shown in appendix 4.2. 
 

Page 43



App 4.0 NCL staff consultation report (extract)  Page 4 of 4 

5. Next steps 
 
The next steps to implement the proposals include: 
 

• Completing the staff appointment process 

• A programme of work focused on business continuity is underway to ensure that 
knowledge and information is not lost during the transition from six organisations into 
one. Significant work has gone into producing comprehensive handover guidance for any 
staff leaving the Sector or changing roles. This handover guidance is being championed 
by chief executives and directors and has been communicated widely to all staff and 
managers.  

• A Transition Board has been established to oversee all transition programme activities 
that are not related to HR. This includes office relocation, business continuity, IT, 
organisation development and governance.  

• Outplacement services to support staff who have been unable to be redeployed are 
being developed and will be promoted to affected staff. 

• The new organisational structures will be operational from 1 April 2011. 
 

6. Appendices 
 

4.1 Chronology of consultation activities 
4.2 Final NCL structure chart 
4.3 Number of posts affected by the consultation and changes 
4.4 The appointments process  

 

 

Page 44



Appendix 4.1 – chronology of consultation activities 

Appendix 4.1 

Consultation chronology: summary of consultation activities and 
documentation November – March 2011 

 

November 2010 

1-12: First round of structure design workshops  

2: NHS Haringey staff email  

5: NCL Sector Delivery Board meeting 

5: NHS Haringey staff email 

7: NHS Haringey staff briefing session 

9: Partnership Meeting  

12: NCL Sector Delivery Board meeting 

15: All staff email 

16: NHS Camden Primary Care Directorate Briefing 

18: NHS Islington Extraordinary Board meeting 

18: NHS Camden Extraordinary Board meeting 

18: NHS Barnet Extraordinary Board Meeting 

18: NHS Haringey Extraordinary Board Meeting 

18: NHS Camden Public Health Directorate Briefing 

19: NHS Enfield Extraordinary board meeting 

22: Launch of staff consultation  

22: All staff email  

22: Launch of dedicated consultation intranet pages 

22: All PCTs and the NCL Sector hold staff briefing sessions to launch the 
consultation 

22: Dedicated HR helplines set up (for two weeks) – all PCTs and NCL Sector 

24: NHS Enfield staff email 

24: NHS Haringey Public Board Meeting 

25: NHS Islington Public Board meeting 

25: NHS Enfield Public Board meeting 

25: NHS Barnet JSC meeting 

25: NHS Camden JSC meeting 

26: NCL Sector Delivery Board meeting 

26: NHS Enfield staff email 

26: NHS Camden senior managers briefing 

26: NHS Haringey JSC meeting 

Page 45



Appendix 4.1 – chronology of consultation activities 

29: Version 2 of staff consultation document issued – to include public health 
structures 

29: NHS Enfield staff email 

29: NHS Camden Communications and Corporate Development Directorate briefing 
session 

29: All staff email 

30: NHS Camden Finance Directorate briefing session 

30: NHS Camden staff email 

December 2010 

1: Voluntary redundancy scheme round 1 opens for applications.  

1: All staff email and FAQs to launch voluntary redundancy scheme 

2: NHS Barnet Public Board Meeting 

3: Partnership Meeting  

6: Version 3 of consultation document released – to include IT structures, and some 
amendments 

6: NHS Islington JSC meeting 

6: NHS Islington staff email 

6-10: At risk/Not at risk letters issued to staff  

8: NHS Enfield staff email 

9: NCL Sector Public Board Meeting 

9: NHS Enfield staff email 

9: NHS Haringey staff briefing session 

10: NCL Sector Delivery Board meeting 

10: NHS Camden staff email 

13-21: Second round of structure design workshops take place to address comments 
received to date. 

13: Version 4 of consultation document released - to include role summaries for each 
posts and revisions to the number of posts affected by consultation 

13: Equality Impact Assessment updated, including baseline data. 

13: All staff email 

13: NHS Camden Public Board meeting 

14: Applications for voluntary redundancy scheme round 1 close 

14: NHS Islington staff email 

15: NHS Enfield staff email 

17: Draft appointments process issued via all staff email and intranet 

17: NHS Haringey JSC meeting 

17: NHS Camden staff briefing session 

Page 46



Appendix 4.1 – chronology of consultation activities 

17: NHS Camden Public Health Directorate briefing session 

17: NHS Camden staff email 

21: All staff email 

21: NHS Islington staff briefing session 

21: NHS Enfield staff briefing session 

22: NHS Camden staff email 

22: NHS Camden JSC meeting 

January 2011 

4: Partnership Meeting  

5: NHS Barnet JSC meeting 

5: NHS Barnet staff email  

6: Job description drafts completed 

6-28: Job evaluation and matching panels (continued in February for any outstanding 
issues) 

7: New NHS NCL Chief Executive appointed – Caroline Taylor 

7: NCL Sector Delivery Board meeting 

12: All staff email 

12: Verification workshop – PCT and Sector chief executives meet to agree changes 
proposed to structures in the second round of design workshops.  

13: NHS Camden staff briefing session 

14: Voluntary redundancy scheme round 2 opens for applications. Launched by all 
staff email and intranet.  

17: NHS Enfield staff email 

17: NHS Islington staff email 

17: Guidance and supporting documentation for managers to carry out formal one-to-
one meetings with staff is released. Meetings start.  

17: NHS Camden Public Health Directorate briefing session 

18: NHS Enfield staff briefing session 

18: NHS Islington staff briefing session  

18: NHS Camden staff email 

18: NHS Camden Primary Care and Finance Directorate briefing sessions 

19: Version 5 of consultation document issued – to include changes to structures 
agreed at the verification workshop on 12 January.  

20: NHS Barnet staff email 

20: NCL Sector Public Board Meeting 

20: NHS Barnet Public Board Meeting 

21: NCL Sector Delivery Board meeting 

Page 47



Appendix 4.1 – chronology of consultation activities 

21: All staff email regarding new office locations 

22: NHS Enfield staff briefing session 

24: NHS Camden Public Board meeting 

24: NHS Haringey staff briefing session 

24: NHS Camden staff email 

25: NCL Sector staff briefing session 

25: NHS Barnet staff briefing session 

25: NHS Enfield staff email 

26: Partnership meeting 

26: NHS Camden JSC meeting 

26: NHS Haringey staff briefing session 

26: NHS Haringey Public Board meeting 

27: NHS Islington Public Board meeting 

27: Public Board meeting 

27: NHS Enfield staff email 

28: Director appointments process started 

28: All staff email 

28: Most job descriptions made available on intranets and on an external site so staff 
could view from home. 

28: NHS Haringey JSC meeting 

31: Letter to all staff re transfer of personal data to NCL sector transition team 

31: Applications for voluntary redundancy scheme round 2 close.  

31: NHS Enfield staff email 

31: NHS Camden staff email 

February 2011 

1: NHS Camden staff email 

2: Partnership meeting 

2: NHS Enfield JSC meeting 

3: NHS Barnet Public Board meeting 

4: NCL Sector Delivery Board meeting 

7: NHS Islington staff briefing session 

7: NHS Islington JSC meeting 

9: All staff email 

11: Version 6 of the consultation document issued – to include revised figures for the 
number of posts affected by consultation and additional changes to structures made 
since version 5. 

11: NHS Camden staff briefing session 

Page 48



Appendix 4.1 – chronology of consultation activities 

14: All staff email from new NCL Chief Executive 

16: NHS Camden JSC meeting 

16: NHS Haringey staff briefing session 

16: All staff email 

17: Completion of formal staff one to one meetings with managers 

18: NCL Sector Delivery Board meeting 

18: NHS Enfield JSC meeting 

18: NHS Haringey staff briefing session 

19: Version 6.1 of the consultation document issued – corrected minor errors in 
version 6. 

21: Staff consultation ends 

22: NHS Barnet staff briefing session  

24: NCL Sector Public Board Meeting 

25: NHS Haringey JSC meeting 

28: PCT Board Meetings (x 5) 

 

March - appointments process 

1 April – new sector organisation arrangements come into effect. 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
.2
 –
 f
in
a
l s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 c
h
a
rt
 

 
1
 

  A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4

.2
 

F
in

a
l 

N
C

L
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 c

h
a

rt
 

 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 

D
ir

e
c

to
r

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 

D
ir

e
c

to
r

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 

D
ir

e
c

to
r

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 

D
ir

e
c

to
r

N
C
L
 S
tr
u
c
tu
re
  

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c

u
ti

v
e

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

D
IR
0
0
1

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

ts

D
IR
0
0
2

Q
IP

P
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

D
IR
0
0
8

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 &

 

S
a

fe
ty

 

D
IR
0
0
3

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

P
u

b
li

c
 H

e
a

lt
h

  
  

  
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

T
ra

n
s
it

io
n

 &
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

A
ff

a
ir

s
 D
IR
0
0
6

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

x
5

D
IR
0
0
7
 (
1
-5
)

F
in

a
n

c
e

IT

A
c

u
te

, 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

P
ri

m
a

ry
 c

a
re

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

In
fo

rm
a

ti
c

s

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 &
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

R
e

c
o

v
e

ry
/P

M
O

S
tr

a
te

g
y

Q
u

a
li

ty
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

C
li

n
ic

a
l 

a
d

v
ic

e

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 

&
 G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

H
R

E
s

ta
te

s

J
o

in
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

L
o

c
a

l 
fi

n
a

n
c

e

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g

C
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 

C
a

re

M
e

d
ic

in
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

G
P

 I
T

M
e

d
ic

a
l 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

(P
ri

m
a

ry
 C

a
re

)

D
IR
0
0
4

G
P

 C
o

n
s

o
rt

ia
 &

 

L
o

c
a

l 
Q

IP
P

 

K
e

y
 f

o
r 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t

R N
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 

n
o
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t

O
O
 =
 O
th
e
r.
 E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
.

P
o
s
t 
w
il
l b
e
 o
p
e
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
 (
o
r 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l s
lo
t-
in
) 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

K
e

y
 f

o
r 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
K

e
y
 f

o
r 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t

R N
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
is
 p
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 

n
o
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t

O
O
 =
 O
th
e
r.
 E
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
.

P
o
s
t 
w
il
l b
e
 o
p
e
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
 (
o
r 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l s
lo
t-
in
) 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

R
R

M
e

d
ic

a
l 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

( S
e
c

o
n

d
a

ry
 C

a
re

)

R
R

R
N

N
R

R

O

R
e
c
ru
itm
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y 

ta
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 p
o
s
t.

V
S
M
 a
n
d
 9

8
d
 a
n
d
 8
c

8
b
 a
n
d
 8
a

7
 a
n
d
 6

5
 a
n
d
 b
e
lo
w

K
e
y

 f
o

r 
P

a
y

 B
a
n

d
s

V
S
M
 a
n
d
 9

8
d
 a
n
d
 8
c

8
b
 a
n
d
 8
a

7
 a
n
d
 6

5
 a
n
d
 b
e
lo
w

K
e
y

 f
o

r 
P

a
y

 B
a
n

d
s

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

9

P
o
s
t 
is
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 

N
H
S
L

N

 
 * 
Q
IP
P
 –
 Q
u
a
lit
y,
 I
n
n
o
va
ti
o
n
, 
P
ro
d
u
c
ti
vi
ty
 a
n
d
 P
re
ve
n
ti
o
n
 

 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4.3 – number of posts affected 

 

 

 

Appendix 4.3 
 
Numbers of posts affected 
 
Validation and rechecking of the current posts and staff impacted by the consultation has 
been an ongoing process.  The final outturn is summarised in the following table: 
 

 WTEs 

(1) Impacted posts in current PCT structures identified at the start of this 
consultation. 

764 

(2) Above posts which were vacant, or filled by non-permanent staff, or where the 
member of staff has subsequently resigned.   

(170) 

(3) At risk staff – staff who have been issued with an “at risk” letter and whose 
existing post are confirmed as being included in (1) above.  

594 

(4) At risk staff who have applied for, have had their application approved, and 
have accepted voluntary redundancy.  

(105) 

(5) Staff remaining at risk.  
 

489 

(6) Jobs in the new structure available for competitive selection or slot in*.  
 

(401) 

(7) Net at risk staff 88 

 
* There are approximately 30 vacant posts included in the structure charts which are not 
within the “management cost” definition. Applications for these posts will initially be restricted 
to the at risk staff. 

 
In summary, there are 88 fewer available posts when compared to the number of at risk staff 
remaining. However the eventual number of compulsory redundancies is likely to differ from 
88.  It may not be possible to fill all posts from the NCL at risk pool due to mismatches of 
skills. On the other hand, some of the at risk staff may secure employment in other sectors 
or elsewhere within the NHS and therefore will not be eligible for redundancy. Our best 
estimate of the number of compulsory redundancies is therefore in the range 80 to 120.     
  
A banding comparison of at risk staff to available posts is summarised in the following graph: 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

VSM 9 8D 8C 8B 8A 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

N
o
. W

TE
s

Pay Band

Comparison of current structure, at risk staff and proposed new 

structure 

Current posts

At risk staff remaining (490)

Proposed new posts (400)

 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4.4 – appointments process Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
Appendix 4.4 
 
Appointments Process to the Single Management Team for PCTs in 
North Central London (as implemented from 17 December 2010) 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The appointment and selection process has been developed based on the principles 
set out in Strengthening Commissioning and Management Cost Savings London HR 
Framework.  
 
In the first instance, commissioning staff with permanent contractual employment 
status in one of the five NCL PCTs (Enfield, Barnet, Haringey, Camden and Islington, 
including sector staff) and placed at risk of redundancy by the changes planned to 
reduce management costs, will be eligible for appointment to the new structure.   
 
The only exception to this is staff employed on Very Senior Managers (VSM) terms of 
employment and seconded into NCL from another sector, who following an NHS 
London directive, may choose in which sector pool they are ring-fenced (please see 
‘Special Circumstances’ section, paragraph 1, for more detail). 
 
The new structure will be operational from 1 April 2011. 
 
Principles for filling posts in the revised commissioning management structure 
for North Central London 
 
1. Restricted competition will apply to all posts to ensure that existing staff have 

maximum opportunities to be considered for posts, and thereby minimising the 
number of redundancies.  

 
2. Where staff are at risk they will be given priority at each stage of the recruitment 

process. 
 

3. All HR processes should be fair and transparent and appointment and selection 
procedures should seek to match individual abilities with available posts while 
meeting the requirements both of equal opportunities legislation and best 
practice. 

 
4. Staff in jobs directly comparable to a vacancy will have first consideration for a 

post (see slotting in and ring-fencing sections below for details). 
 
5. New or changed jobs, or those not filled by slotting in or through the ring-fenced 

recruitment process, will be filled by restricted recruitment as follows: 
 

• Initially for NCL PCT and Sector commissioning staff. 

• Then in phase two for other NCL PCT staff affected by change and 
Commissioning Support for London (CSL) staff who are at risk.  

• Posts that remain vacant will then be filled using the London Redeployment 
Service.  

 

Page 55



Appendix 4.4 – appointments process Page 2 of 2 

6. The appointment process will be carried out in a timely way to enable changes to 
be made as required, minimise uncertainty and support business continuity. 

 
Agreeing new roles 

 
Once structures are agreed, posts will have a role description and person 
specification which will be subject to banding under Agenda for Change (AfC) and 
carry AfC terms and conditions of employment. The banding will be undertaken 
through normal partnership arrangements with unions.  

 
A more tailored Knowledge and Skills Framework (KSF) outline will be agreed with 
each post holder once appointed. 
 
Slotting in  
 
There is a process for slotting in and ring fencing competition, where appropriate. 
 
Pay protection 
 
For staff on Agenda for Change (AfC), this will be in line with local protection policies. 
Protection for staff in VSM posts will be time limited and agreed up to 20% on top of 
the AfC salary point for the post, or up to 20% on top of the basic VSM rate for the 
job. 
 
References  
 
This HR Framework is based on the principles in the April 2010 Strengthening 
Commissioning HR Framework and also in the London NHS Partnership Model 
Change Management Policy (October 2009). It also aligns with the draft guidance 
being produced by DH “The NHS in a different resourcing environment: HR 
Framework to support the management of changes in employment patterns”.  

Page 56



 

$nrdeq5ld.doc  Page 1of 1 

  

 

 

 
THE NHS IN NORTH CENTRAL LONDON BOROUGHS: BARNET, 

CAMDEN, ENFIELD, 
HARINGEY, ISLINGTON  
WARDS: ALL 

 

 

REPORT TITLE:  Vascular Service Standards and Provider Activity 

 
REPORT OF:   
 
Nick Losseff 
Consultant Neurologist and Clinical Director, NHS North central London  
Senior Responsible Officer, QIPP, NHS North Central London. 
  

 
FOR SUBMISSION TO:   
North Central London Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
(JHOSC) 
 

DATE: 25 March 2011  

 
SUMMARY: 
 
Following a presentation at the previous JHOSC meeting (21 January 2011), Members requested further 
information about the criteria being used by NHS North Central London (NCL) to ensure vascular services 
are configured according to best clinical practice.  
 
Attached in Appendix 1 are the NCL clinical standards for vascular services. This is a working document, 
currently being iterated by vascular clinicians across the NCL. 
 
Members also requested activity data for the three vascular surgery providers. Please see attached activity 
data for different areas of vascular surgery, including Aortic Aneurysms (Appendix 2), Lower Limb 
Revascularisation (Appendix 3), and Carotid Endarterectomy (Appendix 4). This data includes mortality 
rates across the various surgical areas and providers. 
 
Dr Nick Losseff will discuss the clinical standards and the activity data with Members on 25 March, and 
respond to any questions they may have.   
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  
Sylvia Kennedy 
Director of Clinical Strategy 
NHS North Central London 
Telephone 0203 317 2794 
Email sylvia.kennedy@islingtonpct.nhs.uk 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
The Committee is asked to note the content of the Appendices 1, 2, 3, 4.  

SIGNED:  

 
Dr Nick Losseff 
Clinical Director, NHS North Central London  
DATE:  17 March 2011 

Agenda Item 6Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



  

  
  
  
 C
a
rd
io
v
a
s
c
u
la
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
k
e
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 

     
V
a
s
c
u
la
r 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

D
R
A
F
T
 

 
 

V
a
s
c
u
la
r:
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 

Page 59



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
 

 1
. 
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s 

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s 
th
a
t 
c
lin
ic
a
l o
u
tc
o
m
e
s 
w
ill
 b
e
 im
p
ro
v
e
d
 if
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
re
 c
a
re
d
 f
o
r 

b
y
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 s
ta
ff
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
q
u
ip
p
e
d
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
. 
 T
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
p
ri
se
 a
 s
in
g
le
 h
o
sp
it
a
l w
it
h
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 
su
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 d
a
y
 c
a
se
 a
n
d
 o
u
t-
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
c
a
re
 in
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s 
c
lo
se
r 
to
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
’ 
h
o
m
e
s.
 F
o
r 
so
m
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 
e
sp
e
c
ia
lly
 

th
o
se
 n
e
e
d
in
g
 c
a
re
 in
 a
n
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 in
v
o
lv
e
 t
ra
n
sf
e
r 
to
 a
 h
o
sp
it
a
l w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s.
  
Th
e
re
 a
re
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
 lo
c
a
l o
u
t-
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
a
y
 c
a
se
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 li
n
k
s 
w
it
h
 lo
c
a
l a
c
u
te
 a
n
d
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 

se
rv
ic
e
s.
  
A
 m
in
im
u
m
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
8
0
0
,0
0
0
 is
 c
o
n
si
d
e
re
d
 n
e
c
e
ss
a
ry
 f
o
r 
a
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
. 
 T
h
is
 is
 b
a
se
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a
o
rt
ic
 a
n
e
u
ry
sm
 s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
 a
m
o
n
g
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
ts
 a
n
d
 

n
u
rs
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m
o
st
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
u
se
 o
f 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t,
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s.
  
  

 Th
e
 e
xp
e
c
te
d
 im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
c
a
n
 b
e
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
se
d
 

a
s:
  

  A
c
c
e
ss
 

 •
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 in
 a
c
c
e
ss
 f
o
r 
in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
s 
so
m
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
ra
v
e
l f
u
rt
h
e
r.
  

•
 
A
c
c
e
ss
 t
o
 o
u
t-
p
a
ti
e
n
t,
 d
a
y
 c
a
se
 a
n
d
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 (
a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 im
p
ro
v
e
d
).
  

 

 P
a
ti
e
n
t 

e
xp
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

 •
 
R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 le
n
g
th
 o
f 
h
o
sp
it
a
l s
ta
y
 f
o
r 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
ry
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

•
 
A
A
 r
e
p
a
ir
 is
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 a
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
o
n
 

 

 

C
lin
ic
a
l 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s 
 

 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 in
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 r
a
te
s 
fo
r 
A
o
rt
ic
 A
n
e
u
ry
sm
 (
A
A
) 
re
p
a
ir
 

•
 
V
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
ry
 is
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 a
 “
h
ig
h
 v
o
lu
m
e
”
 s
u
rg
e
o
n
 a
t 
a
 “
h
ig
h
 v
o
lu
m
e
”
 c
e
n
tr
a
lis
e
d
 h
o
sp
it
a
l i
n
 a
 

h
y
b
ri
d
 t
h
e
a
tr
e
 

•
 
Th
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
o
n
 is
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 a
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
te
a
m
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
a
d
io
lo
g
is
ts
 

•
 
S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
ra
d
io
lo
g
is
ts
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 2
4
 h
o
u
rs
 p
e
r 
d
a
y
 f
o
r 
A
A
A
 r
e
p
a
ir
 

•
 
In
c
re
a
se
d
 e
n
d
o
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
a
n
e
u
ry
sm
 r
e
p
a
ir
 r
a
te
 

 

Page 60



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

3
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s 

•
 
V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
u
rg
e
ry
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
re
a
te
d
 in
 a
 c
e
n
tr
e
 w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
-d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie
s 
i.e
. 

-
 
(1
) 
c
o
ro
n
a
ry
 v
a
sc
u
la
ri
sa
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s,
  

-
 
(2
) 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l r
a
d
io
lo
g
y
, 
 

-
 
(3
) 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
a
n
a
e
st
h
e
ti
st
s,
  

-
 
(4
) 
d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
n
u
rs
in
g
 c
a
re
, 
 

-
 
(5
) 
d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
P
A
M
 s
ta
ff
 e
.g
. 
P
h
y
si
o
th
e
ra
p
is
ts
, 
O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l t
h
e
ra
p
is
ts
 a
n
d
 

S
o
c
ia
l W
o
rk
e
rs
 

-
 
(6
) 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
n
e
u
ro
lo
g
y
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 

-
 
(7
) 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l c
a
rd
io
lo
g
y
, 
 

-
 
(8
) 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l r
a
d
io
lo
g
y
, 
 

-
 
(9
) 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
in
te
n
si
v
e
 c
a
re
 u
n
it
, 
 

-
 
(1
0
) 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
a
n
a
e
st
h
e
ti
c
s,
  

-
 
(1
1
) 
d
ia
b
e
ti
c
 a
n
d
 n
e
u
ro
lo
g
y
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
ts
, 
 

-
 
(1
2
) 
c
a
rd
ia
c
 s
u
rg
e
ry
, 

-
 
(1
3
) 
st
e
p
 d
o
w
n
 in
te
n
si
v
e
 c
a
re
 f
a
c
ili
ty
, 
 

-
 
(1
4
) 
re
n
a
l u
n
it
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
s 
d
ia
ly
si
s 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 

 

 

Page 61



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

4
 

  2
. 
In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 

 Th
e
se
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
a
re
 b
a
se
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
’s
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 ‘
Th
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s 
fo
r 
P
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
D
is
e
a
se
 

2
0
0
9
’ 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l g
u
id
a
n
c
e
. 
Th
e
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
re
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 in
 a
 f
o
rm
 t
h
a
t 
is
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
u
se
 in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

sp
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 in
 q
u
a
lit
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
s.
  
Th
e
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
a
im
 t
o
 f
o
llo
w
 t
h
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
’ 
p
a
th
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
su
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 h
ig
h
e
st
 

p
o
ss
ib
le
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
c
a
re
 is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
e
a
c
h
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
’ 
jo
u
rn
e
y
. 
 T
h
e
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
h
e
lp
 t
o
 a
n
sw
e
r 
th
e
 q
u
e
st
io
n
 “
If
 I
 w
a
lk
 

in
to
 a
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 t
o
d
a
y
, 
h
o
w
 I
 w
ill
 k
n
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
b
e
st
-p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
?
”
 T
h
e
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
 b
y
 a
ll 

se
rv
ic
e
s 
in
 t
w
o
 t
o
 f
iv
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 
Th
e
y
 c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
ss
 a
sp
e
c
ts
 o
f 
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
lo
n
g
si
d
e
 in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s.
 

 3
. 
R
e
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
e
s 

 R
e
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
e
s 
fo
r 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 a
re
 a
s 
fo
llo
w
s 

 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
  

R
e
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
  

1
 –
 2
  

T
B
A
 

3
 -
 5
2
  

Le
a
d
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 le
a
d
 n
u
rs
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
xe
c
u
ti
v
e
s 
o
f 
a
ll 
Tr
u
st
s 
w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s 
c
a
re
 f
o
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
. 
  

 4
. 
D
e
fi
n
it
io
n
s 
a
n
d
 A
b
b
re
v
ia
ti
o
n
s 

 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
: 
 A
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
c
a
re
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
d
is
e
a
se
. 
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s 
fo
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 in
 

se
v
e
ra
l d
if
fe
re
n
t 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s 
b
y
 s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
e
xp
e
rt
is
e
 in
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
d
is
e
a
se
 w
h
o
 w
o
rk
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
a
n
d
 li
n
k
 

c
lo
se
ly
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l s
e
rv
ic
e
s.
  
Th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
a
y
 w
o
rk
 a
c
ro
ss
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 T
ru
st
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o
n
e
 T
ru
st
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
o
st
 t
h
e
 

se
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
it
s 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
. 
 

 

Page 62



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

5
 

V
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t:
  
A
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
is
 a
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
o
n
 o
r 
a
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l r
a
d
io
lo
g
is
t.
  
A
 

c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
o
n
 is
 a
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
w
h
o
 h
a
s 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
 m
in
im
u
m
 o
f 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
 f
in
a
l s
ta
g
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 in
 a
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 

u
n
it
 o
r 
w
h
o
 h
a
s 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
e
xp
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 w
h
o
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
s 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 a
o
rt
ic
 a
n
e
u
ry
sm
 d
is
e
a
se
 a
n
d
 it
s 
a
ss
o
c
ia
te
d
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s.
  
A
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l r
a
d
io
lo
g
is
t 
is
 a
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
ra
d
io
lo
g
is
t 
w
h
o
 h
a
s 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
sk
ill
s 
in
 in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l 

te
c
h
n
iq
u
e
s 
a
n
d
 h
a
s 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
 t
h
e
se
 s
k
ill
s 
th
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 M
e
d
ic
a
l E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
su
c
h
 a
s 
th
a
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 B
ri
ti
sh
 S
o
c
ie
ty
 f
o
r 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l R
a
d
io
lo
g
y
, 
a
n
d
, 
if
 n
e
c
e
ss
a
ry
, 
b
y
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 t
im
e
 in
 la
rg
e
r 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
3
 T
h
e
 R
o
y
a
l C
o
lle
g
e
 o
f 
R
a
d
io
lo
g
is
ts
 ‘
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
fo
r 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 2
4
 h
o
u
r 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l r
a
d
io
lo
g
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
’ 

 P
o
lic
ie
s,
 P
ro
to
c
o
ls
, 
G
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
a
n
d
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s 

 Th
e
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
u
se
 t
h
e
 w
o
rd
s 
p
o
lic
y
, 
p
ro
to
c
o
l, 
g
u
id
e
lin
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 b
a
se
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
s:
  

 P
o
lic
y
: 
A
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
r 
g
e
n
e
ra
l p
la
n
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 b
y
 a
 T
ru
st
, 
w
h
ic
h
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
im
s 
a
n
d
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s 
in
 a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
a
re
a
. 
  
 

 P
ro
to
c
o
l:
 A
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
la
y
in
g
 d
o
w
n
 in
 p
re
c
is
e
 d
e
ta
il 
th
e
 t
e
st
s/
st
e
p
s 
th
a
t 
m
u
st
 b
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
e
d
. 
  
 

 G
u
id
e
lin
e
s:
 P
ri
n
c
ip
le
s 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 s
e
t 
d
o
w
n
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 a
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
y
 a
ss
is
t 
th
e
 p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 
to
 d
e
c
id
e
 o
n
 a
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
 b
u
t 
d
o
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 a
p
p
lie
d
. 
 C
lin
ic
a
l g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
d
o
 n
o
t 
re
p
la
c
e
 p
ro
fe
ss
io
n
a
l j
u
d
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
. 
  
 

 F
o
r 
si
m
p
lic
it
y
, 
so
m
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
u
se
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm
 ‘
g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
a
n
d
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
’ 
w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 a
s 
re
fe
rr
in
g
 t
o
 p
o
lic
ie
s,
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
, 

g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s.
  
A
ll 
c
lin
ic
a
l g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 b
a
se
d
 o
n
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l g
u
id
a
n
c
e
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 N
IC
E
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 

Lo
c
a
l g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
a
n
d
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 s
h
o
u
ld
 s
p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 in
 w
h
ic
h
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 lo
c
a
lly
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 s
h
o
w
 

c
o
n
si
d
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l c
ir
c
u
m
st
a
n
c
e
s.
 

 A
b
b
re
v
ia
ti
o
n
s:
 

 A
A
A
 A
b
d
o
m
in
a
l A
o
rt
ic
 A
n
e
u
ry
sm
  

C
T 
C
o
m
p
u
te
r 
To
m
o
g
ra
p
h
y
 

D
V
LA
 D
ri
v
e
rs
 a
n
d
 V
e
h
ic
le
 L
ic
e
n
si
n
g
 A
g
e
n
c
y
 

H
C
A
 H
e
a
lt
h
 C
a
re
 A
ss
is
ta
n
t 

H
E
S
 H
o
sp
it
a
l E
p
is
o
d
e
 S
ta
ti
st
ic
s 
 

M
D
T 
M
u
lt
i-
D
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 T
e
a
m
  

Page 63



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

6
 

N
S
F
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
  

P
C
T 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 T
ru
st
 

TI
A
 T
ra
n
si
e
n
t 
Is
c
h
a
e
m
ic
 A
tt
a
c
k
 

       

H
o
sp
it
a
l 
N
a
m
e
: 

D
a
te
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 l
a
st
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
: 
 

Le
a
d
 S
u
rg
e
o
n
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s:
  
 

Le
a
d
 N
u
rs
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s:
 
 

Le
a
d
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s:
 
 

 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
  

D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
  

B
a
se
 

R
A
G
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

C
o
m
p
le

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te
  

S
E
R
V
IC
E
 C
O
N
FI
G
U
R
A
TI
O
N
  

 1
 

  

 A
ll 
se
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 in
 N
o
rt
h
 C
e
n
tr
a
l L
o
n
d
o
n
 

sh
o
u
ld
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
s 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 b
y
 N
H
S
 L
o
n
d
o
n
. 
Th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

c
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
a
re
 f
o
r 
u
n
it
s 
to
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
  

•
 
X
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
(e
.g
. 
5
0
) 
o
r 
m
o
re
 a
b
d
o
m
in
a
l 

a
o
rt
ic
 a
n
e
u
ry
sm
s 
(A
A
A
s)
. 

•
 
X
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
(e
.g
. 
4
0
) 
o
r 
m
o
re
 lo
w
e
r 

e
xt
re
m
it
y
 b
y
p
a
ss
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s 
 

•
 
X
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
(e
.g
. 
3
0
) 
o
r 
m
o
re
 c
a
ro
ti
d
 

e
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
ie
s 

  C
a
tc
h
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

A
c
u
te
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
 U
n
it
. 

  A
c
ti
v
it
y
 D
a
ta
 

 
 

 

Page 64



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

7
 

  2
  
 

 Th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s 

o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t,
 d
a
y
 c
a
se
 a
n
d
 o
u
tp
a
ti
e
n
t 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
v
a
ri
c
o
se
 v
e
in
s.
  

E
a
c
h
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
rm
a
lly
 h
a
v
e
 

o
n
ly
 o
n
e
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
se
rv
ic
e
. 
 O
u
tp
a
ti
e
n
t 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 o
n
, 
a
t 

le
a
st
, 
a
ll 
h
o
sp
it
a
l s
it
e
s 
a
c
c
e
p
ti
n
g
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

m
e
d
ic
a
l a
n
d
 s
u
rg
ic
a
l e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
d
m
is
si
o
n
s.
  
 

 Lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 

A
c
u
te
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
 U
n
it
. 
 

N
o
te
s:
  

1
: 
In
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
o
m
p
le
x 

o
n
-s
it
e
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 

se
rv
ic
e
s,
 o
u
tp
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
a
y
 

su
rg
e
ry
 m
a
y
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 

lo
c
a
l v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
ts
 o
r 
b
y
 

sp
e
c
ia
lis
ts
 v
is
it
in
g
 f
ro
m
 a
n
o
th
e
r 

h
o
sp
it
a
l –
 u
su
a
lly
 t
h
e
 h
o
sp
it
a
l w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
le
x 
in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 

se
rv
ic
e
s.
 

 
 

 

 S
U
P
P
O
R
T 
FO
R
 P
A
TI
E
N
TS
 A
N
D
 C
A
R
E
R
S
 

 
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
  

D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
  

B
a
se
 

R
A
G
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

C
o
m
p
le

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 3
 

 In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a
t 
le
a
st
: 
 

 •
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
d
is
e
a
se
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 it
s 
c
a
u
sa
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

p
h
y
si
c
a
l i
m
p
a
c
t,
  

 •
 T
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
  

 E
xa
m
p
le
s 
o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
  

 N
o
te
s:
  
 

1
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

in
 f
o
rm
a
ts
 a
n
d
 la
n
g
u
a
g
e
s 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
th
e
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
. 
 T
h
is
 m
a
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 la
rg
e
 

 
 1
. 
E
n
lis
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
A
d
v
is
o
ry
 P
a
n
e
l 

re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
v
e
 t
o
 e
n
su
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 li
n
k
 

w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
se
rs
 

 

Page 65



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

8
 

 

•
 P
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 g
o
o
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
m
o
k
in
g
 

c
e
ss
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

•
 S
y
m
p
to
m
s 
a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 if
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 

u
n
w
e
ll 
a
n
d
 w
h
o
 t
o
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
it
h
 q
u
e
ri
e
s 
o
r 
fo
r 

a
d
v
ic
e
.  

•
 W
h
e
re
 t
o
 g
o
 f
o
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

u
se
fu
l w
e
b
si
te
s.
 

 

•
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

 •
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
fo
r 
re
la
ti
v
e
s 

p
ri
n
t 
a
n
d
 o
r 
C
D
 /
 D
V
D
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

  4
  
 

 

 A
ll 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 o
ff
e
re
d
: 

•
 A
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e
 le
tt
e
r 
se
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
ir
 G
P
 

 •
 A
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
re
c
o
rd
 o
f 
c
o
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
t 

w
h
ic
h
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s 
to
 t
h
e
ir
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 a
re
 

d
is
c
u
ss
e
d
. 

 •
 T
h
e
 G
P
 s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
 le
tt
e
r 
w
it
h
in
 5
 d
a
y
s.
  

 

 D
is
c
u
ss
io
n
 w
it
h
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 

o
f 
c
a
se
 n
o
te
s.
  
 

 N
o
te
: 
P
a
ti
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 

c
o
p
y
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 le
tt
e
r 
w
it
h
in
 a
 w
e
e
k
 

o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 it
 

w
a
s 
d
is
c
u
ss
e
d
 o
r 
le
ss
 a
s 
p
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
 

 
 

 

S
TA
FF
IN
G
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 

 

Page 66



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

9
 

 5
 

 Th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 n
o
m
in
a
te
d
 le
a
d
 

c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
. 
Th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

n
o
m
in
a
te
d
 le
a
d
 n
u
rs
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

e
n
su
ri
n
g
 im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s.
 T
h
e
 n
u
rs
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 

a
c
t 
a
s 
a
 p
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
d
v
o
c
a
te
. 
 

 

 
 

N
a
m
e
 o
f 
le
a
d
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 

le
a
d
 n
u
rs
e
. 
 

N
o
te
: 
Th
e
 le
a
d
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 

n
u
rs
e
 m
a
y
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

se
n
io
r 
c
lin
ic
ia
n
s 
w
h
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
 le
a
d
 

ro
le
 o
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
a
sp
e
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

se
rv
ic
e
, 
fo
r 
e
xa
m
p
le
, 
sc
re
e
n
in
g
 o
r 

tr
a
in
in
g
. 

 
 

 

  6
  
 

  A
ll 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 e
le
c
ti
v
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
ry
 

sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 

su
rg
e
o
n
s 
o
r 
b
y
 s
ta
ff
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
ir
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
. 
 A
ll 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
o
n
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 
p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
. 
 

    

  D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
st
a
ff
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

In
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
jo
b
 p
la
n
s 

ju
n
io
r 
D
rs
 jo
b
 p
la
n
s 
a
n
d
 o
n
 c
a
ll 

ro
ta
s.
 

 A
u
d
it
 r
e
su
lt
s.
 

 D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 M
D
T 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s 

N
o
te
: 
 1
 F
o
r 
th
e
 p
u
rp
o
se
 o
f 

c
o
n
si
d
e
ri
n
g
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 
to
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
, 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 in
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 o
u
ts
id
e
 

th
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 a
s 
p
a
rt
 o
f 

su
rg
e
o
n
s’
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 

 
 

 

 7
. 

 A
 n
u
rs
e
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
e
xp
e
rt
is
e
 in
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

a
re
a
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
: 
 

 

 S
ta
ff
in
g
 d
e
ta
ils
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
v
e
r 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
  

N
o
te
s:
  

 
 

 

Page 67



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
0
 

•
 W
o
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 d
ia
b
e
ti
c
 f
o
o
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

•
 E
xp
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 li
fe
st
y
le
 a
d
v
ic
e
  
 

•
 A
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 li
a
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
  

 Th
e
se
 n
u
rs
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
ir
 

a
re
a
 o
f 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
e
xp
e
rt
is
e
. 
Th
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
o
v
e
r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 a
b
se
n
c
e
s.
 

A
s 
w
e
ll 
a
s 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 M
D
T 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
c
u
te
 n
u
rs
in
g
 s
k
ill
s 
a
t 
w
a
rd
 le
v
e
l t
o
 

e
n
su
re
 s
a
fe
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
re
 2
4
/7
  

1
 T
h
e
 n
u
rs
e
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

e
xp
e
rt
is
e
 in
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
a
c
c
e
ss
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
a
l s
e
rv
ic
e
 

o
r 
b
y
 t
h
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
  

 2
 T
h
e
se
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
ro
le
s 
m
a
y
 o
r 

m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 a
 f
u
ll-

ti
m
e
 b
a
si
s 
a
n
d
 m
a
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
, 
fo
r 

e
xa
m
p
le
, 
se
n
io
r 
w
a
rd
 n
u
rs
e
s 
w
it
h
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l r
e
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
e
s.
 

S
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
ti
m
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

b
e
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
sp
e
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 r
o
le
s.
  

 3
 S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
e
xp
e
rt
is
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
c
ro
ss
 

th
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
. 
Th
e
 r
o
le
s 
m
a
y
, 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 in
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 

lo
c
a
lit
ie
s.
  
 

 4
 A
 s
y
st
e
m
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 

su
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
 n
e
w
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 
st
a
ff
 w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 u
n
it
. 
 

  

Page 68



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
1
 

  8
  
 

 E
n
d
o
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
a
n
e
u
ry
sm
 r
e
p
a
ir
 a
n
d
 c
a
ro
ti
d
 

st
e
n
ti
n
g
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
n
ly
 b
y
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
ts
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
se
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s.
  

 Li
st
 o
f 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
ts
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
s 
in
 e
n
d
o
v
a
sc
u
la
r 

a
n
e
u
ry
sm
 r
e
p
a
ir
 a
n
d
 c
a
ro
ti
d
 

st
e
n
ti
n
g
. 
A
u
d
it
 r
e
su
lt
s.
 

N
o
te
: 
Tr
u
st
 p
ro
c
e
ss
e
s 
fo
r 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s 

sh
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
se
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s.
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 d
a
ta
 o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
e
a
c
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

re
a
d
ily
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 

d
a
ta
 b
a
se
 a
n
d
 a
 c
a
se
 a
u
d
it
 

sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 

p
e
e
rs
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
  

 
 

 

  9
  
 

 

 A
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
s 
in
 in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l r
a
d
io
lo
g
y
 

sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 

ra
d
io
lo
g
y
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s.
  

    

 S
ta
ff
in
g
 d
e
ta
ils
  

N
o
te
s:
  
 

1
 I
n
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
o
n
-s
it
e
 in
-

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s,
 t
h
e
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

st
a
ff
 m
a
y
 b
e
 b
a
se
d
 in
 t
h
e
 lo
c
a
l 

h
o
sp
it
a
l o
r 
m
a
y
 t
ra
v
e
l f
ro
m
 

a
n
o
th
e
r 
h
o
sp
it
a
l –
 u
su
a
lly
 t
h
e
 o
n
e
 

w
h
e
re
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
re
 

lo
c
a
te
d
. 
 

2
 T
h
e
se
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
p
ly
 

w
it
h
 T
h
e
 R
o
y
a
l C
o
lle
g
e
 o
f 

R
a
d
io
lo
g
is
ts
, 
th
e
 B
ri
ti
sh
 S
o
c
ie
ty
 o
f 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l R
a
d
io
lo
g
y
 

‘A
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
fo
r 
V
a
sc
u
la
r 

R
a
d
io
lo
g
y
’ 
(2
0
0
7
) 
(o
r 
su
b
se
q
u
e
n
t 

 
 

 

Page 69



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
2
 

u
p
d
a
te
s 
o
f 
th
is
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
).
  

 
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
  

D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
  

B
a
se
 

R
A
G
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

C
o
m
p
le

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te
  

  1
0
  
 

 

 S
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 c
le
ri
c
a
l s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
d
a
ta
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

ti
m
e
ly
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
e
s.
 

 

 D
is
c
u
ss
io
n
 w
it
h
 s
ta
ff
  

S
ta
ff
 J
o
b
 d
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
s 
R
o
ta
s 
e
tc
  

 N
o
te
: 
‘S
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t’
 is
 n
o
t 
st
ri
c
tl
y
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
. 
C
lin
ic
a
l s
ta
ff
 s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 

b
e
 s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 u
n
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
 

a
m
o
u
n
ts
 o
f 
ti
m
e
 o
n
 

a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 d
u
ti
e
s,
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

d
a
ta
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 d
e
tr
a
c
ts
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
ir
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
c
a
re
. 

 
 

 

 S
TA
FF
IN
G
: 
 H
O
S
P
IT
A
L 
S
IT
E
S
 A
C
C
E
P
TI
N
G
 V
A
S
C
U
LA
R
 E
M
E
R
G
E
N
C
Y
 A
D
M
IS
S
IO
N
S
  

Q
S
1
1
 t
o
 Q
S
1
7
 a
p
p
ly
 o
n
ly
 t
o
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 a
c
c
e
p
ti
n
g
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
d
m
is
si
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 h
a
v
in
g
 i
n
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
se
rv
ic
e
s.
 

   1
1
  
 

 A
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
a
ll 
ti
m
e
s.
  
 

 S
ta
ff
in
g
 d
e
ta
ils
  

N
o
te
: 
 A
 m
in
im
u
m
 o
f 
a
 X
 (
E
.g
. 

1
:5
) 
o
n
 c
a
ll 
ro
ta
 is
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
is
 Q
S
. 
 

 
 

 

  1
2
. 
  

 

 A
n
 in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l r
a
d
io
lo
g
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
-s
it
e
 a
t 
a
ll 
ti
m
e
s.
  
 

 D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
: 
 

N
o
te
: 
 A
 m
in
im
u
m
 o
f 
a
 X
 (
E
.g
. 

1
:5
) 
o
n
 c
a
ll 
ro
ta
 is
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
is
 Q
S
. 
Th
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

sh
o
u
ld
 m
e
e
t 
Th
e
 R
o
y
a
l C
o
lle
g
e
 

 
 

 

Page 70



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
3
 

o
f 
R
a
d
io
lo
g
is
ts
 ‘
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
fo
r 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 2
4
-h
o
u
r 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l s
e
rv
ic
e
’ 
(2
0
0
8
) 

a
n
d
 T
h
e
 R
.C
.R
 B
ri
ti
sh
 S
o
c
ie
ty
 o
f 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l R
a
d
io
lo
g
y
 

‘A
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
fo
r 

V
a
sc
u
la
r 
R
a
d
io
lo
g
y
’ 
(2
0
0
7
) 

(a
n
d
 u
p
d
a
te
s 
to
 t
h
e
se
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s)
. 
 

Th
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 w
ill
 a
g
re
e
 f
o
rm
a
l 

c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 p
la
n
s 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

c
ro
ss
 c
o
v
e
r 
in
 c
a
se
 o
f 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
ie
s 
a
s 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
A
2
 s
ig
n
 

o
ff
  

 

  1
3
. 
  

 

 A
n
 a
n
a
e
st
h
e
ti
st
 w
it
h
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 

e
xp
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 m
a
jo
r 

c
o
m
p
le
x 
su
rg
ic
a
l c
a
se
s 
su
c
h
 a
 a
c
u
te
 

tr
a
u
m
a
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
ie
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
a
ll 

ti
m
e
s.
 

  

 D
e
ta
il 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
o
ta
s 
a
n
d
 jo
b
 p
la
n
s 
 

 
 

 

  1
4
. 
  

 

 A
n
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
w
a
rd
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 

st
a
ff
e
d
 b
y
 n
u
rs
e
s 
a
n
d
 H
C
A
s 
w
it
h
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
s 
in
 c
a
re
 o
f 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
d
is
e
a
se
. 
Th
e
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
v
e
r 

a
t 
le
a
st
: 
 

•
 A
c
u
te
 L
if
e
-t
h
re
a
te
n
in
g
 E
v
e
n
ts
 

 S
ta
ff
in
g
 d
e
ta
ils
, 
c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 e
xp
e
c
te
d
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
s 
a
n
d
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
 a
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

  

 
 

 

Page 71



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
4
 

R
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 T
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
(A
LE
R
T)
  

•
 T
is
su
e
 v
ia
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 w
o
u
n
d
 c
a
re
  

•
 P
a
in
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 

•
 C
a
re
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 d
ia
b
e
te
s 
 

•
 H
ig
h
 D
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
y
 C
a
re
 

  1
5
. 
  

 

 A
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
st
a
ff
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
s 

in
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
u
lt
ra
so
u
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 d
u
ri
n
g
 n
o
rm
a
l w
o
rk
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
. 

A
t 
w
e
e
k
e
n
d
s 
th
e
re
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 s
y
st
e
m
 

fo
r 
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 n
e
e
d
in
g
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
u
lt
ra
so
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

sc
a
n
n
in
g
, 
if
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
o
n
 a
 d
a
ily
 b
a
si
s.
 

   

 S
ta
ff
in
g
 d
e
ta
ils
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
 7
/7
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
s 
 

 N
o
te
: 
Th
e
 m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
r 
st
a
ff
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 a
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
is
t,
 

ra
d
io
g
ra
p
h
e
r,
 n
u
rs
e
 o
r 

ra
d
io
lo
g
is
t.
  
 

 
 

 

  1
6
. 
  

 

 In
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s,
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 

a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
a
ll 

ti
m
e
s:
  

•
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 t
h
e
a
tr
e
  
 

•
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
a
n
g
io
g
ra
p
h
y
 s
u
it
e
  

•
 C
ri
ti
c
a
l c
a
re
 (
a
t 
le
a
st
 le
v
e
l 3
) 
 

•
 H
a
e
m
a
to
lo
g
y
 (
fo
r 
u
rg
e
n
t 
c
ro
ss
-m
a
tc
h
 

a
n
d
 b
lo
o
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
ts
) 
  

•
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
fo
r 
e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 t
ra
n
sf
e
r 
o
f 

im
a
g
in
g
 f
ro
m
, 
o
r 
a
b
ili
ty
 r
e
m
o
te
ly
 t
o
 

v
ie
w
 im
a
g
in
g
 a
t,
 o
th
e
r 
a
c
u
te
 

h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 N
e
tw
o
rk
. 

•
 C
a
rd
ia
c
 s
u
rg
e
ry
  

 D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 
a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
  

   

 
 

 

Page 72



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
5
 

•
 R
e
n
a
l 
u
n
it
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
s 
d
ia
ly
si
s 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 

 

  1
7
. 
  

 

 A
ll 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
ry
 s
h
o
u
ld
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 

in
 a
 t
h
e
a
tr
e
 w
it
h
: 
 

 •
 T
h
e
a
tr
e
 s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
e
d
 in
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 

in
st
ru
m
e
n
ts
, 
p
ro
st
h
e
ti
c
s 
a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
iq
u
e
s 

a
n
d
 in
 t
h
e
 u
se
 o
f 
c
e
ll 
sa
lv
a
g
e
 d
e
v
ic
e
s 

fo
r 
b
lo
o
d
 c
o
n
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
  

•
 S
to
c
k
s 
o
f 
g
ra
ft
s,
 in
st
ru
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

su
tu
re
s 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
d
is
e
a
se
  

•
 H
a
n
d
-h
e
ld
 D
o
p
p
le
r 
u
lt
ra
so
u
n
d
 

m
a
c
h
in
e
 a
n
d
 p
o
rt
a
b
le
 d
u
p
le
x 
d
e
v
ic
e
s 
  

•
 A
c
c
e
ss
 t
o
 b
lo
o
d
 a
n
d
 b
lo
o
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
ts
  

 S
e
e
 S
e
p
a
ra
te
 L
is
t 
(S
O
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
) 

  

 V
ie
w
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
 

 N
o
te
: 
 T
h
is
 Q
S
 a
p
p
lie
s 
to
 a
ll 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
ry
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 d
a
y
 

c
a
se
 s
u
rg
e
ry
 o
n
 h
o
sp
it
a
l s
it
e
s 

o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
h
e
re
 in
-

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
re
 

b
a
se
d
. 
 

 
 

 

 1
8
 

 In
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s,
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 

a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
a
ll 

ti
m
e
s:
  

 •
 
D
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
P
A
M
 

st
a
ff
 e
.g
. 
 

•
 
P
h
y
si
o
th
e
ra
p
is
ts
, 
 

•
 
O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l t
h
e
ra
p
is
ts
 a
n
d
  

•
 
S
o
c
ia
l W
o
rk
e
rs
 

 D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 
a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
  

 

 
 

 

Page 73



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
6
 

•
 
S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
N
e
u
ro
lo
g
y
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 

      

G
U
ID
E
LI
N
E
S
 A
N
D
 P
R
O
TO
C
O
LS
  
 

 1
9
 

 C
lin
ic
a
l g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

w
it
h
 L
A
S
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
lin
ic
a
l 

in
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
tr
a
n
sf
e
rr
in
g
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

A
c
c
id
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

o
f 
h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
in
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 

se
rv
ic
e
s 
to
 t
h
e
 h
o
sp
it
a
l/
s 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 in
-

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s.
 

 

 W
ri
tt
e
n
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 a
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 74



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
7
 

  2
1
  

 

 C
lin
ic
a
l g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l t
o
 

th
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 in
 u
se
 in
 

a
ll 
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l S
u
rg
e
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s.
  
Th
e
se
 

g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 c
o
v
e
r:
  

 •
 I
n
v
e
st
ig
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
  
 

•
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
h
a
e
m
o
d
y
n
a
m
ic
a
lly
 

u
n
st
a
b
le
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
  

•
 I
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
se
e
k
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
  

•
 I
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 t
ra
n
sf
e
r 
 

•
 I
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

n
o
n
-u
rg
e
n
t 
re
fe
rr
a
l. 

 W
ri
tt
e
n
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
 

N
o
te
s:
  
 

Th
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 

st
ru
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
ss
 t
o
 

su
p
p
o
rt
 c
lin
ic
a
l e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
  

  1
 T
h
is
 Q
S
 a
p
p
lie
s 
to
 a
ll 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

g
e
n
e
ra
l s
u
rg
e
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 c
a
tc
h
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
 o
f 
th
e
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 2
 G
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
xp
lic
it
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
sf
e
r 
o
f 
c
ro
ss
-m
a
tc
h
e
d
 

b
lo
o
d
. 
 

    

 
 

 

  2
2
  
 

 

 A
 p
ro
to
c
o
l f
o
r 
E
V
A
R
/T
V
A
R
 g
ra
ft
 

su
rv
e
ill
a
n
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 in
 p
la
c
e
. 
 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 p
ro
to
c
o
l  

N
o
te
: 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
to
c
o
l m

a
y
 b
e
 

th
a
t 
n
o
 s
u
rv
e
ill
a
n
c
e
 is
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 u
n
le
ss
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
ss
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 

 
 

 

Page 75



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
8
 

  

  2
3
  
 

 

D
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 in
 u
se
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
, 
a
t 
le
a
st
: 
 

•
 D
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 t
o
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
 

•
 D
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 h
o
m
e
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

lo
c
a
l r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
 

•
 R
e
fe
rr
a
l t
o
 li
m
b
-f
it
ti
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  
 

•
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
t’
s 

G
e
n
e
ra
l P
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r.
 

•
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 c
a
re
 n
u
rs
e
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s 
 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
 

 W
ill
 in
c
lu
d
e
 c
le
a
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l 

p
ro
c
e
ss
 a
n
d
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
sf
e
rr
in
g
 c
a
re
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 lo
c
a
l 

u
n
it
s 
a
n
d
 c
lin
ic
ia
n
s 
 

 Lo
c
a
l s
te
e
ri
n
g
 g
ro
u
p
s 
w
ill
 b
e
 in
 

p
la
c
e
 a
s 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
A
2
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 

to
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 

re
fe
rr
a
l p
ro
c
e
ss
 a
n
d
 id
e
n
ti
fy
 

ri
sk
s 
 

 

 
 

 

  2
4
  
 

 

 Th
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
w
a
re
 

o
f 
lo
c
a
l g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
fo
r 
e
n
d
 o
f 
lif
e
 c
a
re
. 
 

 A
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 e
n
d
 o
f 
lif
e
 c
a
re
 t
h
a
t 

a
re
 u
se
d
 b
y
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
p
a
lli
a
ti
v
e
 

c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 lo
c
a
l a
re
a
. 
 

    

 
 

 

S
E
R
V
IC
E
 O
R
G
A
N
IS
A
TI
O
N
 A
N
D
 L
IA
IS
O
N
 W
IT
H
 O
TH
E
R
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 

Page 76



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

1
9
 

  2
5
  
 

 

 A
 m
u
lt
i-
d
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 t
e
a
m
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
d
is
e
a
se
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 a
t 

le
a
st
 w
e
e
k
ly
 in
v
o
lv
in
g
 a
t 
le
a
st
: 
 

 •
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
sp
e
c
ia
lis
ts
  

 •
 R
a
d
io
lo
g
is
ts
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 in
v
o
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 c
a
re
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 

d
is
e
a
se
  

•
  

 N
o
te
s 
o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s 
h
e
ld
. 
 

N
o
te
s:
  
  

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s 
w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
s 
o
f 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
. 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
/p
la
n
 w
ill
 b
e
  

fo
rm
a
lly
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
  
in
 t
h
e
 

m
e
d
ic
a
l n
o
te
s 
  

1
0
 n
o
te
s 
to
 b
e
 a
u
d
it
e
d
 f
o
r 

q
u
a
lit
y
 a
ss
u
ra
n
c
e
  

 1
 A
ll 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l r
a
d
io
lo
g
is
ts
 

a
n
d
 s
u
rg
e
o
n
s 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 a
tt
e
n
d
 

th
e
 M
D
T 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
. 
 

2
 O
th
e
r 
st
a
ff
, 
fo
r 
e
xa
m
p
le
, 

w
a
rd
 m
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 m
a
y
 a
ls
o
 

a
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 M
D
T 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s.
  

   

 
 

 

G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 

 
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
  

D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
  

B
a
se
 

R
A
G
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

C
o
m
p
le

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te
  

  2
6
  
 

 

A
 w
a
rd
-b
a
se
d
 m
u
lt
i-
d
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 t
e
a
m
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
ss
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
x 
re
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 n
e
e
d
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 a
t 

le
a
st
 w
e
e
k
ly
 in
v
o
lv
in
g
 a
t 
le
a
st
: 
 

 

N
o
te
s 
o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s 
h
e
ld
  
 

N
o
te
: 
Th
is
 Q
S
 a
p
p
lie
s 
o
n
ly
 t
o
 

h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 w
it
h
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s.
  

    

 
 

 

Page 77



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
0
 

•
 W
a
rd
 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
 

•
 N
u
rs
e
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
e
xp
e
rt
is
e
 in
 c
a
re
 

o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 a
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
s 
(Q
S
7
) 
 

•
 P
h
y
si
o
th
e
ra
p
y
 (
Q
S
3
4
) 
 

•
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l t
h
e
ra
p
y
 (
Q
S
3
5
) 
 

•
 S
o
c
ia
l w
o
rk
 (
Q
S
3
5
) 
 

 2
7
  
 

 

Th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

su
b
m
it
ti
n
g
 d
a
ta
 o
n
 a
ll 
in
d
e
x 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s 
to
 t
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l V
a
sc
u
la
r 

D
a
ta
b
a
se
. 
  

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l V
a
sc
u
la
r 
D
a
ta
b
a
se
 

re
p
o
rt
s 
sh
o
w
in
g
 r
is
k
-a
d
ju
st
e
d
 

c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 

se
rv
ic
e
. 
 

N
o
te
: 
D
a
ta
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
v
e
r 
a
ll 

p
a
rt
s 
o
f 
th
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
o
n
-s
it
e
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 

se
rv
ic
e
s.
  

 
 

 

  2
8
. 
  

 

Th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
a
u
d
it
s 
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a
t 
le
a
st
: 
 

 •
 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 s
u
rg
e
o
n
 a
c
ro
ss
 t
h
e
 

se
rv
ic
e
’s
 c
a
tc
h
m
e
n
t 
a
re
a
. 
 

  

D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
a
u
d
it
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

N
o
te
: 
A
u
d
it
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 c
o
v
e
r 
a
ll 

p
a
rt
s 
o
f 
th
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
o
n
-s
it
e
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 

se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
n
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 in
c
lu
d
e
 

c
o
m
p
a
ri
so
n
 o
f 
H
E
S
 d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l V
a
sc
u
la
r 
D
a
ta
b
a
se
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
. 
A
u
d
it
s 
o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s 

b
y
 s
u
rg
e
o
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 in
c
lu
d
e
 a
ll 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s,
 in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

a
n
y
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 

su
rg
e
o
n
s.
  
 

 
 

 

Page 78



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
1
 

  2
9
. 
  

 

 A
ll 
p
o
lic
ie
s,
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s 
a
n
d
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 

sh
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 T
ru
st
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr
o
l p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s.
  

 P
o
lic
ie
s,
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s 
a
n
d
 

g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
a
so
n
a
b
le
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
l q
u
a
lit
y
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
, 

re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 v
e
rs
io
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
l. 
 

  

 
 

 

  3
0
 

 Th
e
 in
 p
a
ti
e
n
t 
se
rv
ic
e
 m
u
st
 h
a
v
e
 

d
e
ta
ile
d
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p
la
n
 t
o
 

e
n
su
re
 t
h
a
t 
in
 t
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
o
f 
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 

b
re
a
k
 d
o
w
n
, 
th
e
a
tr
e
 u
n
a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
r 
  

o
th
e
r 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
 f
o
rm
a
l 

p
ro
to
c
o
l a
n
d
 b
a
c
k
 u
p
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 

u
rg
e
n
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
. 
  
Th
is
 m
a
y
 in
c
lu
d
e
 

fo
rm
a
l t
ra
n
sf
e
r 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 w
it
h
in
 o
r 

o
u
ts
id
e
 N
C
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
  

 

 B
u
si
n
e
ss
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p
la
n
s 
fo
r 
 

Im
a
g
in
g
  

Th
e
a
tr
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s 
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 T
ra
n
sf
e
rs
, 
w
it
h
 

c
le
a
r 
lin
k
s 
to
 L
A
S
 

O
th
e
rs
  

 

 
 

 

 
TR
U
S
T 
A
N
D
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
TA
FF
IN
G
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 

  3
1
. 
  

 

 In
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
-b
a
se
d
 

re
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
w
it
h
 e
xp
e
rt
is
e
 in
 

th
e
 c
a
re
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 

d
is
e
a
se
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
m
p
u
te
e
s,
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
t 
le
a
st
: 
 

•
 P
h
y
si
o
th
e
ra
p
y
  

•
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l t
h
e
ra
p
y
 

•
 S
o
c
ia
l W
o
rk
 

 D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
s 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 lo
c
a
l 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

b
e
in
g
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 a
 

re
fe
rr
in
g
 h
o
sp
it
a
l w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 

c
o
m
p
le
x 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
. 

N
o
te
s:
 T
h
e
se
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 

 
 

 

Page 79



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
2
 

  

th
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
’s
 u
su
a
l 

c
a
tc
h
m
e
n
t 
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 b
u
t 

m
a
y
 b
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 in
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 

w
a
y
s 
in
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s.
 

 
A
2
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
to
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 6
 m
o
n
th
s 
a
ft
e
r 
o
ri
g
in
a
l 
si
g
n
 o
ff
. 

 
  
 A
2
  
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T 
FO
R
 P
A
TI
E
N
TS
 A
N
D
 C
A
R
E
R
S
 

 
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
  

D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
  

B
a
se
 

R
A
G
  

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

C
o
m
p
le

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te
  

3
2
. 

 Th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
: 
 

•
 I
n
te
rf
a
it
h
 a
n
d
 s
p
ir
it
u
a
l s
u
p
p
o
rt
  

•
 I
n
te
rp
re
te
rs
  

•
 B
e
re
a
v
e
m
e
n
t 
su
p
p
o
rt
  

•
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
se
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 

sh
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
  

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
 

 N
o
te
: 
 ‘
A
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
’ 
o
f 
su
p
p
o
rt
 

se
rv
ic
e
s 
is
 n
o
t 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 b
u
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
a
se
 m
ix
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
th
e
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
. 
 

 
 

 

 3
3
. 

 Th
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
: 
 

 •
 M
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s 
fo
r 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
a
re
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
. 
 

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

E
xa
m
p
le
s 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s 
m
a
d
e
 a
s 

a
 r
e
su
lt
 o
f 
fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
. 
 

N
o
te
: 
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
a
re
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 in
v
o
lv
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s,
 

fo
c
u
s 
g
ro
u
p
s 
&
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
If
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
Tr
u
st
-w
id
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

th
e
y
 m
u
st
 c
le
a
rl
y
 id
e
n
ti
fy
 

      

      

      

Page 80



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
3
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
is
su
e
s 
 

 A
2
 S
TA
FF
IN
G
: 
 H
O
S
P
IT
A
L 
S
IT
E
S
 A
C
C
E
P
TI
N
G
 V
A
S
C
U
LA
R
 E
M
E
R
G
E
N
C
Y
 A
D
M
IS
S
IO
N
S
  

  3
4
. 
  

 

 P
h
y
si
o
th
e
ra
p
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
it
h
 t
im
e
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 

d
is
e
a
se
 o
n
 w
e
e
k
d
a
y
s 
a
n
d
 a
n
 o
n
-c
a
ll 

se
rv
ic
e
 a
t 
w
e
e
k
e
n
d
s.
  

 D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
  

  

 
 

 

  3
5
. 
  

 

 A
c
c
e
ss
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
in
-p
a
ti
e
n
ts
  

•
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l t
h
e
ra
p
y
  

•
 S
o
c
ia
l W
o
rk
 

 

 D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
  

 N
o
te
: 
Th
e
se
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
m
a
y
 b
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

th
e
 p
o
st
-d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

(Q
S
1
3
) 
o
r 
b
y
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
st
a
ff
. 
 

 

 
 

 

 3
6
. 
  

 

 In
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s,
 m
a
g
n
e
ti
c
 r
e
so
n
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
g
io
g
ra
p
h
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 n
o
rm
a
l w
o
rk
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
. 
 

 V
ie
w
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
 

 N
o
te
: 
Th
is
 Q
S
 is
 a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 o
n
ly
 

to
 h
o
sp
it
a
ls
 w
it
h
 in
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s.
  

 

 
 

 

Page 81



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
4
 

 3
7
 

 Th
e
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
O
u
tp
a
ti
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
ss
 t
o
  

 

•
 
V
a
sc
u
la
r 
u
lt
ra
so
u
n
d
 

•
 
F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
to
 p
e
rf
o
rm
 a
n
k
le
 

b
ra
c
h
ia
l p
re
ss
u
re
 t
e
st
s 

•
 
P
o
rt
a
b
le
 d
u
p
le
x 
sc
a
n
n
e
r 

 A
ll 
st
a
ff
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
xp
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
a
ss
e
ss
in
g
, 

sc
a
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 c
a
ro
ti
d
 

d
u
p
le
xe
s.
 

    

 O
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s 
a
n
d
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

  S
ta
ff
in
g
 d
e
ta
ils
  

 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
e
 

a
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
ts
. 

N
o
te
: 
 

1
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 o
u
tp
a
ti
e
n
t 
c
lin
ic
 o
r 

im
a
g
in
g
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t.
  
Th
e
 

se
rv
ic
e
 m
a
y
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
is
t,
 

ra
d
io
g
ra
p
h
e
r,
 n
u
rs
e
 o
r 

ra
d
io
lo
g
is
t.
 

 

  

 
 

  3
8
. 
  

 

 In
-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
w
a
rd
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
: 
 

 •
 H
a
n
d
-h
e
ld
 D
o
p
p
le
r 
u
lt
ra
so
u
n
d
 

m
a
c
h
in
e
 

 V
ie
w
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
 

 

 
 

 

 3
9
. 

 G
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
o
n
 li
fe
st
y
le
 a
d
v
ic
e
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 in
 u
se
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
, 
a
t 

le
a
st
: 
 

•
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
sm
o
k
in
g
 c
e
ss
a
ti
o
n
  

•
 D
ie
ta
ry
 a
d
v
ic
e
  

•
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s 
o
f 
p
h
y
si
c
a
l a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 

w
e
ig
h
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 

 W
ri
tt
e
n
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
se
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 f
o
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
; 
fo
llo
w
 u
p
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 

k
e
y
 w
o
rk
e
r.
  

 A
u
d
it
 o
f 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

 
 

 

Page 82



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
5
 

re
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 c
a
re
 

sm
o
k
in
g
 c
e
ss
a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
s 
 

 R
e
v
ie
w
 1
0
 s
e
ts
 o
f 
n
o
te
s.
 

 A
2
 G
U
ID
E
LI
N
E
S
 A
N
D
 P
R
O
TO
C
O
LS
  
 

  4
0
  

 

 C
lin
ic
a
l g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 in
 u
se
 

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 in
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

c
a
rd
io
lo
g
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 c
a
re
 o
f 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
d
is
e
a
se
. 
 

 

 W
ri
tt
e
n
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 

c
a
rd
io
lo
g
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 p
re
-

a
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
t.
  

 
 

 

  4
1
  
 

 

 C
lin
ic
a
l g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 in
 u
se
 

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 in
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l f
o
r 
p
sy
c
h
o
lo
g
ic
a
l s
u
p
p
o
rt
. 
 

 

 W
ri
tt
e
n
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
 

 
 

 

  4
2
 

 

 G
u
id
e
lin
e
s,
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

p
a
lli
a
ti
v
e
 c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
se
rv
in
g
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
, 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 in
 u
se
 

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
, 
a
t 
le
a
st
: 
 

 •
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
a
c
c
e
ss
in
g
 a
d
v
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

p
a
lli
a
ti
v
e
 c
a
re
 t
e
a
m
. 
 

•
 I
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
s 
fo
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
p
a
lli
a
ti
v
e
 c
a
re
 t
e
a
m
. 
 

•
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
sh
a
re
d
 c
a
re
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

p
a
lli
a
ti
v
e
 c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s.
  

 W
ri
tt
e
n
 g
u
id
e
lin
e
s,
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 

sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
p
a
lli
a
ti
v
e
 c
a
re
 

se
rv
ic
e
/s
 s
e
rv
in
g
 t
h
e
 lo
c
a
l 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
. 
 

  

 
 

 

Page 83



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
6
 

 

  4
3
  
 

 

 A
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 lo
c
a
l r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 

se
rv
ic
e
s 
(Q
S
1
3
) 
sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 a
t 
le
a
st
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 li
n
k
s 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

v
a
sc
u
la
r 
se
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
ss
 a
n
y
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 

 N
o
te
s 
o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s 
h
e
ld
. 
 

 
 

 

A
2
 G
O
V
E
R
N
A
N
C
E
 

  4
4
  
 

 

 Th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

re
p
o
rt
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
si
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
a
n
d
 

c
lin
ic
a
l o
u
tc
o
m
e
s.
  
Th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
c
ti
o
n
s 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 

e
xp
e
c
te
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
g
re
ss
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s 
y
e
a
r’
s 

a
n
n
u
a
l r
e
p
o
rt
. 
 

 

 A
n
n
u
a
l r
e
p
o
rt
/s
. 
 

N
o
te
: 
Th
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l V
a
sc
u
la
r 

D
a
ta
b
a
se
 r
e
p
o
rt
s 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

m
u
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l r
e
p
o
rt
. 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 84



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
7
 

6
. 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 (
To
 d
is
c
u
ss
..
..
) 

  In
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

 U
n
sa
fe
  

 A
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
  

 A
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
  

 M
o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 A
A
A
 

S
c
re
e
n
in
g
?
  

1
. 
3
0
 d
a
y
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 e
le
c
ti
v
e
 A
A
A
 s
u
rg
e
ry
  

>
1
0
%
  

<
8
%
  

<
6
%
  

Y
e
s 
 

 D
o
m
a
in
 o
f 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
: 
 

 D
a
ta
 S
o
u
rc
e
  

 R
a
ti
o
n
a
le
  

 Ta
rg
e
t/
n
o
rm
s/
to
le
ra
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
 

2
. 
S
tr
o
k
e
 r
a
te
 (
se
lf
-r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
, 
3
0
 d
a
y
) 
 

D
is
a
b
lin
g
  

N
o
n
-d
is
a
b
lin
g
  

N
V
D
/H
E
S
  

K
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

Ta
rg
e
t 
2
%
, 
le
ss
 t
h
a
n
 3
%
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

5
%
 

3
. 
3
0
 d
a
y
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 f
o
r 
C
a
ro
ti
d
 E
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
y
 

H
E
S
  

K
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

Ta
rg
e
t 
1
%
 (
fr
o
m
 U
K
 c
a
ro
ti
d
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s 
a
u
d
it
 5
) 
 

4
. 
E
le
c
ti
v
e
 o
p
e
n
 in
fr
a
re
n
a
l a
n
e
u
ry
sm
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 r
a
te
: 
 

C
ru
d
e
  

C
a
se
-M
ix
 a
d
ju
st
e
d
  

H
E
S
/ 

N
V
D
  

K
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

Ta
rg
e
t 
–
 3
.5
%
 (
V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
, 
1
0
) 
 

D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 w
it
h
in
 

V
a
sc
u
la
r 
so
c
ie
ty
 f
u
n
n
e
l p
lo
ts
  

5
. 
R
u
p
tu
re
d
 in
fr
a
re
n
a
l a
n
e
u
ry
sm
 r
e
p
a
ir
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 r
a
te
  

C
ru
d
e
  

C
a
se
-M
ix
 a
d
ju
st
e
d
  

H
E
S
/ 

N
V
D
  

K
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 w
it
h
in
 

V
a
sc
u
la
r 
so
c
ie
ty
 f
u
n
n
e
l p
lo
ts
  

6
. 
E
V
A
R
 –
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 r
a
te
  

C
ru
d
e
  

C
a
se
-m
ix
 a
d
ju
st
e
d
  

H
E
S
/N
V
D
  

K
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

<
 3
%
 

7
. 
A
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
c
ri
ti
c
a
l l
im
b
 is
c
h
a
e
m
ia
 

3
0
 d
a
y
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 –
 c
a
se
m
ix
 a
d
ju
st
e
d
  

H
E
S
  

K
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 w
it
h
in
 

V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 r
is
k
-a
d
ju
st
e
d
 f
u
n
n
e
l 

p
lo
ts
  
 

8
. 
3
0
 d
a
y
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 r
a
te
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 in
fr
a
in
g
u
in
a
l b
y
p
a
ss
  

 

•
 
C
ru
d
e
  

•
 
C
a
se
 m
ix
 a
d
ju
st
e
d
  

H
E
S
  

K
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

Ta
rg
e
t:
  

D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 w
it
h
in
 

V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 f
u
n
n
e
l p
lo
t 
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l a
v
e
ra
g
e
 4
.2
%
 (
F
o
u
rt
h
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l V
a
sc
u
la
r 
D
a
ta
b
a
se
 R
e
p
o
rt
, 

Page 85



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
8
 

V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 r
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
4
, 
1
2
) 
 

 

9
. 
In
 h
o
sp
it
a
l g
ra
ft
 o
c
c
lu
si
o
n
 r
a
te
  

D
ia
b
e
ti
c
  

N
o
n
-d
ia
b
e
ti
c
  

 

N
V
D
  

M
a
rk
e
r 
o
f 

te
c
h
n
ic
a
l s
u
c
c
e
ss
 

o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
  

N
o
rm
s 
a
n
d
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
s 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
. 
  
 

1
0
. 
In
-h
o
sp
it
a
l s
u
rg
ic
a
l s
it
e
 in
fe
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
  

H
E
S
/ 

N
V
D
  

K
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

N
o
rm
s 
a
n
d
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
s 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
  

1
1
. 
R
e
a
d
m
is
si
o
n
 r
a
te
-s
tr
a
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s:
  

D
ir
e
c
tl
y
 R
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
a
d
m
is
si
o
n
  

In
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 r
e
la
te
d
  

N
o
t 
re
la
te
d
  

H
E
S
  

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
a
te
s 

in
d
ic
a
te
s 
g
o
o
d
 

q
u
a
lit
y
 c
a
re
 w
it
h
 

lo
w
 c
o
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 

ra
te
s 
a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
 

d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
  

N
o
rm
s 
a
n
d
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
s 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 A
C
U
. 

 

 P
ro
c
e
ss
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 (
To
 d
is
c
u
ss
..
..
) 

  D
o
m
a
in
 o
f 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
: 
 

 D
a
ta
 

S
o
u
rc
e
  

 R
a
ti
o
n
a
le
  

 Ta
rg
e
t/
n
o
rm
s/
to
le
ra
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
 

 C
a
ro
ti
d
 e
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
y
: 
 

1
2
. 
Ti
m
e
 f
ro
m
 f
ir
st
 e
v
e
n
t 
(s
tr
o
k
e
 o
r 
TI
A
) 
to
 

c
a
ro
ti
d
 e
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
y
 (
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c
 c
a
se
s 

o
p
e
ra
te
d
 o
n
 w
it
h
in
 2
 w
e
e
k
s)
  

C
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 s
tr
o
k
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
  

N
V
D
  

M
a
xi
m
u
m
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 e
a
rl
y
 in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 1
,2
  

1
0
0
%
 (
to
le
ra
n
c
e
 9
0
%
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 f
o
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
c
h
o
ic
e
) 
 

1
3
. 
P
re
-o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 le
n
g
th
 o
f 
st
a
y
  

H
E
S
/N

V
D
  

S
h
o
rt
e
r 
st
a
y
 in
d
ic
a
te
s 
g
o
o
d
 u
se
 o
f 

re
so
u
rc
e
s 
 

<
 2
4
 h
o
u
rs
 –
 t
a
rg
e
t 
1
0
0
%
 (
to
le
ra
n
c
e
 

le
v
e
l 9
5
%
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo
r 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

su
rg
e
ry
) 
 

Page 86



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

2
9
 

 D
o
m
a
in
 o
f 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
: 
 

 D
a
ta
 

S
o
u
rc
e
  

 R
a
ti
o
n
a
le
  

 Ta
rg
e
t/
n
o
rm
s/
to
le
ra
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
 

1
4
. 
P
o
st
-o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 le
n
g
th
 o
f 
st
a
y
  

H
E
S
/ 

N
V
D
  

S
h
o
rt
e
r 
st
a
y
 in
d
ic
a
te
s 
g
o
o
d
 u
se
 o
f 

re
so
u
rc
e
s 
 

<
 3
 d
a
y
s 
(m
e
d
ia
n
 f
ro
m
 U
K
 C
a
ro
ti
d
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s 
a
u
d
it
 5
) 
 

1
5
. 
C
a
ro
ti
d
 e
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
y
 r
a
te
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
  

H
E
S
  

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
a
te
 in
d
ic
a
te
s 
g
o
o
d
 

re
fe
rr
a
l m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s 
a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
ss
 t
o
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
 

1
2
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

(w
w
w
.n
ic
e
.o
rg
.u
k
 6
) 
 

1
6
. 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
ro
ti
d
 e
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
ie
s 

p
e
rf
o
rm
e
d
 p
e
r 
u
n
it
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r 
 

H
E
S
  

H
ig
h
e
r 
v
o
lu
m
e
s 
a
ss
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s 
7
,8
  

M
in
im
u
m
 t
h
re
sh
o
ld
 –
 3
0
 c
a
se
s 
p
e
r 

y
e
a
r 
7
,8
  

 A
o
rt
ic
 s
u
rg
e
ry
: 
 

1
7
. 
Le
n
g
th
 o
f 
p
re
-o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 s
ta
y
 (
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 

re
p
a
ir
) 
 

H
E
S
  

S
h
o
rt
e
r 
st
a
y
 in
d
ic
a
te
s 
g
o
o
d
 u
se
 o
f 

re
so
u
rc
e
s 
 

<
 1
 d
a
y
  

1
8
. 
Le
n
g
th
 o
f 
st
a
y
 (
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
) 
 
H
E
S
  

S
h
o
rt
e
r 
st
a
y
 in
d
ic
a
te
s 
g
o
o
d
 u
se
 o
f 

re
so
u
rc
e
s 
 

E
le
c
ti
v
e
 -
 <
9
 d
a
y
s 
–
m
e
d
ia
n
 f
ro
m
 H
E
S
  

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 -
<
 1
0
 d
a
y
s-
 m
e
d
ia
n
 f
ro
m
 

H
E
S
  

A
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
lim
b
 i
sc
h
a
e
m
ia
: 
 

1
9
. 
B
e
lo
w
 k
n
e
e
 t
o
 a
b
o
v
e
 k
n
e
e
 r
e
v
is
io
n
 r
a
te
  

N
V
D
/H

E
S
  

Lo
w
 r
a
te
 in
d
ic
a
te
s 
g
o
o
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

m
a
k
in
g
  

R
e
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
l 

<
 1
3
.5
%
 w
h
e
n
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
lo
w
 

k
n
e
e
 a
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 (
H
E
S
) 
 

2
0
. 
P
o
st
-o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 le
n
g
th
 o
f 
st
a
y
 –
 c
a
se
m
ix
 

a
d
ju
st
e
d
  

H
E
S
/N

V
D
  

S
h
o
rt
e
r 
st
a
y
 in
d
ic
a
te
s 
g
o
o
d
 u
se
 o
f 

re
so
u
rc
e
s 
a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
 

to
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s 
 

M
e
d
ia
n
 2
5
 d
a
y
s 
(H
E
S
) 
 

2
1
. 
A
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 –
 

c
a
se
m
ix
 a
d
ju
st
e
d
  

H
E
S
  

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
ig
u
re
s 
d
e
m
o
n
st
ra
te
 

g
o
o
d
 li
m
b
 s
a
lv
a
g
e
 r
a
te
s 
a
n
d
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
c
y
 o
f 
c
a
re
 f
o
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 

d
ia
b
e
te
s 
o
r 
C
LI
  

R
a
n
g
e
 1
0
-7
6
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 

o
n
 c
a
se
m
ix
 1
1
  

 Lo
w
e
r 
lim
b
 i
sc
h
a
e
m
ia
: 
in
fr
a
in
g
u
in
a
l 
b
y
p
a
ss
  

Page 87



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

3
0
 

 D
o
m
a
in
 o
f 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
: 
 

 D
a
ta
 

S
o
u
rc
e
  

 R
a
ti
o
n
a
le
  

 Ta
rg
e
t/
n
o
rm
s/
to
le
ra
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
 

2
2
. 
R
a
te
 o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 r
e
v
a
sc
u
la
ri
sa
ti
o
n
 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 (
c
a
se
m
ix
 a
d
ju
st
e
d
) 
 

H
E
S
  

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
ig
u
re
s 
d
e
m
o
n
st
ra
te
 a
 

p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

re
v
a
sc
u
la
ri
sa
ti
o
n
  

R
a
n
g
e
 2
2
-8
3
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 

o
n
 c
a
se
m
ix
 1
1
  

2
3
. 
R
a
te
 o
f 
e
n
d
o
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
re
v
a
sc
u
la
ri
sa
ti
o
n
 

p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 (
c
a
se
m
ix
 

a
d
ju
st
e
d
) 
 

H
E
S
  

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
ig
u
re
s 
d
e
m
o
n
st
ra
te
 a
 

p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

re
v
a
sc
u
la
ri
sa
ti
o
n
  

R
a
n
g
e
 1
0
-9
1
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 

o
n
 c
a
se
m
ix
 1
1
  

2
4
. 
P
re
-o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 le
n
g
th
 o
f 
st
a
y
 (
in
fr
a
in
g
u
in
a
l 

b
y
p
a
ss
)-
  

-C
a
se
 m
ix
 a
d
ju
st
e
d
  

H
E
S
  

S
h
o
rt
e
r 
st
a
y
 in
d
ic
a
te
s 
g
o
o
d
 u
se
 o
f 

re
so
u
rc
e
s,
 t
im
e
ly
 im
a
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
in
g
  

Ta
rg
e
t:
  

E
le
c
ti
v
e
 -
 <
1
 d
a
y
  

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 -
<
 3
 d
a
y
s 
 

2
5
. 
P
o
st
-o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 le
n
g
th
 o
f 
st
a
y
 (
in
fr
a
in
g
u
in
a
l 

b
y
p
a
ss
) 
 

-C
a
se
m
ix
 a
d
ju
st
e
d
  

H
E
S
  

S
h
o
rt
e
r 
st
a
y
 in
d
ic
a
te
s 
le
ss
 

c
o
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s,
 g
o
o
d
 u
se
 o
f 
re
so
u
rc
e
s 

a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 r
e
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
  

N
o
rm
s:
  

E
le
c
ti
v
e
 –
 m
e
d
ia
n
 8
 d
a
y
s 
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 –
 m
e
d
ia
n
 1
4
 d
a
y
s 
(H
E
S
) 
 

2
6
. 
R
a
ti
o
 o
f 
p
ro
st
h
e
ti
c
 t
o
 v
e
in
 g
ra
ft
s 
u
se
d
  

H
E
S
/ 

N
V
D
  

V
e
in
 g
ra
ft
 a
ss
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
it
h
 b
e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s 
 

Ta
rg
e
t:
  

P
ro
st
h
e
ti
c
 g
ra
ft
 r
a
te
 0
%
 (
To
le
ra
n
c
e
 u
p
 

to
 2
5
%
) 
 

(B
a
se
d
 o
n
 r
a
te
 o
f 
3
5
%
 in
 F
o
u
rt
h
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l V
a
sc
u
la
r 
D
a
ta
b
a
se
 R
e
p
o
rt
, 

V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 r
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
4
, 
1
2
) 
 

 G
lo
b
a
l 
m
e
a
su
re
s:
  

2
7
. 
1
8
 w
e
e
k
s 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
  

Tr
u
st
 

D
a
sh
b

o
a
rd
 

K
e
y
 in
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

In
d
ic
a
te
s 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
, 
g
o
o
d
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s 
a
n
d
 e
a
se
 o
f 
a
c
c
e
ss
 t
o
 

se
rv
ic
e
s 
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l t
a
rg
e
ts
: 
 

A
d
m
it
te
d
 p
a
th
w
a
y
s 
>
 9
0
%
  

N
o
n
-a
d
m
it
te
d
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 >
9
5
%
  

2
8
. 
C
o
m
p
le
te
n
e
ss
 o
f 
d
a
ta
 s
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
 t
o
 N
V
D
 

(p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
) 
 

N
V
D
 /
 

H
E
S
  

In
d
ic
a
te
s 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 c
lin
ic
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
 

Ta
rg
e
t 
1
0
0
%
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
  

 

Page 88



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

3
1
 

7
. 
R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

  Y
e
a
r 
  

Ti
tl
e
  

P
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 b
y
  

Ju
ly
 2
0
1
0
  

U
K
 A
u
d
it
 o
f 
V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
u
rg
ic
a
l S
e
rv
ic
e
s 
&
 C
a
ro
ti
d
 

E
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
y
 

Th
e
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 o
f 
G
re
a
t 
B
ri
ta
in
 a
n
d
 I
re
la
n
d
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l R
a
d
io
lo
g
y
: 
Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s 
fo
r 
P
a
ti
e
n
ts
. 
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
. 
G
a
te
w
a
y
 R
e
f:
 1
2
7
8
8
  

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
  

A
t 
a
 G
la
n
c
e
 G
u
id
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
M
e
d
ic
a
l 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
o
f 
Fi
tn
e
ss
 t
o
 D
ri
v
e
  

D
ri
v
e
rs
 M
e
d
ic
a
l G
ro
u
p
, 
D
V
LA
, 
S
w
a
n
se
a
  

A
u
g
u
st
 2
0
0
9
 (
V
e
rs
io
n
 2
.1
) 
 

E
ss
e
n
ti
a
l E
le
m
e
n
ts
 in
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
 A
b
d
o
m
in
a
l 

A
o
rt
ic
 A
n
e
u
ry
sm
 (
A
A
A
) 
S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 S
u
rv
e
ill
a
n
c
e
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
  

U
K
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
/ 
N
H
S
 S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s 
A
b
d
o
m
in
a
l A
o
rt
ic
 A
n
e
u
ri
sm
  

A
u
g
u
st
 3
rd
 2
0
0
9
, 
(V
e
rs
io
n
 

1
.1
) 
 

N
H
S
 A
b
d
o
m
in
a
l A
o
rt
ic
 A
n
e
u
ry
sm
 S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 -
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
a
n
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s 
 

U
K
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
/ 
N
H
S
 S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s 
A
b
d
o
m
in
a
l A
o
rt
ic
 A
n
e
u
ri
sm
  

Ju
ly
 2
0
0
9
 (
V
e
rs
io
n
 2
.0
) 
 

N
H
S
 A
b
d
o
m
in
a
l A
o
rt
ic
 A
n
e
u
ry
sm
 S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 –
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
e
rs
  

U
K
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
/ 
N
H
S
 S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s 
A
b
d
o
m
in
a
l A
o
rt
ic
 A
n
e
u
ri
sm
  

M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
 (
F
in
a
l V
e
rs
io
n
) 
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
su
lt
s 
o
f 
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 

A
A
A
 r
e
p
a
ir
  

C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
f 
th
e
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 o
f 
G
re
a
t 
B
ri
ta
in
 a
n
d
 

Ir
e
la
n
d
  

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
  

Th
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s 
fo
r 
P
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 

D
is
e
a
se
 2
0
0
9
 –
 “
P
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 a
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 r
a
p
id
 a
c
c
e
ss
 t
o
 a
 

sp
e
c
ia
lis
t 
v
a
sc
u
la
r 
te
a
m
 in
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
s 
o
f 
th
e
 U
K
”
  

Th
e
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 o
f 
G
re
a
t 
B
ri
ta
in
 a
n
d
 I
re
la
n
d
  

2
0
0
7
  

Th
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s 
2
0
0
7
  
Th
e
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 o
f 
G
re
a
t 
B
ri
ta
in
 a
n
d
 I
re
la
n
d
  

A
u
g
u
st
 2
0
0
6
  

Th
e
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 

A
c
c
e
ss
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 H
a
e
m
o
d
ia
ly
si
s 

P
a
ti
e
n
ts
 –
 R
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 
a
 J
o
in
t 
W
o
rk
in
g
 P
a
rt
y
  

Th
e
 R
e
n
a
l A
ss
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
  

Th
e
 V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
  

B
ri
ti
sh
 S
o
c
ie
ty
 o
f 
In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l R
a
d
io
lo
g
y
  

   

Page 89



 

6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 

 

3
2
 

    8
. 
 R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
s 

 1
. 
W
e
st
 M
id
la
n
d
s 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
W
e
st
 M
id
la
n
d
s 
C
lin
ic
a
l A
d
v
is
o
ry
 G
ro
u
p
, 
‘Q
u
a
lit
y
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s 
fo
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s 
fo
r 
P
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 

V
a
sc
u
la
r 
D
is
e
a
se
. 

2
. 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
e
a
lt
h
, 
S
tr
o
k
e
 T
e
a
m
, 
V
a
sc
u
la
r 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l S
tr
o
k
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 
A
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.d
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
/e
n
/P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
sa
n
d
st
a
ti
st
ic
s/
P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s/
P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
sP
o
lic
y
a
n
d
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
/d
h
_
0
8
1
0
6
2
 

3
. 
In
te
rc
o
lle
g
ia
te
 S
tr
o
k
e
 W
o
rk
in
g
 P
a
rt
y
, 
C
o
lle
g
e
 o
f 
P
h
y
si
c
ia
n
s.
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l C
lin
ic
a
l G
u
id
e
lin
e
s 
fo
r 
S
tr
o
k
e
 A
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.r
c
p
lo
n
d
o
n
.a
c
.u
k
/C
LI
N
IC
A
L-
S
TA
N
D
A
R
D
S
/C
E
E
U
/C
U
R
R
E
N
T-
W
O
R
K
/P
a
g
e
s/
S
tr
o
k
e
-p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
.a
sp
x 
  

4
. 
A
n
ti
th
ro
m
b
o
ti
c
 T
ri
a
lis
ts
’ 
C
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
 m
e
ta
-a
n
a
ly
si
s 
o
f 
ra
n
d
o
m
is
e
d
 t
ri
a
ls
 o
f 
a
n
it
p
la
te
le
t 
th
e
ra
p
y
 f
o
r 
p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 

d
e
a
th
, 
m
y
o
c
a
rd
ia
l i
n
fa
rc
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
tr
o
k
e
 in
 h
ig
h
-r
is
k
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
. 
B
M
J 
2
0
0
2
:3
2
4
:7
1
-8
6
 

5
. 
F
lu
v
a
st
in
 a
n
d
 p
e
ri
o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
 in
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 u
n
d
e
rg
o
in
g
 v
a
sc
u
la
r 
su
rg
e
ry
. 
 S
c
h
o
u
te
n
 O
 e
t 
a
l.,
 N
E
JM
 2
0
0
9
 3
6
1
:1
0
, 
9
8
0
-9
8
9
 

6
. 
U
K
 c
a
ro
ti
d
 in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s 
a
u
d
it
. 
A
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t:
 h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.v
a
sc
u
la
rs
o
c
ie
ty
.o
rg
.u
k
/l
ib
ra
ry
/a
u
d
it
-a
n
d
-r
e
se
a
rc
h
.h
tm
l?
st
a
rt
=
1
0
 

7
. 
A
ss
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s 
u
se
d
 in
 e
st
im
a
ti
n
g
 a
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
. 
A
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t 
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.n
ic
e
.o
rg
.u
k
/u
si
n
g
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
/c
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
g
u
id
e
s/
ti
a
/a
ss
u
m
p
ti
o
n
st
ia
se
rv
ic
e
.js
p
  

8
. 
S
ta
ti
st
ic
a
l m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
=
o
u
tc
o
m
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
c
a
ro
ti
d
 e
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
y
 f
o
r 
1
0
 y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
st
a
te
w
id
e
 d
a
ta
b
a
se
. 
G
ri
sw
o
ld
, 
M
. 
E
.,
 

C
h
a
n
g
, 
D
. 
C
.,
 P
e
rl
e
r,
 A
. 
P
.,
 5
9
:1
2
,2
0
0
2
 

9
. 
H
o
sp
it
a
l a
n
d
 s
u
rg
ic
a
l d
e
te
rm
in
a
n
ts
 o
f 
c
a
ro
ti
d
 e
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
y
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
. 
F
e
a
sb
y
, 
T.
 E
, 
Q
u
a
n
, 
H
.,
 G
h
a
li,
 W
. 
A
. 

1
0
. 
P
a
tc
h
 a
n
g
io
p
la
st
y
 v
e
rs
u
s 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 c
lo
su
re
 f
o
r 
c
a
ro
ti
d
 e
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
y
. 
B
o
n
d
 R
 e
t 
a
l.,
 C
o
c
h
ra
n
e
 D
a
ta
b
a
se
 S
y
st
 R
e
v
. 
2
0
0
9
 (
4
):
 

C
D
0
0
0
1
6
0
. 

1
1
. 
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
su
lt
s 
o
f 
A
A
A
 r
e
p
a
ir
. 
V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
. 
A
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t:
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.v
a
sc
u
la
rs
o
c
ie
ty
.o
rg
.u
k
/l
ib
ra
ry
/q
u
a
lit
y
-i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
h
tm
l 

1
2
. 
Lo
w
e
r 
Li
m
b
 R
e
v
a
sc
u
la
ri
sa
ti
o
n
 R
a
te
s 
a
n
d
 M
a
jo
r 
A
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 R
a
te
s 
in
 E
n
g
la
n
d
.,
 M
c
C
a
sl
in
 J
. 
E
.,
 H
a
fe
z,
 H
.,
 S
ta
n
sb
y
 G
.,
 B
ri
ti
sh
 J
o
u
rn
a
l o
f 

S
u
rg
e
ry
, 
2
0
0
7
, 
9
4
:8
3
5
-8
3
9
. 

1
3
. 
V
a
sc
u
la
r 
S
o
c
ie
ty
 o
f 
G
re
a
t 
B
ri
ta
in
 a
n
d
 I
re
la
n
d
, 
F
o
u
rt
h
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l D
a
ta
b
a
se
 R
e
p
o
rt
, 
2
0
0
4
. 
A
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
t:
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w
w
w
.v
a
sc
u
la
rs
o
c
ie
ty
.o
rg
.u
k
/l
ib
ra
ry
/a
u
d
it
-a
n
d
-r
e
se
a
rc
h
.h
tm
l  

 

Page 90



V
a
s
c
u
la
r 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
: 
A
o
rt
ic
 A
n
e
u
ry
s
m
s

E
le
c
ti
v
e
U
n
p
la
n
n
e
d
 
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
E
le
c
ti
v
e

U
n
p
la
n
n
e
d
 
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
E
le
c
ti
v
e
U
n
p
la
n
n
e
d
 
E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

T
o
ta
l 
P
a
ti
e
n
ts
 o
p
e
ra
te
d
 o
n

6
4

0
1
3

7
8

0
1
8

4
2

0
7

C
o
m
p
le
x
 A
n
e
u
ry
s
m
 r
e
p
a
ir
 a
t 
U
C
L
H
 w
a
s
 

s
u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 8
th
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
0
 a
n
d
 1
3
th
 D
e
c
 

2
0
1
0
. 
T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 p
o
s
tp
o
n
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 p
e
ri
o
d
 w
a
s
 1
3
 (
a
t 
o
n
e
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
).
 H
e
n
c
e
 

th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
ru
n
 r
a
te
 i
s
 9
0

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 o
p
e
ra
te
d
 o
n
 w
h
o
 

c
a
m
e
 i
n
 f
ro
m
 s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
?

0
%

n
/a

0
%

0
.1
6
%

n
/a

0
.0
0
%

0
%

n
/a

0
%

C
la
ri
fi
e
d
 a
s
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 a
 k
n
o
w
n
 u
n
-r
u
p
tu
re
d
 

A
A
A
 o
f 
a
t 
le
a
s
t 
5
.5
c
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 d
e
c
lin
e
d
 s
u
rg
e
ry

1
1
%

n
/a

0
%

n
/a

0
.0
0
%

2
.4
%

n
/a

0
%

8
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

P
re
-o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y
 f
o
r 
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

b
e
 k
e
p
t 
b
e
lo
w
 1
 d
a
y
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
.

1
.2
5

n
/a

n
/a

0
.9

n
/a

N
/A

1
n
/a

n
/a

m
e
a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
h
o
w
n

M
e
d
ia
n
 f
ig
u
re
s
 a
re
 

E
le
c
 =
 1

E
m
e
r 
=
 0

O
n
 t
h
e
 d
a
y
 c
a
n
c
e
lla
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 f
o
r 
e
le
c
ti
v
e
 A
A
A
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s

0
%

n
/a

0
%

0
%

n
/a

0
%

0
%

n
/a

0
%

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 s
u
ff
e
r 
a
 r
u
p
tu
re
d
 A
A
A
 

w
h
ils
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e
le
c
ti
v
e
 A
A
A
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t

1
n
/a

n
/a

1
n
/a

n
/a

0
n
/a

n
/a

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
A
A
A
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
e
d
 u
s
in
g
 

E
V
A
R

9
5
%

n
/a

6
1
%

9
2
%

n
/a

8
9
%

7
6
%

n
/a

0
%

C
ru
d
e
 i
n
-h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 r
a
te

6
.3
%

n
/a

7
.7
%

1
.4
%

n
/a

1
1
.1
%

0
.0
%

n
/a

2
6
.0
%

5
 d
e
a
th
s
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h

  
4
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 a
b
d
o
m
in
a
l

  
1
 a
rc
h

C
ru
d
e
 3
0
 d
a
y
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 r
a
te

4
.7
%

n
/a

7
.7
%

0
.0
%

n
/a

1
1
.1
%

0
.0
%

n
/a

0
.0
%

4
 d
e
a
th
s
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h

  
3
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 a
b
d
o
m
in
a
l

  
1
 a
rc
h

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
d
 t
o
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 

c
a
re
/I
T
U
 b
e
d
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 s
u
rg
e
ry

1
0
0
%

n
/a

1
0
0
%

8
%

n
/a

4
2
%

0
%

n
/a

1
0
0
%

3
0
 d
a
y
 r
e
-a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 r
a
te
 f
o
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

u
n
d
e
rg
o
n
e
 A
A
A
 s
u
rg
e
ry

4
.7
%

n
/a

1
5
.4
%

6
.4
%

n
/a

1
1
.1
%

4
.7
%

n
/a

1
5
.4
%

T
o
ta
l 
le
n
g
th
 o
f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y

1
2

n
/a

2
4

5
.5

n
/a

7
5

n
/a

1
4

u
c
lh

rf
h

b
c
f

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



V
a
s
c
u
la
r 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
: 
V
a
s
c
u
la
r 
L
o
w
e
r 
L
im
b

T
o
ta
l

C
la
u
d
ic
a
ti
o
n

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
L
im
b
 

Is
c
h
a
e
m
ia

C
la
u
d
ic
a
ti
o
n

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
L
im
b
 

Is
c
h
a
e
m
ia

C
la
u
d
ic
a
ti
o
n

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
L
im
b
 

Is
c
h
a
e
m
ia

C
la
u
d
ic
a
ti
o
n

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
L
im
b
 

Is
c
h
a
e
m
ia

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
o
ta
l 
P
a
ti
e
n
ts

2
2
6

1
1
3

1
1
3

3
2

1
3
8

1
4
5

2
5
1

L
e
g
 B
y
p
a
s
s
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

5
6

2
3

3
3

9
2
2

0
1
8

3
2

7
3

A
n
g
io
p
la
s
ty
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

1
7
0

9
0

8
0

2
3

1
1
6

5
4

1
6
0

1
6
7

3
5
6

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
a
rt
e
ri
a
l 

b
y
p
a
s
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 a
n
g
io
p
la
s
ty
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s

2
4
%

2
0
%

2
9
%

3
9
%

1
9
%

0
%

1
1
%

1
9
%

2
1
%

e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 %
 o
f 

b
y
p
a
s
s
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
s
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
to
ta
l

P
re
-o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y
 

to
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
b
e
lo
w
 1
 d
a
y
 f
o
r 

e
le
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

8
5
%

9
3
%

5
6
%

8
8
%

8
8
%

9
0
%

0
%

0
.9
2

1
.3
5

1
5
3
 e
le
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

to
ta
l

5
0
 i
s
c
h
e
m
ic
 e
le
c
ti
v
e

1
0
3
 c
la
u
d
ic
a
n
t 
e
le
c
ti
v
e

P
ri
m
a
ry
 a
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 

(i
.e
. 
a
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 

p
ri
o
r 
a
tt
e
m
p
t 
a
t 

re
v
a
s
c
u
la
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
)

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 a
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 

b
e
lo
w
 t
h
e
 k
n
e
e
 (
i.
e
. 

a
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 r
e
v
a
s
c
u
la
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
)

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 a
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 k
n
e
e
 (
i.
e
. 

a
m
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 r
e
v
a
s
c
u
la
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
)

3
0
 d
a
y
 r
e
-a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 r
a
te
 

fo
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

u
n
d
e
rg
o
n
e
 s
u
rg
e
ry

3
.1
0
%

1
.7
0
%

4
.4
0
%

3
.1
0
%

1
.4
0
%

2
.1
0
%

2
.8
0
%

T
o
ta
l 
le
n
g
th
 o
f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y

1
3

3
2
3

4
.9

1
5

3
.4
2

1
9

2
5

1
2

1
.9
2
1

U
C
H

R
F
H

B
C
F

T
O
T
A
L

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



V
a
s
c
u
la
r 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
: 
C
a
ro
ti
d
 E
n
d
a
rt
e
re
c
to
m
y
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 M
a
rk
e
rs

C
a
le
n
d
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 d
a
ta

U
C
H

R
F
H

B
C
F

S
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c

A
s
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c

S
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c

A
s
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c

S
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c

A
s
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c

S
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c

A
s
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

P
a
ti
e
n
t 
n
u
m
b
e
rs

4
0

4
1
6

2
2
6

1
1

8
2

1
7

B
L
T
 

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 t
re
a
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
w
o
 w
e
e
k
s

9
1
%

0
%

9
3
%

0
%

9
0
%

0
%

9
1
%

0
%

P
re
-o
p
e
ra
ti
v
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y
 

to
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
b
e
lo
w
 1
 d
a
y
 f
o
r 

e
le
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

3
0

0
.9

0
1

0
1
.6
3

0
O
n
e
 o
u
tl
ie
r 
a
t 
9
 d
a
y
s

m
e
d
ia
n
 =
 0

C
ru
d
e
 i
n
-h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
tr
o
k
e
 r
a
te

4
.5
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

2
.4
%

0
.0
%

T
w
o
 c
a
s
e
s

1
 c
e
a
 p
a
ti
e
n
t

1
 s
te
n
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
t

C
ru
d
e
 i
n
-h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
m
o
rt
a
lit
y
 

ra
te

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 u
s
in
g
 a
 c
a
ro
ti
d
 

a
rt
e
ry
 s
te
n
t

4
.5
%

0
.0
%

2
.6
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

3
.7
%

0
.0
%

N
=
3

3
0
 d
a
y
 r
e
-a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 r
a
te
 f
o
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

u
n
d
e
rg
o
n
e
 C
E
A
 s
u
rg
e
ry

4
.8
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

2
.7
%

0
.0
%

3
.7
%

0
.0
%

N
=
3

3
0
 d
a
y
 p
e
rs
is
te
n
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 
c
ra
n
ia
l 
n
e
rv
e
 i
n
ju
ry

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

5
.8
%

0
.0
%

1
1
.5
%

0
.0
%

4
.9
%

0
.0
%

N
=
4

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 

re
tu
rn
 t
o
 t
h
e
a
tr
e
 w
it
h
in
 3
0
 

d
a
y
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 s
u
rg
e
ry

7
.5
%

2
5
.0
%

0
.0
%

0
.0
%

3
.8
%

0
.0
%

4
.9
%

5
.9
%

S
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c
 =
 4
, 
A
s
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c
 

=
 1

T
o
ta
l 
le
n
g
th
 o
f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
s
ta
y

1
0

2
2

7
.5

2
1
0

5
.9

7
.8

S
y
m
p
to
m
a
ti
c
 s
k
e
w
e
d
 b
y
 H
A
S
U

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Page 1of 3   

 

 
THE NHS IN NORTH CENTRAL LONDON 

 

BOROUGHS: BARNET, CAMDEN, 
ENFIELD, HARINGEY, ISLINGTON  
WARDS: ALL 
 

 

REPORT TITLE:   
Overview of NHS NCL Commissioning Strategy and QIPP Plan 2011/12-2014/15 
 

 

REPORT OF:   
Nick Losseff, Consultant Neurologist and Clinical Director, NHS North Central London  
Senior Responsible Officer QIPP, NHS North Central London.  

 

FOR SUBMISSION TO:   

North Central London Joint Health Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

DATE:  

25 March 2011 
 

 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 
 
This paper provides Members with an overview of the key components of NHS North 
Central London’s Commissioning Strategy and Quality, Innovation, Productivity and 
Prevention (QIPP) Plan for 2011/12-2014/15. 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  
Anna Bokobza 
Assistant Director – Strategic Programmes 
NHS North Central London 
Anna.Bokobza@islingtonpct.nhs.uk  
     

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: The Committee is asked to note the contents of the report and 
the attached appendix, which is an extract from the NHS NCL Commissioning Strategy 
and QIPP Plan that gives additional detail on the individual initiatives planned. 
 

 
SIGNED:  

 
Dr Nick Losseff 
Clinical Director, NHS North Central London  

 
DATE:  17 March 2011 
 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 97



 

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Page 2 of 3 

Overview of NHS NCL Commissioning Strategy and QIPP Plan 2011/12-2014/15 
 
Introduction 
This paper provides Members with an overview of the key components of NHS North 
Central London’s (NCL) Commissioning Strategy and Quality, Innovation, Productivity 
and Prevention (QIPP) Plan for 2011/12-2014/15. 
 
Development of the plan 
Building on its existing Commissioning Strategy Plan, published in January 2010, the 
NCL Cluster commissioned a refresh of its plans in view of the new government 
agenda announced in the July White Paper together with a progressively more 
challenging financial position. This work has taken place in three key phases, in each 
case supported by a programme of stakeholder engagement: 

1. The evidence underpinning the Case for Change was reviewed and updated 
between August and October 2010, when the draft was published entitled 
Health and Health Services in North Central London. Now and into the future – 

2011/12 to 2014/15 (www.ncl.nhs.uk); 
2. An initial initiatives generation exercise took place between September and 

November 2010, to agree a long list of potential schemes that could be 
implemented to deliver the improvements required to address the quality and 
financial issues set out in the refreshed Case for Change; 

3. A prioritisation framework was then applied to agree a shorter list of initiatives 
to be fully developed into robust programme and project plans, substantiated by 
detailed activity assumptions and financial savings estimates. A financial risk 
rating exercise was then completed, to inform the detail of the final plan 
submitted to NHS London on 7 March 2011. 

 
Case for Change 
The Case for Change clearly illustrates that doing nothing to change the way health 
services in NCL are commissioned is not an option: 

• The “do nothing” scenario shows that the cluster will face a commissioning 
deficit in excess of £150m by the end of 2011/12, which would rise to a 
cumulative deficit of £730 million by 2014/15; 

• There are additional financial risks to our healthcare providers that challenge 
their long-term sustainability. To date, only four of 11 Trusts have achieved 
Foundation Trust status; 

• There are health inequalities between communities within the five boroughs; 

• The quality of services varies across the sector; 

• Primary care is underdeveloped relative to other areas and very variable; 

• Our workforce needs to adapt in order to meet these challenges. 
 
Key QIPP work streams 
Our priority clinical areas have been identified from national, regional or local priorities 
where there are recognised issues with financial or workforce sustainability, either in 
terms of the current level of investment of levels or future demand, and/or quality of 
outcomes and patient experience. The list was developed and agreed in partnership 
with the GP commissioners of NCL. 
 
Our programme of work can be grouped into a series of clinical priority work streams 
or cross-cutting QIPP themes as set out in the tables below. 

Page 98



 

Report to Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 

Work stream Savings identified 11/12 
(£m) 

Cumulative savings 
identified 11/12-14/15 (£m) 

Clinical priority work streams 

Unscheduled care 1.9 26.6 

Mental health 6.2 17.7 

Care closer to home 4.9 6.4 

Cancer 0 20.5 

Cardiovascular 0.2 2.1 

Maternity TBC TBC 

Paediatrics TBC TBC 

Cross-cutting QIPP themes 

Acute productivity 46.7 186.8 

Medicines management 9.3 81.8 

Management costs 10.1 71.4 

Low Priority 
Treatments,  
decommissioning and 
thresholds 

12.8 53.6 

QIPP in Primary Care 2.1 4.2 

Staying Healthy TBC TBC 

Local PCT QIPP 14.1 56.6 

Unidentified QIPP 25.0 230.5 

Total  123.2 758.2 

Surplus/(deficit) (16.1) 93.6 

 
 

The detail of the individual initiatives within each work stream, together with a 
summary of the Case for Change and the quality benefits can be found in Appendix 1 
(extract from the NHS NCL Commissioning Strategy and QIPP Plan 2011/12-
2014/15), which was shared with key stakeholders including local authority officers 
and councillors, GPs, LINk representatives, and service providers at the NCL 
Stakeholder Event on 3 March 2011. 
 

 

Anna Bokobza 
Assistant Director – Strategic Programmes 
NHS North Central London 
Anna.Bokobza@islingtonpct.nhs.uk  
 

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



N
o

rt
h

 C
e
n

tr
a
l 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

S
e
c
to

r 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n

d
 Q

IP
P

 P
la

n
 

2
8

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

K
E

Y
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 O
F

 F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
P

re
-r

e
a
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
3
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 S

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

E
v
e
n

t

V
e

rs
io

n
: 
1

1
0
2

2
8

 N
C

L
Q

IP
P

U
p
d

a
te

p
re

re
a

d
in

g

Page 101



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

T
h
e

 n
e

x
t 

fe
w

 y
e

a
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 N
H

S
 a

s
 w

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 v

is
io

n
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
a

lit
io

n
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 W

h
it
e

 P
a
p

e
r,

 
“L

ib
e

ra
ti
n

g
 t
h
e

 N
H

S
”

to
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 B
ill

 2
0
1
1

, 
a
n
d

 d
e
a

l 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 u
n
p

re
c
e
d

e
n

te
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 f

a
c
in

g
 u

s
 o

v
e

r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

fo
u

r 
y
e

a
rs

.

T
h

is
 p

la
n

 d
e

s
c
ri
b
e

s
 t

h
e

 N
o

rt
h

 C
e
n

tr
a

l 
L

o
n
d
o
n

 (
N

C
L

) 
s
e

c
to

r’
s
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
  

Q
u

a
lit

y
, 

In
n

o
v
a

ti
o
n

, 
P

ro
d
u

c
ti
v
it
y

a
n

d
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
o
n

 

(Q
IP

P
) 

p
la

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fo
u

r 
y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 h
e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d

 h
e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
  

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

 N
C

L
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

W
it
h

in
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

 a
s
 w

e
 a

im
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

u
r 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e

rs
 

in
h
e

ri
t 

is
 b

o
th

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

lly
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 a

n
d

 c
lin

ic
a

lly
 a

b
le

 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
p
o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
.

T
h
e

 p
la

n
 b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 o

u
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 P

la
n

 (
C

S
P

) 
p

u
b

lis
h
e
d

 i
n

 J
a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
0

 a
n

d
 r

e
ta

in
s
 t
h
e

 k
e

y
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

a
t 
p

la
n

 o
f 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 c

a
re

, 
w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 

fr
o

m
 h

o
s
p

it
a

ls
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 s

e
tt

in
g
s
. 

O
u

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 G

P
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

rs
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
is

 a
s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

, 
a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 p

a
ti
e
n

ts
. 

 O
th

e
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
n

 
th

e
 p

la
n

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 

w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
a

ti
e
n

t 
o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 i
n

 s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 c

a
n

c
e

r 
a

n
d

 c
a

rd
io

v
a

s
c
u

la
r,

 l
o
c
a

l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 h
a

s
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 a

n
d

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d

 o
u

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

o
th

e
rs

 a
n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
.

O
u

r 
p

la
n

 t
a

k
e

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 a
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o
f 

th
e

 B
a

rn
e

t,
 E

n
fi
e

ld
 a

n
d

 H
a
ri
n

g
e

y
(B

E
H

) 
C

lin
ic

a
l 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
n

 J
a
n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1
1

 a
n
d

  
a

s
s
u
m

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

c
o
n

s
u
lt
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 t
h
e

 r
e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 b

e
d

 c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 w

it
h

C
a

m
d
e
n

 a
n

d
 I

s
lin

g
to

n
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n
d
a

ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t 

le
a
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
d

 c
lo

s
u

re
s

ta
k
in

g
 

p
la

c
e

. 
A

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t,
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

jo
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
r 

re
c
o
n

fi
g
u

ra
ti
o
n

s
 o

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h
o

s
e

 a
g
re

e
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n
d
o
n

 i
n

 
s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h
o
u

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o
n

ti
n
u
e
d

 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 w

it
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

p
la

n
 

o
n

 t
h
e
m

 b
o

th
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
h
o

rt
 a

n
d

 l
o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
s
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
, 

th
e

s
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 m

a
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
re

c
o
n

fi
g
u

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 N

C
L

. 

S
im

ila
rl
y
, 

w
e

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

th
a

t 
h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 t
h
e

 p
u
b

lic
, 
p

a
ti
e
n

ts
, 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
s
ta

k
e
h
o

ld
e

rs
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 
a

lr
e
a
d

y
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 g

ro
u
p

s
 i
n

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
in

g
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
 a

n
d

, 
in

 k
e
e

p
in

g
 w

it
h

 o
u

t 
s
ta

te
d
 a

im
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 o

p
e
n

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p
a

re
n

t,
 w

e
w

ill
 l
o
o

k
 t

o
 

b
u

ild
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
o

n
 t
h

is
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

in
g
 m

o
n

th
s
, 
b
o

th
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
la

n
 a

n
d

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

it
h

 i
n

. 

W
e
 a

p
p

re
c
ia

te
 t
h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

in
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 i
t 

fu
rt

h
e

r,
 G

P
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

rs
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

v
o
lv

e
d

 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 

a
s
s
u

m
e

 l
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 r
e

s
p
o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
it
s
 k

e
y

e
le

m
e
n

ts
.

P
a
u

la
 K

a
h

n
,

C
a

ro
lin

e
 T

a
y
lo

r,

S
e

c
to

r 
C

h
a

ir
, 

N
H

S
 N

o
rt

h
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
L
o
n
d
o

n
S

e
c
to

r 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
, 

N
H

S
 N

o
rt

h
 C

e
n

tr
a
l 
L
o
n

d
o
n

F
o

re
w

o
rd

1

Page 102



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
C

o
n

te
n

ts

2

T
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
Q

IP
P

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ta

in
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
b
a
te

 a
t 
th

e
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

e
v
e
n
t 
o
n
 3

rd
 M

a
rc

h
, 
k
e
y
 e

x
tr

a
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
m

b
le

d
in

 t
h
is

 p
a
c
k
 b

u
t 
s
o
m

e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 e

it
h
e
r 

b
e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 o

r 
a
re

 n
o
t 
c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
te

x
t

3

O
u
r 

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h

4

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

6

D
e
liv

e
ry

 I
m

p
a
c
t

4
3

K
e

y
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

8

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 103



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

In
 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 
th

e
 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 
a
n
d
 
Q

IP
P

 
P

la
n
 
fo

r 
N

o
rt

h
 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 

L
o
n
d
o
n
, 

w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 
a
 
c
le

a
r 

fo
c
u
s
 
o
n
 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
:

�
O

u
r 

v
is

io
n
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
w

h
a
t 

w
e

 w
a
n
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
;

�
O

u
r 

v
a
lu

e
s
 a

re
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
o
u
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 f
u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
;

�
T

h
re

e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
 o

u
r 

m
o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

c
a
re

.

T
o
g
e
th

e
r:

O
u

r 
v

is
io

n
, 
v

a
lu

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

re
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 h

a
v

e
 g

u
id

e
d

 o
u

r 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 d
e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 
re

m
a
in

 c
e
n

tr
a
l 
a
s
 w

e
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

th
e
ir

 

c
o

n
te

n
t.

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
te

x
t

3

V
IS

IO
N

, 
V

A
L
U

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

R
IN

C
IP

L
E

S

O
U

R
 P

R
IN

C
IP

L
E

S

1
.

C
e

n
tr

a
lis

in
g
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 b

e
tt
e

r 
c
lin

ic
a

l 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f
o

r 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

.

2
.

L
o

c
a

lis
in

g
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 b

e
tt
e

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

lo
s
e

r 
to

 
h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 p
a
ti
e
n

t 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

.

3
.
W

h
e

re
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 

c
a

re
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 

s
e

c
o

n
d
a

ry
 c

a
re

, 
w

it
h

 i
n

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
, 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

e
a
m

le
s
s
 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 
c
a

re
.

.

O
U

R
 V

A
L

U
E

S
Q

U
A

L
IT

Y
: 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 q

u
a

lit
y
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 

c
a

re
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s

D
IV

E
R

S
IT

Y
 A

N
D

 I
N

C
L

U
S

IV
E

N
E

S
S

: 
E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 b
y
 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
n

e
e

d
y

P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

 W
O

R
K

IN
G

: 
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

1
6

 N
H

S
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 

N
C

L
. 

S
tr

o
n
g

 l
o
c
a
l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

D
E

L
IV

E
R

IN
G

 V
A

L
U

E
 F

O
R

 M
O

N
E

Y
: 

 D
ri

v
in

g
 u

p
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t,

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 Q
IP

P
 P

la
n

s

S
U

S
T

A
IN

A
B

IL
IT

Y
: 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
o

u
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 r

o
b
u

s
t 
a

n
d

 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
o
n

g
 t
e

rm

O
U

R
 V

IS
IO

N
 

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a
lt
h

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fi
v
e

 y
e

a
rs

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h

 L
o
n

d
o
n

e
rs

 

a
s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 w

e
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

  
b

y
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h
 i
n
e

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 o

u
r 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

, 
fo

c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 o

u
r 

m
o

s
t 
d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
.

A
s
 a

 w
o

rl
d

 c
la

s
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h

c
a

re
, 
o

u
r 

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 m

o
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

lo
s
e

r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

q
u

a
lit

y
 h

o
s
p
it
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

Page 104



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
O

u
r 

A
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

o
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 N

C
L

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 Q
IP

P
 P

la
n

4

J
a

n
 ‘
1

0
A

p
ri

l 
‘1

0
J

u
ly

‘1
0

O
c

t‘
1

0
J

a
n

 ‘
1

1
A

p
r 

‘1
1

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
ri
g
in

a
l 

N
C

L
 C

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

C
h
a
n

g
e

C
o
a
lit

io
n
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

W
h
it
e
 P

a
p
e
r 

le
d
 t

o
 

s
u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
S

O
R

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

C
o
n
ti
n
u

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

(S
O

R
)P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 C

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

C
h
a
n

g
e

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
ra

ft
 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 C

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

C
h
a
n

g
e
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
lo

n
g
 l
is

t 
to

 
c
re

a
te

 s
h
o
rt

 l
is

t

H
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
ra

ft
 Q

IP
P

 P
la

n

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g

M
o
b
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

P
M

O

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
Q

IP
P

 

P
la

n
 (

o
n
g

o
in

g
)

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 r

o
u

n
d

S
e
c
to

r 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p

o
in

tm
e
n
ts

P
la

n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

e
n

a
b
le

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 (

o
n
g
o
in

g
)

(w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 

IT
, 

e
s
ta

te
s
)

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 

Q
IP

P
 P

la
n
 (

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 P

la
n
) S
in

g
le

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 “
g
o
 l
iv

e
”

K
e

y
:

C
o

re
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

/Q
IP

P
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y

A
d

ja
c
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
m

p
a
c
ti
n
g

 o
n

 Q
IP

P
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

M
ile

s
to

n
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

1
1
/1

2
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 I

n
te

n
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 G

P
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
lin

ic
ia

n
s
 (

o
n
g
o
in

g
)

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 (
o
n
g

o
in

g
)

Page 105



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

K
E

Y
 

A
C

T
IV

IT
IT

E
S

A
c

ti
v
it

y
�

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 C

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

C
h
a
n

g
e

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
h
e

a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 N

C
L

�
D

e
ta

ile
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

u
p
d

a
te

 o
f 

e
xi

s
ti
n
g
 

u
n
d

e
rp

in
n
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

b
a
s
e

�
B

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 o

f 
N

C
L
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

p
e
e
r 

re
g
io

n
s

�
R

e
m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
b
a
s
e
 c

a
s
e

�
E

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 k

e
y
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

�
R

e
fr

e
s
h
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

d
ra

ft
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 C

a
s
e
 

fo
r 

C
h
a
n

g
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 

p
a
s
t 

w
o
rk

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 

m
o
d
e
l 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 

w
it
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

lo
n
g
 l
is

t 
o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
Q

IP
P

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 c

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

c
h
a
n

g
e

�
C

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 P

C
T

s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

e
xi

s
ti
n
g
 Q

IP
P

 p
la

n
s
 

a
re

 c
a
p
tu

re
d
 i
n
 l
o
n

g
 l
is

t
�

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

P
iD

s
�

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
g
re

e
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 

s
h
o
rt

 l
is

t
�

T
w

o
 c

lin
ic

a
lly

 l
e
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
 p

a
n
e
ls

 h
e
ld

�
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 w

it
h
 

G
P

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
1
/1

2
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 I

n
te

n
ti
o

n
s

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

�
E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 o

n
  

a
c
u
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
a
t 

s
p
e
c
ia

lit
y
 

le
v
e
l

�
Id

e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
�

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

�
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

(f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 f

o
llo

w
 

N
C

L
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 s

in
g
le

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

)

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
  

o
v
e
ra

ll 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

E
n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

�
H

o
ld

 t
h
re

e
 G

P
 

e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

e
v
e

n
ts

�
E

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

e
v
e

n
ts

 w
it
h
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
, 

L
iN

K
s

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

�
E

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

e
xe

rc
is

e
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 B

E
H

 C
lin

ic
a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o
n
s

Im
p

a
c
t

�
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
In

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
it
y

�
C

le
a
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 Q

IP
P

 
p
la

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s

�
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
f 

th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f

a
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 

N
H

S
 i
n
 N

C
L
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 
w

id
e
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

�
A

lig
n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

�
P

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 G

P
s
 

fo
r 

re
v
is

e
d
 Q

IP
P

 P
la

n
�

A
g
re

e
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 w
o
rk

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 t

o
 

e
n
a

b
le

 b
e
s
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e

�
D

e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

b
a
s
is

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 

1
1
/1

2
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 

c
a
n
 t

a
k
e
 p

la
c
e

�
C

le
a
re

r 
u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
f 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty

�
R

o
b
u
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e

�
A

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
, 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
 o

ff
 f

o
r 

Q
IP

P
 P

la
n

�
S

h
a
re

d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

a
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 

N
C

L
 s

e
c
to

r
�

G
P

 a
c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 p

la
n
s

�
B

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 o

n
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s

�
P

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 

m
e
d
ia

 c
o
v
e
ra

g
e

K
e

y
 

S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

�
P

C
T

 B
o
a
rd

s
�

N
C

L
 B

o
a
rd

�
A

ll 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

�
C

lin
ic

a
l,
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p
s

�
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s

�
C

lin
ic

a
l,
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p
s

�
A

ll 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

�
G

P
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

�
P

C
T

s
�

Q
IP

P
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p

�
N

C
L
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 B
o
a
rd

�
N

C
L
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

�
N

C
L
 B

o
a
rd

�
A

ll 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

�
P

C
T

s
�

N
H

S
 L

o
n
d

o
n

�
Q

IP
P

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p

�
N

C
L
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 B
o
a
rd

�
N

C
L
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
�

N
C

L
 B

o
a
rd

�
G

P
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

�
P

C
T

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

�
C

lin
ic

a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

�
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

�
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s

�
L
iN

k
s

�
P

a
ti
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

S
ta

tu
s

�
S

u
s
p
e
n

d
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
1
0
 

o
n
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

W
h
it
e
 P

a
p
e
r 

“L
ib

e
ra

ti
n
g
 

th
e
 N

H
S

”

�
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1

0

�
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

0
�

O
n
 t

ra
c
k
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

�
O

n
-g

o
in

g
 –

w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 1

st
A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1

1

�
O

n
-g

o
in

g

O
u

r 
A

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 N

C
L

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 

Q
IP

P
 P

la
n

 (
c

o
n

td
.)

5

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 
a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
M

o
b

il
is

a
ti

o
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

s
a

ti
o

n
R

e
fr

e
s

h
 C

a
s

e
 f

o
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

(S
O

R
)

Page 106



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
C

a
s

e
 f

o
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 K

E
Y

 C
H

A
L

L
E

N
G

E
S

6

C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S

T
h
e
s
e
 f
iv

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 

Q
IP

P
 P

la
n
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 r
is

k
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n
ti
a
l 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 
o

u
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

c
a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 

If
 n

o
t 
c
o
n

tr
o
lle

d
, 

th
e

 c
o

s
t 
o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 w

ill
 r

is
e
 m

o
re

 q
u

ic
k
ly

 t
h

a
n

 
th

e
 a

m
o
u

n
t 
o

f 
m

o
n

e
y
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts

T
h

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 n
e

e
d
s
 t
o
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 a
d

a
p
t 

to
 f
u

tu
re

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 b
ig

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 N
H

S
 a

c
ro

s
s
 N

C
L

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 w
id

e
 h

e
a
lt
h

 
in

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 w

it
h

 h
u

g
e
 v

a
ri

a
ti
o

n
s
 

in
 l
if
e

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
fi
v
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
 o

f 
N

C
L

S
U

S
T

A
IN

A
B

L
E

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

R
S

Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 C

H
A

L
L

E
N

G
E

W
O

R
K

F
O

R
C

E
 S

U
S

T
A

IN
A

B
IL

IT
Y

P
O

P
U

L
A

T
IO

N
 N

E
E

D
S

Page 107



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
C

o
n

te
n

ts

7

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
te

x
t

O
u
r 

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

D
e
liv

e
ry

 I
m

p
a
c
t

K
e

y
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

Page 108



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

8

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
T

o
o
 m

a
n

y 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

b
le

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
/r

e
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

�
A

im
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

ig
h
t 
c
a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
p
la

c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
 n

o
t 

ye
t 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
a
lis

e
d

�
O

v
e
r-

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 b

y
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 L

o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

�
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
it
y

S
c
o
p
e

�
P

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 

c
a
re

 f
o
r 

L
o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
‘O

u
t 
o
f 
H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
c
a
re

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

a
re

 i
n
 n

u
rs

in
g
 h

o
m

e
s

�
R

e
p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f 

s
e
le

c
te

d
 e

le
c
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
tt

in
g

�
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
 a

v
o
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

L
o
c
a
l 
P

C
T

s
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
 p

a
th

w
a

y 
re

d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g

 t
h
re

e
 a

re
a
s
:

1
.

A
d
m

is
s
io

n
 A

v
o
id

a
n
c
e

o
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
ir
tu

a
l 
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s

o
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

b
le

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 C

a
re

 H
o
m

e
s

2
.

P
la

n
n
e
d
 C

a
re

 (
la

rg
e
ly

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 s

h
if
ti
n
g
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 o

u
tp

a
ti
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

w
h
e
re

 c
lin

ic
a
lly

 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

lly
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l)

o
C

a
rd

io
lo

g
y

o
A

n
ti
-c

o
a
g
u
la

ti
o
n

o
D

e
rm

a
to

lo
g

y

o
U

ro
lo

g
y

o
E

N
T

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

o
O

p
h
th

a
lm

o
lo

g
y

o
G

yn
a
e
c
o
lo

g
y

o
S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
c
o
lo

re
c
ta

l

o
O

ra
l/
d
e
n
ta

l

3
.

L
o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s

1
.0

 C
A

R
E

 C
L

O
S

E
R

 T
O

 H
O

M
E

Page 109



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

9

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
U

s
e
 o

f 
T

e
le

h
e
a
th

a
n
d
 P

A
C

E
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s

�
R

is
k
 s

tr
a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

ys
te

m
a
ti
c
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 p

a
th

w
a

ys

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

o
p
h
is

ti
c
a
te

d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 a

v
o
id

 u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
P

a
th

w
a

y
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 t
o
 r

e
d
e
liv

e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
tt

in
g
s

�
B

u
ild

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
d
h
e
re

n
c
e
 t
o
 p

a
th

w
a
y
s
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
, 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

�
U

s
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
le

v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 r

ig
h
t 
s
iz

in
g
 o

f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

 t
o
 c

o
m

b
a
t 
th

e
 “

R
o
e
m

e
r 

e
ff
e
c
t”

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
/g

a
in

 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s

�
P

a
th

w
a

y
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g

�
D

e
ta

ile
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

�
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

�
In

c
e
n
ti
v
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s

�
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
n
s
o
rt

ia
, 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y 

a
n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 o

u
t 
o
f 

a
c
u
te

 s
e
tt
in

g

�
S

y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 m

o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 f
it
n
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e

�
T

e
le

h
e
a
lt
h

s
ys

te
m

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

�
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
In

te
g
ra

te
d
 C

a
re

 O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 w

h
o
le

 p
a
th

w
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
.0

 C
A

R
E

 C
L

O
S

E
R

 T
O

 H
O

M
E

 (
c
o

n
t.

)

Page 110



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
0

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
1
.2

m

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
[ 
]m

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

F
a
ilu

re
 t
o
 c

lo
s
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

in
 a

c
u
te

 s
e
tt
in

g
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 “

n
e
x
t 
s
ic

k
e
s
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
t”

�
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
d
e
ra

ili
n
g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

�
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
e
 n

o
t 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
n
e
w

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 e
n
o
u
g
h

�
U

n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 u
n
d
e
rm

in
e
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

’
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
c
h
a
n
g
e

�
C

o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 h

a
s
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 e

ff
e
c
t
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

R
is

k
s
 

�
F

a
ilu

re
 t
o
 c

lo
s
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

in
 a

c
u
te

 s
e
tt
in

g
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 “

n
e
x
t 
s
ic

k
e
s
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
t”

�
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
d
e
ra

ili
n
g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

�
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
e
 n

o
t 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
n
e
w

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 e
n
o
u
g
h

�
U

n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 u
n
d
e
rm

in
e
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

’
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
c
h
a
n
g
e

�
C

o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 h

a
s
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 e

ff
e
c
t
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 c

lin
ic

ia
n
s
 o

n
 c

a
re

 p
a
th

w
a

y
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n

�
D

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

�
D

e
ta

ile
d
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 m

o
d
e
lin

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

a
re

 O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 (

IC
O

) 
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t

w
o
 P

C
T

s
  
w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 U

C
L
P

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e

im
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 c

ro
s
s
 

s
e
c
to

r 
le

a
rn

in
g

�
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
m

o
s
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 a

s
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s

�
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 G

P
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
 a

n
d
 w

id
e
r 

c
lin

ic
ia

n
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

�
E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 a

c
u
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
to

 p
re

p
a
re

 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
la

n
s
 t
o
 r

a
p
id

ly
 a

n
d
 s

ys
te

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 r
o
ll 

o
u
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 S

e
c
to

r

1
.0

 C
A

R
E

 C
L

O
S

E
R

 T
O

 H
O

M
E

 (
c
o

n
t.

)

Page 111



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
1

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
M

u
lt
ip

le
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 f
o
r 

u
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 c

a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 d

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fu

s
io

n
 f
o
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

�
H

ig
h
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
A

&
E

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 f
o
r 

n
o
n
-u

rg
e
n
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 i
n
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 

u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

�
In

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

ri
v
in

g
 o

v
e
r-

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 A

&
E

 a
n
d
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
s
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e

S
c
o
p
e

�
S

tr
e
a
m

lin
in

g
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 t
o
 2

4
/7

 u
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 c

a
re

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
5
 P

C
T

 a
re

a
s

�
R

e
m

o
v
e
 d

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 n

o
n
 –

u
rg

e
n
t 
c
a
re

 i
n
 A

&
E

�
C

o
-l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
u
rg

e
n
t 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 A

&
E

�
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 L

A
S

 o
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 Q

IP
P

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
s
  
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 c
o
n
v
e

ye
d
 t
o
 A

&
E

s
to

 

6
0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

c
a
lls

 b
y 

2
0
1
5

�
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
S

in
g
le

 P
o
in

t 
o
f 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 s

c
h
e
m

e

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
C

o
-l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
U

C
C

 a
t 
N

M
U

H

�
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 f
ro

n
t 
d
o
o
r 

a
t 
C

h
a
s
e
 F

a
rm

 a
n
d
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H

o
s
p
it
a
l 

�
In

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 O

O
H

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
a
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 f
ro

n
t 
d
o
o
r 

to
 A

&
E

 a
t 
T

h
e
 W

h
it
ti
n
g
to

n

�
R

e
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 o
u
t 
o
f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
to

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

in
 B

a
rn

e
t 
a
n
d
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 (
C

h
a
s
e
 F

a
rm

)

�
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
in

g
le

 p
o
in

t 
o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 E

n
fi
e
ld

 a
n
d
 B

a
rn

e
t

�
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 L

A
S

 Q
IP

P
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g

o
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
n
v
e

ya
n
c
e
 t
o
 U

C
C

s
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

o
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
lls

 p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 N

H
S

D
 f

o
r 

re
s
o
lu

ti
o
n

o
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

o
to

rc
yc

le
 a

n
d
 p

e
d
a
l 
b
ik

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 p

a
ra

m
e
d
ic

s
 a

n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
ic

ia
n
s

o
E

x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 F

ir
s
t 
R

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
rs

o
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 d

ig
it
a

l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 C

o
m

m
a
n
d
P

o
in

t
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 p
a
ti
e
n
t 
re

c
o
rd

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
S

in
g
le

 p
o

in
t 
o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 C

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s

�
J
o
in

tl
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

�
E

x
p
lo

re
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 p

h
a
rm

a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 s

e
lf
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

2
.0

 U
N

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

D
 C

A
R

E

Page 112



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
2

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
C

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 w

it
h
 a

c
u
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

�
C

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 w

it
h
 G

P
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 r

e
d
ir
e
c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a

�
O

p
e
n
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
e
ra

to
rs

 o
f 

n
e
w

ly
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 u

rg
e
n
t 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 b
e
s
t 
v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y

�
L
A

S
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

�
In

c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
to

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
/f

in
a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 
u
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 c

a
re

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
A

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

o
in

ts
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s

�
R

o
b
u
s
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
p
la

n
s

�
A

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

 p
ri
c
in

g
 

�
T

re
n
d
s
 i
n
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
b
e
h
a
v
io

r 
a
n
d
 c

h
o
ic

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
e
rt

a
in

 p
o
in

ts
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

G
P

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

�
R

o
b
u
s
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

�
C

lin
ic

a
l 
o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

�
E

s
ta

te
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e

�
A

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d

�
S

tr
o
n
g
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 A

c
u
te

 P
ro

v
id

e
rs

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
1
.9

m

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
[ 
]m

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 Q
IP

P
 (

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
) 

–
in

c
e
n
ti
v
is

a
ti
o
n

o
f 

G
P

s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 k
e
e
p
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 o
u
t 
o
f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

h
e
re

 c
lin

ic
a
lly

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

�
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
c
u
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

�
S

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
 u

p

�
A

lig
n
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 O

u
t 
o
f 

H
o
u
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
G

P
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

�
L
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e
r 

to
 H

o
m

e
 w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a
m

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 s

e
a
m

le
s
s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 a

ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

u
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 c

a
re

2
.0

 U
N

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

D
 C

A
R

E
 (

c
o

n
t.

)

Page 113



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
3

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

R
is

k
s
 

�
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
–

th
e
re

b
y 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 u

n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 a
n
d
 d

ri
v
in

g
 u

p
 s

p
e
n
d

�
In

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y 

o
f 
m

o
d
e
l 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 a

c
ro

s
s

th
e
 s

e
c
to

r 
p
e
rp

e
tu

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s

�
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a
 r

e
a
l 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t
o
 A

&
E

�
P

a
ti
e
n
t 
b
e
h
a
v
io

r 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s

�
M

is
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
e
rp

e
tu

a
te

s
 f
ra

g
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

io
n

�
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
ro

b
u
s
t 
m

o
d
e
lin

g
 o

f 
n
e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

 u
n
re

a
lis

ti
c
 o

r 
u
n
re

a
lis

e
d

�
In

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

v
is

e
d
 A

&
E

 t
a
ri
ff

 i
n
v
a
lid

a
te

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s

�
V

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
d
ir
e
c
te

d
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
s
 g

re
a
t 
a
s
 p

re
d
ic

te
d

th
e
re

fo
re

 d
e
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 r
e
a
lis

e
d

�
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 f
ro

m
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

�
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
G

P
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 p

a
tc

h
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
re

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 u

n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 c

a
re

 a
c
ro

s
s
 N

C
L

�
N

C
L
 w

id
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

U
C

C
’s

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n

�
E

n
fi
e
ld

 a
n
d
 B

a
rn

e
t 
h
a
v
e
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 e

n
te

r 
s
e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
P

A
 p

ilo
t 
b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ri
e
s
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

�
W

ri
tt
e
n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
(B

E
H

)

�
L
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h

e
ld

 n
 I
s
lin

g
to

n

�
P

ilo
ti
n
g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 f
ro

n
t 
e
n
d
 a

t 
R

o
ya

l 
F

re
e
 a

n
d
 C

h
a
s
e
 F

a
rm

 H
o
s
p
it
a
ls

�
W

h
it
ti
n
g
to

n
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 M

id
d
le

s
e
x
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 s
tr

e
a
m

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
o
ff

e
rs

�
C

lin
ic

a
l 
m

o
d
e
l 
h
a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
lin

ic
a

l 
b
u

y
 i
n

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
A

g
re

e
 g

o
 l
iv

e
 d

a
te

s

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 w

h
e
re

 n
e
e
d
e
d

�
E

s
c
a
la

te
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 p
la

n
s
 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
s

�
C

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
p
re

p
a
ra

to
ry

 w
o
rk

 r
e
a
d

y 
fo

r 
S

P
A

 r
o
ll 

o
u
t

2
.0

 U
N

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

D
 C

A
R

E
 (

c
o

n
t.

)

Page 114



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
4

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
Q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
in

-p
a
ti
e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l

�
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
re

 c
a
re

 i
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y

�
L
in

k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

h
ys

ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 f

o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 L

T
C

s

�
R

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 a

c
u
te

 c
a
re

 f
ro

 d
ru

g
 a

n
d
 A

lc
o
h
o
l 
d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

S
c
o
p
e

�
In

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
b
e
d
s
 (

C
a
m

d
e
n
 a

n
d
 I
s
lin

g
to

n
)

�
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t

o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 i
n
-p

a
ti
e
n
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 (

H
a
rl

in
g
e
n
)

�
O

u
t 
o
f 

a
re

a
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 –
re

p
a
tr

ia
ti
o
n

�
D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
L
o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

�
A

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 d

ru
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
C

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

tw
o
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n
 C

a
n
d
I
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

f 
C

M
H

T
s

�
S

tr
e
a
m

lin
in

g
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 a

b
u
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
D

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

ra
in

 I
n
ju

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
R

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
it
h

 L
T

C
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

n
d
 f

o
c
u
s
in

g
 a

 l
ia

is
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
S

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 w

it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
In

te
g
ra

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

h
ys

ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 i
n
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

3
.0

 M
E

N
T

A
L

 H
E

A
L

T
H

Page 115



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
5

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

�
U

n
d
e
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 e

.g
. 
b
e
d
s
 

�
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

�
T

it
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
o
 u

s
e
r 

n
e
e
d

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t

�
D

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

�
S

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n

�
In

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 i
n
to

 L
T

C
 w

o
rk

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
e
.g

. 
lia

is
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (

C
a
n
d
I)

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 R

o
u
n
d

�
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

s
ig

n
 u

p
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 s

y
s
te

m
 c

h
a
n
g
e

�
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y 

to
 r

e
p
a
tr

ia
te

 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
9
.3

m

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
[ 
]m

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

IA
P

T
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

a
n
d
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ty

�
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o

th
e
r 

te
a
m

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 –

e
.g

. 
a
s
s
e
rt

iv
e
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h

�
F

u
lly

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

o
p
 h

e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s

3
.0

 M
E

N
T

A
L

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 (
c
o

n
t.

)

Page 116



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
6

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

R
is

k
s
 

�
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

�
A

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

m
o
d
e
lin

g
 

�
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s

�
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
c
o
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
O

u
t 
to

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e

�
R

o
b
u
s
t 
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 c

le
a
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
  
fo

r 
s
o
m

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
C

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 –
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

�
U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 s

c
o
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 p
o
s
it
io

n

3
.0

 M
E

N
T

A
L

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 (
c
o

n
t.

)

Page 117



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
7

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
B

ig
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y 
th

e
N

H
S

−
U

n
e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 v

a
ri

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 p
re

s
c
ri
b
in

g
 b

o
th

 w
it
h

in
 a

n
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 P

C
T

s

−
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 o

f 
p
re

s
c
ri
b
in

g
 s

p
e
n
d
/p

a
ti
e
n
t

�
C

o
s
t 
o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c

a
re

 i
s
 r

is
in

g
 m

o
re

 q
u
ic

k
ly

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
m

o
n
e
y 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

−
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
s
ts

 c
h
a
rg

e
d
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 p

ri
c
e
s

N
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 o

f 
m

e
d
ic

in
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
is

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
/ 
o
r 

g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 (

i.
e
. 
N

IC
E

, 
D

H
)

S
c
o
p
e

�
P

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 m
e
d
ic

in
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t:
 C

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 o

f 
c
lin

ic
a
l 
b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

o
f 

G
P

s
 b

y 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 w

a
s
te

fu
l 
p
re

s
c
ri
b
in

g
, 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 m

e
d
ic

in
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r

�
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

 m
e
d
ic

in
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t:
 U

s
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
le

v
e
rs

 t
o

re
d
u
c
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

in
fl
a
te

d
 d

ru
g
 p

ri
c
e
s
, 
s
u
rc

h
a
rg

in
g
, 
a
n
d

u
s
in

g
 d

ru
g
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
a
g
re

e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 
M

o
re

 e
x
p
lic

it
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 
d
ru

g
s
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
g
u
la

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

T
ru

s
ts

 f
ro

m
 S

L
A

M
 d

a
ta

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

S
e
c
to

r 
c
lin

ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
re

a
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 s

h
a
re

d
 s

a
v
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

−
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 C

o
s
t 
d
ru

g
s
 (

n
o
n
 P

b
R

)

−
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 o
n
 P

b
R

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 d

ru
g
s
 a

t 
R

o
ya

l 
fr

e
e
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 R

e
n
a
l 
d
ru

g
 t
a
ri
ff

 c
o
s
ts

−
M

a
n
d
a
ti
n
g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
4
 B

io
s
im

ila
r

d
ru

g
s

�
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 (

a
lig

n
in

g
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

) 
–

P
C

T
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

−
N

H
S

 E
n
fi
e
ld

 –
M

M
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 3

2
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
p
re

s
c
ri
b
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

−
N

H
S

 B
a
rn

e
t 
-

M
M

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 2

8
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
p
re

s
c
ri
b
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

−
N

H
S

 I
s
lin

g
to

n
 -

M
M

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 2

3
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
re

s
c
ri
b
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

−
N

H
S

 C
a
m

d
e
n
 –

M
M

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
re

s
c
ri
b
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

−
N

H
S

 H
a
ri

n
g
e

y
-

M
M

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 3

2
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
re

s
c
ri
b
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

4
.0

 M
E

D
IC

IN
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T

Page 118



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
8

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
S

e
c
to

r 
w

id
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 –

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 P

C
T

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
to

r

�
B

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 P

C
T

s
, 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 n

o
v
e
l 
K

P
Is

�
C

lin
ic

a
lly

 l
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

�
In

c
e
n
ti
v
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 a
c
u
te

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
d
ru

g
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

�
M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
, 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 b
y 

P
C

T
 p

h
a
rm

a
c
is

ts

�
S

e
c
to

r 
w

id
e
 G

P
/c

lin
ic

a
l 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
in

g

�
S

e
c
to

r 
w

id
e
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y 

in
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
te

rm
s

�
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

  
a
n
d
 r

a
is

in
g
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s

w
h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

�
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
In

c
e
n
ti
v
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

G
P

s

�
C

o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 p
e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

�
C

lin
ic

a
l 
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
 i
n
 b

o
th

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 w

h
e
re

 c
o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
  
d
ru

g
 c

h
o
ic

e
s
 
a
re

 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d

�
R

is
k
/g

a
in

 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
 (

�
In

te
ri
m

 r
e
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 (

p
e
n
d
in

g
 f

o
rm

a
l 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
)

�
T

im
e
ly

, 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 D

a
ta

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
fr

o
m

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l
le

v
e
l.
 I
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

 m
u
c
h
 m

o
re

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 

ro
u
ti
n
e
ly

�
E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
lin

ic
ia

n
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

s
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 r
e
s
ts

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

G
P

 C
o
n
s
o
rt

ia

�
T

ru
s
t 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y 

s
a
v
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s

�
M

o
re

 b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 d

a
ta

 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le

�
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
d
ru

g
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
u
te

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h

c
o
s
t 
d
ru

g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

4
.0

 M
E

D
IC

IN
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 (

c
o

n
t.

)

Page 119



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

1
9

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
6
.2

m

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
[ 
]m

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

C
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 r

o
u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n

�
A

c
u
te

 a
n
d
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 t
ru

s
t 
d
a
ta

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

�
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 Q
IP

P
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

ru
s
t 
C

IP
 p

la
n
s

�
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n

�
F

in
a
n
c
e
s
, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
in

fl
a
ti
o
n
a
ry

 u
p
lif

t

�
N

IC
E

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

�
C

a
n
c
e
r 

d
ru

g
 t
a
ri
ff

 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s

R
is

k
s

�
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
t 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 o

n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 m
e
d
ic

in
e
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 a

ll 
P

C
T

s

�
R

e
le

v
a
n
t 
d
a
ta

 s
e
ts

 a
n
a
ly

z
e

d
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r

�
E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 i
m

p
a
c
t

�
C

lin
ic

a
l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

�
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 a

n
d
 S

k
ill

s
; 
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 m

e
d
ic

in
e
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e

�
IT

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
  
b

y 
tr

u
s
ts

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
D

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
  
w

ri
tt
e
n
  
a
n
d
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
n
 d

ra
ft

�
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g

�
M

e
tr

ic
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e
d

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

D
ru

g
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 w
h
ic

h
 d

e
ta

ils
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 
d
ru

g
s
 i
n
 a

c
u
te

 t
ru

s
ts

�
Im

m
e
d
ia

te
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

s
o
m

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 A

c
u
te

 w
o
rk

 s
tr

e
a
m

 

�
A

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fo

r 
re

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

n
e
x
t 
 p

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
p
la

n

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
t 
p
la

n
s
 

�
R

e
d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s

4
.0

 M
E

D
IC

IN
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 (

c
o

n
t.

)

Page 120



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
0

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
In

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
rr

e
g
u
la

r 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
lis

ts
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s

�
A

d
h
e
re

n
c
e
 t
o
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
l 
p
a
tt
e
rn

s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
c
le

a
rl

y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

r 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

o
f 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e

y

�
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

s
e
c
to

r

�
H

ig
h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

u
s
e
 o

f 
a
c
u
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 c

o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

S
c
o
p
e

�
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 D
e
n
ti
s
tr

y

�
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
M

e
d
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

h
a
rm

a
c
y

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 l
is

t 
in

fl
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
im

in
g
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 2

.5
%

 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

(3
1
,7

5
0
).

 W
o
rk

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 P

C
T

 w
ill

 b
e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
a
n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 l
is

ts

�
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

M
S

 g
ro

w
th

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 i
) 

R
e
m

o
v
a
l 

o
f 
u
n
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 P

C
T

 L
E

S
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
re

s
e
n
t 
ii)

 R
e
-b

a
s
in

g
 o

f 
P

C
T

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
u
n
d
e
r-

s
p
e
n
d
s
, 
iii

) 
C

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

E
S

 

m
o
d
e
ls

, 
w

it
h
 D

E
S

 f
u
n
d
in

g
, 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
c
a
lly

 b
e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

s
 L

E
S

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 e

.g
. 
e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 h

o
u
rs

 ,
 i
v
) 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a

%
 t
o
p
 s

lic
e
 o

f 
2
.5

%
 t
o
 4

%
 o

v
e
r 

4
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 P

C
T

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
a
ri
ff

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 p
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
o
f 

ta
ri
ff

 

d
e
fl
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 c

le
a
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
e
r 

P
C

T
 a

n
d
 p

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
v
) 

A
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 d

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 G

P
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
e
a
c
h
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
p
h
a
s
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

4
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 2

.5
%

 t
0
 7

.5
%

, 
v
i)
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
L
E

S
s

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
E

n
fi
e
ld

 a
n
d
 H

a
ri
n
g
e

y
P

C
T

s
 w

h
e
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

c
u
te

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 s

e
t 
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 V
F

M

�
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
o
f 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

iz
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

e
d
y
in

g
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

�
R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
/d

e
m

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
ta

in
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 G

P
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

r

5
.0

 Q
IP

P
 I

N
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 C

A
R

E

Page 121



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
1

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
In

c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 e
.g

. 
D

e
n
ta

l 
Q

O
F

 a
n
d
 N

H
S

L
 G

P
 B

a
la

n
c
e
d
 S

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

, 
m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
m

e
d

y 

p
o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

 r
e
tu

rn
 o

f 
q
u
a
lit

y 
o
n
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

�
In

n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t
o
p
 1

0
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
a
s
 o

p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
o
p
 1

0
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia

lt
ie

s
 a

s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
m

o
d
if
yi

n
g

G
P

 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

r

�
In

n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 V

F
M

 i
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

n
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

ro
b
u
s
t,
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
s
h
b
o
a
rd

s
 t
o
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
to

r

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

s
/g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

to
p
 1

0
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
w

it
h
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 r
e
fe

rr
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
v
e
ra

g
e

�
D

is
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 l
o
w

 v
a
lu

e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
fo

c
u
s
 o

f 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a

c
u
te

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w

h
e
re

 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

�
R

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
D

E
S

 m
o
d
e
ls

 w
h
e
re

 e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 L

E
S

 m
o
d
e
ls

 h
a
v
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
g
u
la

r 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
lis

t 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 –
u
s
e
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
le

v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

u
p
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

d
is

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

�
C

lin
ic

a
l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 C

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
R

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 (

L
M

C
/L

D
C

/L
P

C
)

�
C

lin
ic

a
l 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e
 e

n
ti
re

 Q
IP

P
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

�
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
lin

ic
ia

n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

e
c
to

r 
L
M

C
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
, 
G

P
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

o
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 Q

IP
P

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 C

a
m

d
e
n
 a

n
d
 I
s
lin

g
to

n
 G

P
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

L
E

S
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

�
E

a
rl

y 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 D

O
F

s
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 e

a
c
h
 P

C
T

�
E

a
rl

y 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 G

P
 I
T

 t
e
a
m

s
, 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 G

P
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 f
in

a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m

s
 t
o
 v

a
lid

a
te

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
le

v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l

�
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
ro

b
u
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 u

s
e
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
le

v
e
rs

5
.0

 Q
IP

P
 I

N
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 C

A
R

E
 (

c
o

n
t.
)

Page 122



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
2

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
2
.1

m

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
[ 
]m

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

C
a
re

 c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

m
a

yb
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

t 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
th

a
t 
o
v
e
rl
a
p
 w

it
h
 G

P
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

�
U

n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 c

a
re

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

h
e
re

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
G

P
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
L
E

S
s

e
.g

. 
a
s
 a

t 
N

H
S

 E
n
fi
e
ld

 a
n
d
 N

H
S

 H
a
ri

n
g
e

y
a
re

 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 A

&
E

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tp

a
ti
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 m

a
y
 b

e
 c

o
u
n
te

d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

�
In

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
P

C
T

 r
e
fe

rr
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
e
n
te

rs
 w

h
e
re

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a

c
u
te

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

o
u
b
le

 c
o
u
n
te

d
 w

it
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 L

E
S

s

R
is

k
s
 

�
C

lin
ic

a
l 
d
is

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 p

e
e
rs

 

�
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 e

.g
. 
D

e
n
ta

l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 G

M
S

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
s
h
b
o
a
rd

s
 

�
A

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e

l 
o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
g
n
iz

e
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 t
o
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

c
o
v
e
ry

 t
a
rg

e
ts

�
A

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 d
e
ta

il 
o
n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 a
t 
G

P
 a

n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

 l
e

v
e
l

�
R

e
d
u
c
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

in
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 t
e
a
m

s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

Q
IP

P
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
O

u
tl
in

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

�
L
M

C
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 o

f 
k
e

y 
p
ri

n
c
ip

a
ls

 f
o
r 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w

�
L
is

t 
C

le
a
n
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
A

ll 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 t
o
 b

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 G

P
 c

o
lle

a
g
u

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

 s
e
t 
u
p
 w

it
h
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 e
a
c
h
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n

5
.0

 Q
IP

P
 I

N
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 C

A
R

E
 (

c
o

n
t.
)

Page 123



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
3

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
C

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
te

n
a
ta

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
tt
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

la
c
e
 o

f 
b
ir
th

 –
d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
o
ic

e
 f
o
r 

n
o
n
 N

C
L
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

�
W

id
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s

�
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 p
a
th

w
a

y
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

is
k
 s

tr
a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e

�
Id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 g

a
p
s
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

�
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 M
e
d
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 M

id
w

if
e
ry

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 j
u
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
c
o
v
e
r

�
N

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

g
e
 p

ro
fi
le

d
 o

f 
m

id
w

iv
e
s

S
c
o
p
e

�
C

a
re

 p
a
th

w
a

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
q
u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

�
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

g
a
p
s
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
S

p
in

e
 p

a
th

w
a

y

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 E

a
rl

y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
In

tr
a
p
a
rt

u
m

(d
e
liv

e
ri

e
s
) 

a
n
d
 i
n
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 n

o
t 
re

la
te

d
 t
o
 a

c
ti
v
it
y

�
S

c
o
p
in

g
 o

f 
p
e
ri
n
a
ta

l 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d

b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
to

r-
le

v
e

lin
g
 u

p

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
P

a
th

w
a

y
 r

e
-d

e
s
ig

n
 

�
W

h
o
le

 p
a
th

w
a

y
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
to

r

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
te

rm
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

�
S

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

6
.0

 M
A

T
E

R
N

IT
Y

Page 124



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
4

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
N

o
 a

g
re

e
d

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
w

h
a

t 
c
o

n
s
ti
tu

te
s
 l
o

w
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 c

a
re

 f
o

r 
w

o
m

e
n

�
C

o
m

p
le

x
 f

lo
w

s
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n

 i
n

to
 a

n
d

 o
u

t 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
W

o
m

e
n

 ‘
s
h

o
p

 a
ro

u
n

d
’
fo

r 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 
m

a
te

rn
it
y
 c

a
re

 w
h

ic
h

 c
a
n

 l
e
a

d
 t
o

 d
u
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
. 
 

M
a

n
y
 w

o
m

e
n

 w
h

o
 c

h
o
o

s
e
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 c
a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 N

C
L

 t
ru

s
t,

 d
o

 n
o

t 
liv

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
e

c
to

r.

�
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n
 s

ti
ll 

d
o

 n
o

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

 a
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
n
e

e
d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 1
2

th
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

e
e

k
 o

f 
p

re
g

n
a
n

c
y
. 

E
a

rl
ie

r 
a

c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
e
n

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

m
o
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 b

a
b

y

�
W

id
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 N
C

L

�
V

a
ri

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 r

is
k
 s

tr
a

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 &

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

. 
L
a

c
k
 o

f 
c
o
n

ti
n
u

it
y
 o

f 
c
a

re
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

a
n

te
n

a
ta

l 
a
n

d
 p

o
s
tn

a
ta

l 
p
e

ri
o
d
s

�
In

a
d
e

q
u
a

te
 j
u

n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

s
u
lt
a

n
t 

c
o

v
e

r 
o

n
 l
a

b
o

u
r

w
a

rd
s
 (

n
o

t 
a

ll 
u

n
it
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 ‘
S

a
fe

r 
C

h
ild

b
ir

th
’
re

c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n

s
)

�
N

u
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
g
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 
m

id
w

iv
e

s
 m

e
a

n
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 w

it
h

 r
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
. 

V
a

c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

s
 a

re
 h

ig
h

 i
n

 c
o
m

p
a

ri
s
o
n

 t
o
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

a
v
e

ra
g

e

S
c
o
p
e

�
M

a
te

rn
it
y
 p

a
th

w
a

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
 a

n
d

 m
o

d
e

l 
o
f 

c
a

re
 f
o

r 
N

C
L

�
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
is

e
d

c
a

re
 p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 f

o
r 

N
C

L

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 p
a

ti
e
n

t 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g

�
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
g

a
p
s
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

�
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 f
o

r 
m

a
te

rn
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 b

e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 f
o

r 
m

o
n
e
y
 (

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
a
 p

a
th

w
a

y
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 f
o

r 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
c
o

n
ta

c
ts

).
 I
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

o
 t

h
is

, 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 w
ill

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

lle
c
t 
d

a
ta

 s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
a

lly
 i
n

 d
e

ta
il 

fo
r 

a
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 
6

 m
o

n
th

s
 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 f
u
ll 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 m
a

te
rn

it
y
 ‘
S

p
in

e
 p

a
th

w
a

y
’
fo

r 
a

ll 
w

o
m

e
n

 a
n

d
 ‘
o

ff
s
h

o
o
t’

p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 f

o
r 

h
ig

h
e

r 
ri

s
k
 w

o
m

e
n

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

a
rl

y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 n
e

tw
o

rk
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
 t

o
 b

o
o
k
in

g
 w

o
m

e
n

 f
o

r 
c
a

re

�
In

tr
a

p
a

rt
u
m

(d
e

liv
e

ri
e

s
) 

a
n

d
 i
n
p

a
ti
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 n

o
t 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 (

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 a

n
te

n
a

ta
l 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 c

 -
s
e
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ri

e
s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

o
b

s
te

tr
ic

 s
e

tt
in

g
)

�
S

c
o

p
in

g
 o

f 
p
e

ri
n
a

ta
l 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h
e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 q

u
a

lit
y
, 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 p
a

ti
e
n

t 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e
 i
n

 m
a

te
rn

it
y

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d

b
e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
n
 N

C
L

 t
o

 r
e

d
u
c
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o
n

 i
n
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s

�
L

in
k
in

g
 w

it
h

 U
C

L
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
’
w

o
rk

 o
n
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 N

C
L

 M
a

te
rn

it
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

�
P

ilo
ti
n

g
 n

e
w

 m
o

d
e

ls
 o

f 
c
a

re
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 s

u
it
a

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 N

C
L

-w
id

e

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
P

a
th

w
a

y
 r

e
-d

e
s
ig

n
 f
o

r 
lo

w
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 w

o
m

e
n

 (
w

h
o

le
 p

a
th

w
a

y
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
to

r)

�
C

o
n

tr
a
c
tu

a
l 
te

rm
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d
it
io

n
s
-

u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
b

e
tt
e

r 
v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y

�
U

p
d

a
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 S
p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

n
e

w
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

d
e

l 
o

f 
c
a

re

�
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 N

C
L

 M
a

te
rn

it
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

6
.0

 M
A

T
E

R
N

IT
Y

Page 125



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
5

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
In

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

lin
ic

ia
n
s
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d
 G

P
s
 i
n
 N

C
L
 M

a
te

rn
it
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
m

it
 t
o
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 1

1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 b

e
yo

n
d

�
P

a
ti
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

h
o
ic

e
 (

re
g
u
la

r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 s
u
b
 g

ro
u
p
)

�
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
-

N
C

L
 w

ill
 s

tr
iv

e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

y 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r

�
C

lin
ic

a
l 
N

e
g
lig

e
n
c
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 

T
ru

s
ts

 f
o
r 

m
a
te

rn
it
y 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e

 f
o
r 

tr
u
s
ts

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 o
f 
c
a
re

. 

T
h
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 c
lin

ic
a
l 
le

a
d
s
 w

ill
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

is
e

th
e
s
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 N

C
L

�
N

e
w

 m
a
te

rn
it
y 

p
a

ym
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
is

e
tr

u
s
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

a
re

 i
n
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
w

a
y
s

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

T
h
e
 M

a
te

rn
it
y 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 B
o
a
rd

 (
a
ll 

C
E

O
s
 o

f 
a
c
u
te

 t
ru

s
ts

 h
a
v
e
 s

ig
n
e
d
 u

p
 t
o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

)

�
P

u
b
lic

, 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d

M
a
te

rn
it
y 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 L

ia
is

o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

�
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

n
e
w

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
, 
p
ilo

te
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 M

a
te

rn
it
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

�
P

u
b
lic

 f
a
c
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

le
a
r 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
la

in
s
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 n
o
n
e

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
[ 
]m

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 t
a
ri
ff

 f
o
r 

m
a
te

rn
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
d
e
lin

g
 a

n
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
g
re

e
d
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n

�
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

�
P

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

c
a
re

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y 

a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y

�
L
o
n
d
o
n
 w

id
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 m

a
te

rn
it
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

6
.0

 M
A

T
E

R
N

IT
Y

 (
c
o

n
t.

)

Page 126



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
6

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

R
is

k
s

�
In

a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 h

ig
h
 c

a
lib

re
c
lin

ic
a
l 
le

a
d
s

�
A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 d

a
ta

 s
e
ts

 a
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 p

ri
c
in

g
 v

a
ri

e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 d
o

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
. 
E

s
ti
m

a
ti
n
g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 a

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t

�
P

a
c
e
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 (

to
o
 s

lo
w

)

�
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

ill
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e

ly
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 N

C
L
’s

a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 

c
a
re

�
A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 m
a
te

rn
it
y 

c
a
re

 c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e

�
G

P
s
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 
a
g
re

e
 m

a
te

rn
it
y 

s
h
a
re

d
 c

a
re

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 N

C
L

�
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 n

e
w

 p
a

ym
e
n
t 
s
ys

te
m

 f
o
r 

m
a
te

rn
it
y 

b
a

s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 p
a
th

w
a

y
 o

f 
c
a
re

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 i
n
p
u
t 
a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 
tr

u
s
ts

 w
ill

 n
o
t 
a
g
re

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 p
a

ym
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
C

le
a

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
n
d

 w
o

rk
 s

tr
e

a
m

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

�
N

C
L

 M
a

te
rn

it
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 d

ri
v
e

 t
h
e

 m
a

te
rn

it
y
 Q

IP
P

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 (

fi
rs

t 
m

e
e

ti
n
g

 h
e

ld
 i
n

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
0

) 
a
n

d
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 d

a
te

s
/m

e
m

b
e

rs
h
ip

 c
o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 f
o

r 
1
1

/1
2

�
E

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 m
a

te
rn

it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 c

lin
ic

ia
n
s
 i
n

 N
C

L

�
M

a
te

rn
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
m

e
n
d

e
d

 i
n

 1
1

/1
2

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
Q

IP
P

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

�
J
o

b
 d

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
lin

ic
a

l 
le

a
d

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
e

d
o

ff
 b

y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 b
o

a
rd

 (
a

w
a

it
in

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
s
e

 a
re

 i
s
s
u

e
d

)

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
R

e
c
ru

it
 a

 l
e

a
d

 o
b
s
te

tr
ic

ia
n
, 

G
P

 a
n

d
 m

id
w

if
e

 f
o

r 
n
e

tw
o

rk

�
F

o
rm

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fu

ll 
p

ro
je

c
t 
p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s

�
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
fi
rs

t 
s
ix

 m
o

n
th

s
 o

f 
2
0

1
1
/1

2
 t
o

 o
p

e
ra

te
 i
n

 s
h
a

d
o

w
 f

o
rm

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o

 b
u

ild
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
T

h
is

 n
e

e
d
s
 t
o

 b
e
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

  
a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
ru

s
ts

�
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 N

C
L

 M
a

te
rn

it
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 s
u

b
 g

ro
u
p

s
/w

o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p
s
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk

6
.0

 M
A

T
E

R
N

IT
Y

 (
c
o

n
t.

)

Page 127



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
7

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

�
P

re
s
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 l
im

it
e
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 c

a
re

S
c
o
p
e

�
S

tr
e
a
m

in
g
 b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

�
D

e
te

rm
in

in
g
  
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
c
lin

ic
a
l 
th

re
s
h

o
ld

s

�
D

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
lim

it
e
d
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
v
a

lu
e

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
E

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 l
o
w

 p
ri

o
ri
ty

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 (

o
ri
g

in
a
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
)

�
S

e
c
to

r 
c
e
n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o
n

o
f 

in
tr

a
u
te

ri
n
e
 i
n
s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 

�
D

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 f
o
r 

b
a
ri
a
tr

ic
 s

u
rg

e
ry

�
D

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
n
a
v
ig

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
th

e
te

rs

�
D

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
a
c
u
te

 t
e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
s

�
D

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
a
c
u
te

  
v
a
s
e
c
to

m
ie

s

�
R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 u

n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
a
ta

ra
c
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

�
T

e
rm

in
a
te

 s
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

�
N

o
t 
ro

u
ti
n
e
ly

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 C

yb
e
rk

n
if
e

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

�
R

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
C

h
ro

n
ic

 F
a
ti
g
u
e
 S

y
n
d
ro

m
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 u

s
in

g
 a

 s
in

g
le

 p
a
th

w
a

y

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
S

u
p
p
o
rt

s
  
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

c
ro

s
s
  
th

e
 N

C
L
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
  
o
u
r 

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
g
re

e
d
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

�
P

ri
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
a
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 o
n
ly

 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 a
re

 t
re

a
te

d

�
G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

c
lin

ic
ia

n
s
 t
o
 e

m
p
o
w

e
r 

th
e
m

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 e
n
fo

rc
e
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 a

n
d
 L

P
T

 p
o
lic

ie
s

�
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
g
re

e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

�
M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
a
k
e
 e

a
rl
y
 a

c
ti
o
n

in
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
o
v
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

7
.0

 L
P

T
, 

D
E

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

IN
G

 A
N

D
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

S

Page 128



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
8

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
M

a
rk

e
t 

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

C
lin

ic
a

l 
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

�
P

u
b
lic

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 o

f 
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
1
7
.9

m

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
[ 
]m

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

A
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 t
o
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

�
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
to

 s
e
c
to

r 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
e
a
m

R
is

k
s

�
P

o
lit

ic
a
l 
/p

u
b

lic
 r

e
a
c
ti
o
n
 o

v
e

rt
u
rn

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s

�
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 P

C
T

s
 m

a
k
e
s
 s

e
c
to

r-
w

id
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e

�
L
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 k

e
y 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 e
.g

. 
G

P
s
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

n
o
t 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
p
e
c
te

d

�
S

e
c
to

r 
te

a
m

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
b
le

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
p
ri
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
re

q
u
e
s
ts

�
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f

ro
m

 a
c
tu

e
s
e
c
to

r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
C

le
a
r 

w
o
rk

e
d
 u

p
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 w
it
h
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 k

ic
k
e
d
 o

ff
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

�
E

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
T

re
a
tm

e
n
t 
R

e
q
u
e
s
t 
p
o
lic

y
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d

�
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
o
m

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 v
a
lu

e
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 o

n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

to
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e

�
S

e
t 
u
p
 o

f 
N

C
L
 s

e
c
to

r-
w

id
e
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 p

a
n
e
l

7
.0

 L
P

T
, 

D
E

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

IN
G

 A
N

D
 T

H
R

E
S

H
O

L
D

S
 (

c
o

n
t.

)

Page 129



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

2
9

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
L
a
te

 d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

�
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
  
ra

te
s
 o

f 
c
a
n
c
e
r 

�
L
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
, 
o
r 

o
n
 p

a
r 

w
it
h
, 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 s

u
rv

iv
a
l 
ra

te
s
 f

o
r 

b
re

a
s
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
lo

re
c
ta

l 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

�
In

e
q
u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

�
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
c
a
re

�
L
o
w

 u
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

�
In

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
  
b
o
th

 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

�
N

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
  
fu

ll 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 I
O

G
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 a

ll 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

tu
m

o
u
r

s
it
e
s

S
c
o
p
e

�
S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

L
o
n
d
o
n
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 

c
a
re

�
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 t
a
ri
ff

 

�
S

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 p
a
th

w
a

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

�
C

a
n
c
e
r 

fo
llo

w
 u

p

�
C

a
n
c
e
r 

in
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y 

-
le

n
g
th

 o
f 
s
ta

y 
 

�
R

is
k
 s

tr
a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
O

p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n

o
f 

ro
u
ti
n
e
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 f

o
r 

b
re

a
s
t 
, 
c
o
lo

re
c
ta

l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
s
ta

te
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

�
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
ra

in
 a

n
d
 l
u
n
g
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
lo

re
c
ta

l,
 b

re
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
s
ta

te
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

a
th

w
a

ys

�
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
o
w

e
l 
s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 a

g
e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
3
 h

o
u
r 

b
re

a
s
t 
c
a
n
c
e
r 

s
u
rg

e
ry

 (
e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 r

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
)

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r 
c
o
lo

re
c
ta

l 
c
a
n
c
e
r

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

n
e
w

 m
o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

c
h
e
m

o
th

e
ra

p
y 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y 

o
f 

c
h
e
m

o
th

e
ra

p
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
In

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
c
u
rr

in
g
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
a
le

rt
 s

ys
te

m
 i
n
 a

c
c
id

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

�
R

a
is

in
g
 p

u
b
lic

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

ym
p
to

m
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 e

a
rl
ie

r
d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

�
R

e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
M

D
T

s
fo

r 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
c
a
n
c
e
rs

 (
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
)

�
R

e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
yt

o
lo

g
y
 s

c
re

e
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
m

in
im

u
m

 v
o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 
3
5
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

ye
a
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
lp

o
s
c
o
p
y

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

8
.0

 C
A

N
C

E
R

Page 130



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
0

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

w
h
o
le

 p
a
th

w
a

y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 w

it
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

n
e
tw

o
rk

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

�
In

te
g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
c
ro

s
s
 w

h
o
le

 p
a
th

w
a

y
 o

f 
c
a
re

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
S

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n

�
C

a
n
c
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n

�
D

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 u

n
w

a
rr

a
n
te

d
 o

u
tp

a
ti
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

�
D

e
ta

ile
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

�
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y 

�
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

�
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

�
S

p
e
c
if
y
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 a

 w
h
o

le
 p

a
th

w
a

y
 b

a
s
is

�
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

le
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
n
c
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

n
e
tw

o
rk

s

�
A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

ri
c
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
a
th

w
a

y
s

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

n
e
tw

o
rk

�
C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
 –

e
.g

. 
. 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

�
P

a
ti
e
n
t 
s
ig

n
 –

u
p
 

�
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 p

re
s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

a
g
e

�
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n

�
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

ys
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

�
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

 s
e
ts

 

�
G

P
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 n
o
n
e

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
[ 
]m

8
.0

 C
A

N
C

E
R

 (
c
o
n

t.
)

Page 131



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
1

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

L
o
n
d
o
n
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 
c
a
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

�
C

o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 

R
is

k
s
 (

K
F

 a
d
d
e
d
 t
h
is

)
�

M
e
d
ia

 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 

�
N

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 p

u
b
lic

 p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n

�
F

u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 b

e
yo

n
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

�
C

o
m

p
le

x
it
y 

o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 w

h
o
le

 s
ys

te
m

s
 c

h
a
n
g
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
W

e
ll 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 p

la
n
s
 w

it
h
 k

e
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
a
n
c
e
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

�
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 C

a
n
c
e
r 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 t
e
a
m

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

�
S

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
Q

IP
P

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
tr

ic
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
o
ff
e
rs

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
o
p
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

8
.0

 C
A

N
C

E
R

 (
c
o
n

t.
)

Page 132



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
2

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e

�
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
d
e
la

y
s

�
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
im

e
ly

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 k

e
y 

c
a
rd

ia
c
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s

�
S

lo
w

 u
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s

�
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
ju

n
io

r 
d
o
c
to

rs

S
c
o
p
e

�
R

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
re

v
is

e
d
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e

�
U

s
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
-b

a
s
e
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
e
q
u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

a
rd

ia
c
 a

n
d
 s

tr
o
k
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

v
o
id

a
n
c
e

�
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
le

n
g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y

�
C

e
n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o
n

o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
D

e
te

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
tr

o
k
e
 r

is
k
 f
a
c
to

rs

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
C

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 s

in
g
le

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
c
e
n
tr

e
 f
o
r 

N
C

L

�
H

e
a
rt

 F
a
ilu

re
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
is

 –
c
o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
te

s
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 l
e
a
d
s
 t
o
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
e
 o

f 
h
e
a
rt

 f
a
ilu

re
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
R

e
-

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 a

v
o
id

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 h

e
a
rt

 f
a
ilu

re
 

�
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 f
o
r 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

x
 a

rr
h
yt

h
m

ia
  
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 m
o
re

 e
q
u
it
a
b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

�
N

o
n
-

S
T

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
u
te

 c
o
ro

n
a
ry

 s
yn

d
ro

m
e
 p

a
th

w
a

y
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
le

n
g
th

 o
f 
s
ta

y 
a
n
d
 d

o
u
b
le

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 n

o
n
-

e
le

c
ti
v
e
 e

p
is

o
d
e

�
C

a
rd

ia
c
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 –
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y 
fo

r 
n
o
n
 e

le
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 r
e
fe

rr
a
l 
s
ys

te
m

�
W

o
rk

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 d
o
o
r 

to
 n

e
e
d
le

 t
im

e
 o

f 
3
0
 m

in
u
te

s
 f
o
r 

th
ro

m
b
o
ly

s
is

o
f 

s
tr

o
k
e
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
is

 o
f 
a
tr

ia
l
fi
b
ri

lla
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
-c

o
a
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 s
tr

o
k
e

�
U

n
b
u
n
d
le

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 S

tr
o
k
e
 t
a
ri
ff

 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 E

a
rl

y 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 D

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 (

E
S

D
) 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
C

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 H

A
S

U
 E

S
D

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 r

o
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

o
s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 s

tr
o
k
e
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 N

C
L

�
D

e
liv

e
r 

6
 m

o
n
th

 p
o
s
t-

d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
tr

o
k
e
 p

a
ti
e
n
ts

�
E

m
b
e
d
 s

tr
o
k
e
 r

e
h
a
b
ili

ta
ti
o
n

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 d

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
to

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

9
.0

 C
A

R
D

IO
-V

A
S

C
U

L
A

R
 D

IS
E

A
S

E

Page 133



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
3

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
E

a
rl

y 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s

�
C

h
a
n
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

la
n
d

s
c
a
p
e
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 m
o
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
a
n
d
 t
e
rt

ia
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
E

a
rl

ie
r 

d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

 a
n
d
 t
ri
a
g
e
 o

f 
H

e
a
rt

 F
a
ilu

re
 a

n
d
 N

S
T

E
A

C
S

 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

, 
w

it
h
 q

u
ic

k
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e
n
g
th

 

o
f 
s
ta

y 
fo

r 
N

S
T

E
A

C
S

 p
a
ti
e
n
ts

�
P

ro
v
id

in
g
 f

a
s
t 
tr

a
c
k
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
ti
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

�
P

ro
v
id

in
g
 E

a
rl

y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 D

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 (

E
S

D
) 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 f
ro

m
 h

yp
e
r-

a
c
u
te

 a
n
d
 a

c
u
te

 s
tr

o
k
e
 u

n
it
s

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 p

o
s
t-

a
c
u
te

 s
tr

o
k
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
C

a
re

 P
a
th

w
a

y
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n

�
S

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
te

rm
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s

�
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 (

if
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
)

�
C

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 r
o
le

s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

�
S

p
e
c
if
y
in

g
 p

a
th

w
a

ys
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
e
rt

ia
ry

, 
a
c
u
te

 a
n
d
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

N
e

w
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s

�
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n

�
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
d
a
ta

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 c
a
re

�
E

x
is

te
n
c
e
 o

f 
C

a
rd

ia
c
 a

n
d
 S

tr
o
k
e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

�
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
0
.1

m

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
[ 
]m

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

C
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s

�
IT

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
c
s

�
L
o
n
d
o
n
 c

a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 

c
a
re

9
.0

  
C

A
R

D
IO

-V
A

S
C

U
L

A
R

 D
IS

E
A

S
E

 (
c
o

n
t.

)

Page 134



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
4

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

R
is

k
s

�
C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

�
R

e
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o
n

o
f 

v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
A

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

ilo
t 
p
h
a
s
e
s

�
L
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
if
 n

o
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f
o
r 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
N

C
L
 l
o
c
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

o
f 

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 w

id
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

�
S

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

c
a
rd

ia
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

�
S

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
re

d
w

it
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

�
A

 c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

it
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s

to
 v

a
s
c
u
la

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
R

o
b
u
s
t 
s
c
o
p
in

g
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t 
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

s

�
P

ilo
ts

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
F

u
ll 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f
o
r 

a
g
re

e
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

9
.0

  
C

A
R

D
IO

-V
A

S
C

U
L

A
R

 D
IS

E
A

S
E

 (
c
o

n
t.

)

Page 135



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
5

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
H

ig
h
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
tt
e
n
d
 A

&
E

, 
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g

w
it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y 

a
n
d
 n

o
n
-e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

�
F

a
m

ili
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 m
o
s
t 
o
ft

e
n
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 g
o
 s

o
m

e
w

h
e
re

 o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 A

&
E

 i
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

e
re

 o
p
e
n
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 h

o
m

e

�
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

tt
e
n
d
in

g
 A

&
E

 i
n
 N

C
L
 a

re
 o

ft
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y 
ju

n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
p
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

v
o
id

e
d

�
S

o
m

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
c
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
n
 N

C
L
 o

n
ly

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 v

e
ry

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

in
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
p
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 s
u
rg

e
ry

 a
n
d
 a

re
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

th
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 R

o
ya

l 
C

o
lle

g
e
s
, 
o
r 

b
y 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

�
V

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
te

rt
ia

ry
 p

e
d

ia
tr

ic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

�
F

e
w

e
r 

la
rg

e
r 

c
e
n
tr

e
s

to
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s

�
C

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 T

e
rt

ia
ry

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
r 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 s

m
a
ll 

s
p
e
c
ia

lt
ie

s

S
c
o
p
e

�
A

c
u
te

 p
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

in
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

m
e
d
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
rg

ic
a
l)

�
P

a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

o
u
tp

a
ti
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

�
P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 f
o
r 

te
rt

ia
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
T

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 f
o
r 

te
rt

ia
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n

�
N

C
L
 P

a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

N
e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
u
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

N
C

L
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 p

a
c
e
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
T

B
C

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
L
o
n
d
o
n
 T

e
rt

ia
ry

 P
a
e
d

ia
tr

ic
N

e
tw

o
rk

�
N

C
L
 l
o
c
a
l 
P

a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

N
e
tw

o
rk

1
0

.0
 P

A
E

D
IA

T
R

IC
S

Page 136



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
6

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
L
o
n
d
o
n
 w

id
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

  
fo

r 
te

rt
ia

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 c

le
a
r 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
n
 N

C
L

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

C
lin

ic
a

l 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 T
B

C

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 T
B

C

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 w

id
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

�
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
 t
h
e
  
L
o
n
d
o
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
e
rt

ia
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

�
N

C
L
 U

n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 C

a
re

 Q
IP

P
 w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a
m

�
L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
is

k
s
 

�
F

u
tu

re
 d

is
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
te

rt
ia

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

�
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

’
a
c
u
te

 p
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 
c
a
re

�
P

u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

re
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a

n
y 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s

�
A

lig
n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
la

n
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
L
o
n
d
o
n
 t
e
rt

ia
ry

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 o
u
t 
to

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

�
D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 w

it
h

in
 t
h
e
 P

a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

N
e
tw

o
rk

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 f

u
tu

re
 m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 
c
a
re

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

te
rt

ia
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
in

a
lis

e
d

fo
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

�
D

e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
c
u
te

 p
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

s
n
e
tw

o
rk

1
0

.0
 P

A
E

D
IA

T
R

IC
S

 (
c
o
n

t)

Page 137



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
7

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
M

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
u
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

�
A

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
g
a
p
 i
n
h
e
re

n
t 
in

 N
C

L
 s

e
c
to

r

S
c
o
p
e

�
A

c
u
te

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

e
tr

ic
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 e

le
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y 

in
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

, 
o
u
tp

a
ti
e
n
ts

, 
A

&
E

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 D

ia
g
n
o
s
ti
c
s

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 m
e
tr

ic
s
 w

it
h
 p

e
n
a
lt
y
 c

la
u
s
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
re

la
ti
n
g
 t
o
: 

�
1
8
 w

e
e
k
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

�
A

&
E

 c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 r

a
te

�
A

&
E

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 w

h
e
n
 l
e
ft

 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
e
e
n
 a

 c
lin

ic
ia

n

�
A

&
E

 m
in

o
r 

a
ilm

e
n
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n

�
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 v

ia
 A

&
E

 w
it
h
 a

 z
e

ro
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y

�
C

2
C

 P
a
id

 a
s
 F

o
llo

w
 u

p

�
D

a
y
 c

a
s
e
 c

o
d
in

g
 t
o
 O

P
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

�
E

x
c
e
s
s
 b

e
d
 d

a
ys

�
N

o
n
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y 

R
e
-a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 3

0
 d

a
ys

�
N

o
n
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y 

R
e
-a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 3

0
 d

a
ys

  
to

 a
n
o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
r

�
O

P
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 w

h
ils

t 
a
n
 i
n
p
a
ti
e
n
t

�
P

re
 O

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 b

e
d
 d

a
ys

. 

�
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 p

ri
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l

1
1

.0
 A

C
U

T
E

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IV

IT
Y

Page 138



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
8

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

is
in

g
a
n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
m

e
tr

ic
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 m
o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
In

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
n
a
lt
ie

s
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
to

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

�
R

o
b
u
s
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
te

rm
s

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
C

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
T

e
rm

s

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

A
 s

tr
o
n
g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

�
H

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
ff

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
d
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n

a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

a
y
 t
h
a
t 

c
re

a
te

 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
a
b
le

 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
te

rm
s

�
A

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

to
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
te

rm
s
 f
u
lly

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a

r

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 £
4
6
.7

m

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 £
[ 
]m

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 a

c
u
te

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s

1
1

.0
 A

C
U

T
E

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 (
c
o

n
t.
)

Page 139



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

3
9

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

R
is

k
s

�
U

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
e
rm

s
 i
n
 a

ll 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

�
T

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
f 
ta

k
e
n
 t
o
 a

rb
it
ra

ti
o
n

�
N

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

 s
e
t 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

e
tr

ic
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

�
K

n
o
c
k
 o

n
 e

ff
e
c
t 
c
re

a
te

s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
u
n
p

la
n
n
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
tt
in

g
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
K

e
y
 m

e
tr

ic
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d

�
T

h
e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 m

e
tr

ic
s
 w

it
h
 p

e
n
a
lt
y
 c

la
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

a
is

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 m
a
rk

e
t 
d
a

y

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
Is

s
u
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
ta

il 
o
f 

th
e
 m

e
tr

ic
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

�
W

o
rk

 u
p
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
te

rm
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 m

e
tr

ic
, 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

 a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t

1
1

.0
 A

C
U

T
E

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 (
c
o

n
t.
)

Page 140



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

4
0

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

�
R

e
d
u
c
e
 p

re
m

a
tu

re
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
a
g
e
 a

ll 
c
a
u
s
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
d
ia

g
n
o
s
is

 a
n
d
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 

lo
n
g
 

te
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

�
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
  
th

e
 r

o
le

 t
h
a
t 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

b
le

 r
is

k
  
fa

c
to

rs
 p

la
y 

in
 t
h
e
 m

o
rb

id
it
y
 a

n
d
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 N

C
L

�
S

m
o
k
in

g
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

in
g
le

 l
a
rg

e
s
t 
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
d
e
a
th

s
 i
n
 N

C
L
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
u
n
g
 c

a
n
c
e
r 

a
n
d
 C

O
P

D
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

 k
e

y
 r

is
k
 f
a
c
to

r 
fo

r 
C

V
D

,

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 C

H
D

S
c
o
p
e

�
N

C
L
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
  
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 t

h
o
s
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 L

o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

�
L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
p
u
t 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 N

H
S

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 /
 P

ro
je

c
ts

�
C

V
D

, 
C

a
n
c
e
r 

a
n
d
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
;

�
N

H
S

 H
e
a

lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
, 
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
ri
s
k
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
e
d
 b

y 
w

e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 h

e
a
lt
h

y 
e

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

�
C

a
n
c
e
r 

s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
it
h
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
in

k
s
 t
o
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s

�
S

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
, 
im

p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o

n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

O
P

D
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
.

�
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 i
m

m
u
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s

�
J
o
in

t 
A

lc
o
h
o
l 
H

a
rm

 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
w

o
rk

 p
la

n
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
re

la
te

d
 A

&
E

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 P

s
yc

h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
T

h
e
ra

p
ie

s
 a

im
s
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 c
o
m

m
o
n

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 d

is
o
rd

e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

n
x
ie

ty
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
re

s
s
io

n

�
L
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

s

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

�
N

H
S

 H
e
a

lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 m

u
lt
i 
d
im

e
n
s
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

in
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

�
D

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
in

s
ig

h
t 
fr

o
m

 s
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

�
U

ti
lis

in
g

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rl

y
in

g
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
n
ts

 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

M
o
d
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

�
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 m

u
lt
i 
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 t
e
a
m

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 s
c
a
le

 a
n
d
 t
ra

c
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
h
a
n
g
e

�
G

P
 C

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
 t

�
T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 l
e
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e

�
O

n
e
 s

iz
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
l 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

fi
t 
a
ll 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

1
2

.0
 S

T
A

Y
IN

G
 H

E
A

L
T

H
Y

Page 141



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

4
1

K
e

y
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

S
y
s
te

m
 L

e
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s

�
In

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 L

E
S

, 
D

E
S

, 
L
IS

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s

�
N

e
w

 N
H

S
 a

n
d
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s

�
W

id
e
r 

ro
le

 o
f 

th
e
 G

P

K
e

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs
�

H
e
a
lt
h

y
 L

iv
e
s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h

y
 P

e
o
p
le

;

�
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h
 W

h
it
e
 P

a
p
e
r 

�
N

H
S

 a
n
d
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 O

u
tc

o
m

e

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s

�
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 =

 T
B

C

�
4
 y

e
a
r 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
=

 T
B

C

In
te

rd
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s
�

N
H

S
 a

n
d
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

s

R
is

k
s
 (

K
F

 a
d
d
e
d
 t
h
is

)
�

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

�
U

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
te

a
m

s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
ll 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s

�
P

ri
o
ri

ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
ta

y
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h

y 
in

 t
h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 D

a
te

�
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s

�
L
o
c
a
l 
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 o

f 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r

�
N

e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

s

�
M

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

u
lt
id

is
c
ip

lin
a
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s

1
2

.0
 S

T
A

Y
IN

G
 H

E
A

L
T

H
Y

 (
c
o

n
t.

)

Page 142



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T
C

o
n

te
n

ts

4
2

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
te

x
t

O
u
r 

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h

C
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e

D
e
liv

e
ry

 I
m

p
a
c
t

K
e

y
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 P

a
ti
e
n
ts

Page 143



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

W
O

R
K

 S
T

R
E

A
M

C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

P
A

T
IE

N
T

 E
X

P
E

R
IE

N
C

E
A

C
C

E
S

S
S

A
F

E
T

Y

�
F

e
w

e
r 

c
ri

s
e

s
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
in

g
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 l
e

a
d
in

g
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

�
A

b
le

 t
o

 m
o

re
 e

a
s
ily

 n
a

v
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
y
s
te

m

�
C

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n

 m
o

re
 l
o
c
a

l 
c
a
re

 
s
e

tt
in

g
s

�
R

ig
h

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

 r
ig

h
t 
 c

a
re

 r
ig

h
t 

p
la

c
e

 r
ig

h
t 
 t

im
e

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

  
c
la

ri
ty

  
o

f 

c
a

re
 p

o
in

t 
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

  
q
u

a
lit

y
 

�
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n
 s

h
o

rt
 s

ta
y
 

a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

�
R

e
d

u
c
e

 d
u

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
d

ia
g

n
o
s
ti
c
s

�
R

e
d

u
c
e

d
 t

ra
v
e

l 
 a

n
d

 s
h
o

rt
e

r 
w

a
it
s

�
R

e
d

u
c
e

d
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 o
f 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
�

R
ig

h
t 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n
t 

fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e

�
C

a
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 a

 m
o

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 

s
e

tt
in

g

�
A

c
c
e
s
s
 c

a
re

 c
lo

s
e

r 
to

 h
o
m

e
�

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
s
y
s
te

m

�
S

k
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
e

te
n
t 

 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
n

 r
ig

h
t 

s
e

tt
in

g

�
E

a
rl

ie
r 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 i
n

 S
M

I
�

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 o

u
t 
o

f 
a

re
a

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

ts
 –

m
in

im
is

in
g

  
s
o
c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
�

P
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p
a

ti
e
n

ts
 

w
it
h

 d
e

m
e
n

ti
a

, 
d

ru
g

 a
n

d
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
 

is
s
u

e
s
 –

le
s
s
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 
b
a

s
e
d

 c
a

re

�
A

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 i
n

-p
a

ti
e

n
t 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 l
ia

is
o

n
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 a
c
u

te
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 c
a

re
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
a
s
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 f
o

rm
u

la
ry

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

�
R

ig
h

t 
p

re
s
c
ri
b

in
g

�
N

/A
�

P
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 l
im

it
s
 c

h
o

ic
e

 o
f 

d
ru

g
s

�
R

ig
h

t 
p

re
s
c
ri
b

in
g

 –
re

d
u
c
e

d
 i
n

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

p
re

s
c
ri

b
in

g
 

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 

2
0

 Q
O

F
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
d

o
m

a
in

s

�
A

b
o

v
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
c
lin

ic
a
l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

D
ir

e
c
te

d
 E

n
h

a
n
c
e
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

(D
E

S
)

�
M

o
re

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

 &
 t
a

rg
e
te

d
 

s
c
re

e
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

ig
h

t 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 
ti
m

e
 

�
0

-5
y
r 

o
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 c

lin
ic

a
l 

d
ia

g
n

o
s
e

s
 &

 p
re

v
e
n

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
d

e
n

ta
l 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

�
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

p
h

a
rm

a
c
y
 M

e
d

ic
in

e
s
 U

s
a
g

e
 

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 m

e
d

ic
in

e
s
  

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

�
In

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 %

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
P

s
 u

p
 t
o

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

v
e

ra
g

e

�
In

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 %

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

 

d
e

n
ta

l 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 u

p
 t
o

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e

�
In

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 %

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

 
ti
m

e
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 w
a

it
 f
o

r 
a

 d
e
n

ta
l 

a
p

p
o
in

tm
e

n
t 

u
p
 t

o
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 a
v
e
ra

g
e

�
In

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 %

 r
e
tu

rn
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

p
h

a
rm

a
c
y
 p

a
ti
e

n
t 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s

�
In

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 G

P
 a

p
p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 

w
it
h

 a
n

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

in
 A

&
E

 a
tt

e
n
d

a
n
c
e

�
In

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 d

e
n

ta
l 
v
it
a

l 
s
ig

n
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

�
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

f 

U
D

A
s

(U
n

it
s
 o

f 
D

e
n

ta
l 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
) 

to
 b

e
 a

lig
n

e
d

 t
o

 
s
e

c
to

r 
ta

rg
e

ts
 s

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 
a

c
c
e

s
s

�
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 

d
e

n
ta

l 
p
a

ti
e

n
ts

�
In

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
1

0
0
h

 

p
h

a
rm

a
c
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

s
e

c
to

r 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 
m

e
d
ic

in
e
s
, 

c
lin

ic
a

l 
a
d

v
ic

e
 &

 

M
in

o
r 

A
ilm

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

�
T

ig
h

t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g

 o
f 

n
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 
s
a

fe
ty

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

w
it
h

in
 e

a
c
h

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

G
M

S
/ 

G
D

S
/ 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

h
a

rm
a

c
y
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
–

Im
p

a
c

t
o

n
 P

a
ti

e
n

ts

4
.0

 M
e

d
ic

in
e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

3
.0

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

1
.0

 C
a

re
 C

lo
s
e

r 
to

 H
o
m

e

5
.0

 Q
IP

P
 i
n

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re

2
.0

 U
n
s
c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 C
a

re
 

4
3

Page 144



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

W
O

R
K

 S
T

R
E

A
M

C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

P
A

T
IE

N
T

 E
X

P
E

R
IE

N
C

E
A

C
C

E
S

S
S

A
F

E
T

Y

�
C

la
ri

fy
 l
o

w
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

p
a
th

w
a

y
s
 s

o
 c

a
re

 i
s
 a

lw
a

ys
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 n

e
e
d
, 
le

a
d
in

g
 

to
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

m
o
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 b

a
b

y

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

h
a
re

d
 c

a
re

 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 G

P
s
 

a
n
d
 m

a
te

rn
it
y 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

�
M

e
e
ti
n
g
 ‘
M

a
te

rn
it
y
 M

a
tt
e
rs

’

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s

�
M

id
w

if
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(b

o
o
k
in

g
) 

b
y 

1
2

th
w

e
e
k
 i
s
 l
o

w

�
H

ig
h
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 

�
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 m

o
re

 p
a
ti
e
n
t 

c
e
n
tr

ic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
v
o
id

in
g
 

u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

�
W

o
m

e
n
 s

ti
ll 

n
o
t 
a

w
a
re

 o
f 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 c
h
o
ic

e
s
.

�
H

ig
h
e
r 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

c
a
re

 d
u
ri
n
g
 l
a
b
o
u
r 

a
n
d
 a

n
te

n
a
ta

l 

c
a
re

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 C

Q
C

 2
0
1
0
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
w

o
m

e
n
 h

a
v
e
 a

 

p
o
o
re

r 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
m

a
te

rn
it
y
 

c
a
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d

�
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
a
re

 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

c
lo

s
e
 t
o
 h

o
m

e
, 
in

 n
o
n
-

m
e
d
ic

a
lis

e
d

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
w

h
e
re

 

p
o
s
s
ib

le

�
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
g
e
 o

f 

m
id

w
iv

e
s
, 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

p
re

s
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

ju
n
io

r 
c
o
v
e
r.

�
B

ir
th

 r
a
te

 p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
k
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt

�
In

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
m

id
d
le

 g
ra

d
e
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
s
ta

ff
.

�
D

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
l 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 n

o
n
-

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 

m
a
te

rn
it
y
 c

a
re

�
C

la
ri

fy
 l
o

w
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 

ri
s
k
 p

a
th

w
a

ys
 s

o
 

c
a
re

 i
s
 a

lw
a

y
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 

n
e
e
d
, 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
o
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

m
o
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 b

a
b

y

�
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

h
a
re

d
 

c
a
re

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 G

P
s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
te

rn
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

�
M

e
e
ti
n
g
 ‘
M

a
te

rn
it
y
 

M
a
tt
e
rs

’
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s

�
M

id
w

if
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(b
o
o
k
in

g
) 

b
y 

1
2

th

w
e
e
k
 i
s
 l
o

w

�
H

ig
h
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

ra
te

s
 

�
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n
 c

lin
ic

a
lly

 i
n
e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 (

ri
g

h
t 
c
a

re
)

�
C

la
ri

ty
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
v
a

ila
b

le

�
D

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s

�
R

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 c
e

rt
a

in
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

�
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n
 r

is
k
s
 t

o
 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 

in
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s

�
E

a
rl

ie
r 

d
ia

g
n
o

s
is

, 
p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

s
c
re

e
n

in
g

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 s
u

rv
iv

a
l 
ra

te
s
 

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 c
lin

ic
a
l 
o
u

tc
o

m
e
s

�
E

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 c
a

re
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s

�
R

e
d

u
c
e

d
 r

e
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
�

S
h

o
rt

e
r 

le
n
g

th
s
 o

f 
s
ta

y

�
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 
a

c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 
�

E
a

rl
ie

r 
a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 d
ia

g
n

o
s
ti
c
s
 

a
n

d
 s

c
re

e
n
in

g

�
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

e
a

rl
ie

r 
�

Im
p

ro
v
e
d

 c
lin

ic
a
l 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s

�
C

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 

p
a

th
w

a
y
s
, 

le
a

d
in

g
 t
o

 
le

s
s
 v

a
ri

a
ti
o
n

�
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 
re

c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

�
R

e
d

u
c
e

 v
a

ri
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

in
 N

C
L

 
s
e

c
to

r 

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 u
s
e

 o
f 

n
e

w
 t

e
c
h

n
iq

u
e

s

�
Im

p
ro

v
e

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 o

f 
c
a

re
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 
p
a

th
w

a
y

�
R

ig
h

t 
c
a

re
 r

ig
h

t 
p
la

c
e

�
R

ig
h

t 
c
a

re
 r

ig
h

t 
p
la

c
e

 
ri

g
h

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
–

Im
p

a
c

t
o

n
 P

a
ti

e
n

ts
 (

c
o

n
td

.)

9
.0

 C
a

rd
io

v
a
s
c
u
la

r 

4
4

8
.0

 C
a
n

c
e

r

6
.0

 M
a

te
rn

it
y

7
.0

 L
P

T
, 

D
e
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 

T
h

re
s
h

o
ld

s

Page 145



F
IN

A
L

 D
R

A
F

T

W
O

R
K

 S
T

R
E

A
M

C
L

IN
IC

A
L

 O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

P
A

T
IE

N
T

 E
X

P
E

R
IE

N
C

E
A

C
C

E
S

S
S

A
F

E
T

Y

�
S

c
o

p
in

g
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 

w
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
  
to

 r
e
d

u
c
e

 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 q
u
a

lit
y
 i
n

 
a

c
u

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 t

e
rt

ia
ry

 c
a

re

�
S

c
o

p
in

g
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 

w
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
  
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

�
S

c
o

p
in

g
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 a
n

d
 

a
g

re
e
 w

h
a

t 
c
a
n

 b
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

  

to
 g

e
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 r

ig
h

t 
fo

r 
a

c
u

te
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

�
S

c
o

p
in

g
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 h

o
w

 s
a

fe
ty

  

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

  
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 f
o

r 
a
c
u

te
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

�
C

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
te

rt
ia

ry
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

�
L

e
v
e

lli
n

g
 u

p
 t
o

 t
h
e

 b
e

s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 
N

H
S

�
C

a
re

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 s
tr

e
a

m
lin

e
d

�
R

ig
h

t 
 p

e
rs

o
n

 r
ig

h
t 

p
la

c
e

 
ri

g
h

t 
ti
m

e
�

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
e

tr
ic

s

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

in
 p

la
c
e

 t
o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 h

e
a

lt
h
ie

r 

lif
e
s
ty

le
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

�
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 a
s
 m

o
re

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 l
o
c
a
l 
N

H
S

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
–

Im
p

a
c

t
o

n
 P

a
ti

e
n

ts
 (

c
o

n
td

.)

1
0

.0
 P

a
e

d
ia

tr
ic

s

1
1

.0
 A

c
u

te
 P

ro
d

u
c
ti
v
it
y

1
2

.0
 S

ta
y
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

y

4
5

Page 146



Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) for North 
Central London Sector 
 
25 March 2010 
 
1. Support and Administrative Issues 
 
1.1 The JHOSC has previously discussed its support needs and discussed these with 

NHS North Central London (NCL).  Following the last discussion, the attached letter 
was received from NHS NCL.   

 
1.2 Officers from boroughs included in the JHOSC have met to discuss this and 

administrative support for JHOSC.   The view of officers was that the offer from NCL 
to provide officer time from within its public health team for specific pieces of work is 
welcome and could provide a useful means of providing evidence on best practice 
and outcomes.  The drafting of a work plan based around NHS NCLs work streams 
would facilitate the best use of this resource as sufficient time will need to be 
provided to enable them to undertake the work required.   

 
1.3 In terms of administrative support, the current level of activity by the JHOSC is 

viewed as being containable on the basis that each borough provides “payment in 
kind” by sharing the workload equally.  This involves each borough taking a turn in 
hosting meetings and providing a minute taker.   Support to the Chair and the Vice 
Chair will come from the borough from which these come from. 

 
2. Recommendations: 
 
2.1 That, in order to make best use of the support offered by NHS NCL, a forward plan 

for the JHOSC be developed based around workstreams within the QIPP. 
 
2.2 That administrative support be resourced for the JHOSC by “payment in kind” with 

each participating boroughs contributing equally on the basis outlined. 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 10Page 147



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of interest
	4 Minutes
	5 NHS North Central London (NCL) - Transition and Governance
	110317 Trans & Gov App 1to3 NCL governance framework
	110317 Trans  Gov App 4 NCL staff consultation response
	110317 Trans  Gov App 4 1 NCL sgl mgt team chronology of consultation activities
	110317 Trans  Gov App 4 2 NCL structure chart
	110317 Trans & Gov App 4.3 number of posts affected
	110317 Trans & Gov App 4.4 NCL sgl mgt team appointments process PCT Bds

	6 Vascular Surgery
	110317 Vascular App 1 Standards
	110317 Vascular App2 AORTA activity
	110317 Vascular App3 LIMB REVASC actiivty data
	110317 Vascular App4 NCL CAROTID activity data

	7 North Central London Sector Commissioning Strategy and Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) Plan
	110317  QIPP App1

	10 Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) for North Central London Sector - Support and Administrative Issues

